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TITLE: Small Water Facilities Funding Application 
  
  
EXPLANATION: The following application has been received by the department for funding 

consideration at this meeting. 
 

a. Haakon County School District 
  
  
COMPLETE  
APPLICATIONS: 

The application cover sheet and WRAP summary sheet with financial analysis 
have been provided as part of the board packet.  The complete application is 
available online and can be accessed by typing the following address in your 
internet browser:   
 

http://denr.sd.gov/bwnrapps/BWNRappsother0615.pdf 
 

If you would like a hard copy of the application, please contact Jon Peschong at 
(605) 773-4216. 

  
  
CONTACT: Mike Perkovich, 773-4216 
 

http://denr.sd.gov/bwnrapps/BWNRappsother0615.pdf


WRAP REVIEW SHEET 
SMALL WATER FACILITIES FUNDING APPLICATION 
APPLICANT:  HAAKON COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
Project Title: Geothermal Wastewater Treatment System 
  
Funding Requested: $647,000 
  
Other Proposed Funding: $0 - Local Cash 
 
Total Project Cost: $647,000 
  
Project Description: Removal and disposal of sludge and treatment pond repair.  

Project also includes construction of a new treatment building 
and chemical mixing system including a SCADA system to 
operate the equipment. 

  
Alternatives Evaluated: Water from the geothermal well used in the heating system 

has high radium concentration.  Barium chloride is used to 
treat the water and the current system for adding the 
chemicals is imprecise, inefficient and dangerous for the 
operator.  The new system for chemical addition will address 
these issues.  
 
Several options were investigated for disposal of the 
accumulation of sludge in the treatment ponds.  These 
included disposal at the pond site and hauling it to either the 
Rapid City or Pierre landfill.  On site disposal was not feasible 
because the land owner will not allow disposal and the site is 
close to the Bad River.  Disposal at the Pierre landfill was 
chosen over the Rapid City landfill due to the significant 
difference in tipping fees for the material. 
 
The treatment ponds have deteriorated and the liner and 
dikes need to be repaired. 

  
Implementation Schedule: The school district anticipates bidding the project in 2016 with 

a project completion date of 2017. 
  
Service Population: NA 
  
Current Domestic Rate: NA 
  
Proposed Domestic Rate at Project 
Completion: NA 

  

Interest Rate:  Term:  Security: 
 
 



Applicant:  Haakon County School District 
Page 2 of 2 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 ENGINEERING REVIEW COMPLETED BY: ERIC MEINTSMA 

 FINANCIAL REVIEW COMPLETED BY:  JON PESCHONG 
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Preliminary Report 

Compliance Plans Costs and Alternatives 

Geothermal Water Treatment and Sludge Disposal System 

 

For: 

 Philip, SD 

Haakon County School District 

 

 

By: 

BANNER ASSOCIATES, INC.   

September 18, 2014 
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1.0 Purpose: 

The purpose of this preliminary engineering report is to facilitate the planning, design, 

and project management needed to address the notice of violation that the school district received 

from SD DENR.  This report will outline the work necessary to become compliant with the state 

rules and regulations regarding this facility and outline the associated costs and phasing 

schedule. 

2.0 Background: 

An article written for the Geo-Heat Center Bulletin in June of 2003 gave a good description 

and historical background of the Haakon County School District Geothermal heating system.  An 

edited version of the article follows: 

HISTORY 

The district heating project was one of 23 cost shared by US DOE starting in 1978.  

The city project was added on to the original US DOE cost shared project for the 

Haakon School, located on a hill above town.  At the writing of this article discharge 

from the school is being used to heat eight buildings in the downtown area since the 

1981-1982 heating season.  The Philip Geothermal Corporation (for profit) was 

formed to maintain and operate the downtown system, and pays the school district for 

the use of the water.  

RESOURCES 

The town overlies the Madison Formation which is a large-area aquifer.  The aquifer 

has a demonstrated capability to produce geothermal water.  A single 4,266-foot deep 

well was drilled in 1980 which provides a maximum artesian flow of 340 gpm at 

157°F.  The dissolved solids content of the water is 1,112 ppm and a pH of 7.4.  

Radium226 at 100 pCi/L must be removed from the spent water with a barium 

chloride co-precipitation process before discharging to the Bad River.  The treatment 

plant has two 90 ft x 158 ft x 10 ft deep treatment ponds that will each hold 374,000 

gallons of the sludge.  The geothermal fluid is first used by the grade school and high 

school before being sent to the city at around 140° F, and then is disposed of between 

119 and 140° F, depending upon peak or no energy demand from the system.   

UTILIZATION 

The geothermal discharge from the schools is transported in a single pipe through the 

downtown area.  A disposal line begins at the upstream end of the business district 

and parallels the supply line from the schools to the last user on the system, the fire 
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station.  From there, a single line continues to the radium removal plant and disposal 

to the Bad River.  The eight buildings connected to the system use either Modine 

heaters, unit heaters, or piping in the floor.  The bank building uses plate heat 

exchangers to isolate the geothermal fluid.  The control points for the system are at 

the high school and the fire station.  Equipment in the fire station, controls system 

pressure and regulates flow through the business district loop.  A motor operated 

flow control valve on the return line is set to be full open at 20° F and full closed at 

65° F outside air temperature.  A second valve maintains back pressure in the 

distribution piping to minimize calcite precipitation.   When the outside temperature 

is below -10° F and hydronic fluid temperature is below 90° F, a backup boiler is 

turned on and automatically valved into the system.   Water leaving the business 

district flows to the water treatment plant where Radium-226 is removed.  Barium 

chloride is added to the water at 2.6 ppm BaCl2 at maximum flow.  The solution is 

added at a baffled trough which empties into a pond.  Sludge collects on the pond 

bottom at a rate of about 85 cu. ft. per year.  Sufficient liquid volume will be 

maintained throughout the pond’s 30-year life.  Radioactivity accumulates at 0.06 

curies/year.  At the end of the pond life, the sludge can be removed to a disposal site.  

The schools removes about 16° F and the business district about 11° F from the peak 

flow of 340 gpm, which is only about 83% of the system capacity.  As a result, the city 

uses about 41% of the output of the system or 2.25 million Btu/h peak (0.65 MWt) and 

3.9 billion Btu/yr.   The heating season is normally from October 1
st
 to May 1

st
.    

REGULATORY ISSUES 

A discharge permit is required by the South Dakota Department of Environment and 

Natural Resources.  This is renewed every five years.  The Current Permit expired in 

2012 and is currently up for renewal.   Samples of the discharge water (after the 

barium chloride treatment) are sent to Pierre.  EPA in Denver requires flow and 

temperature readings every two to three weeks.  The Radium-226 must be reduced to 

5 ppm (from 80 ppm) with a maximum daily reading of 15 ppm.   

  



 

5 | P a g e  

 

3.0  Compliance Issues 

The SD DENR has made periodic site visits and filed the following compliance report 

which is the basis for the notice of violation the District recently received (2rd Quarter 2014): 

 

COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 
 
Haakon School District wastewater treatment 
facility is in need of significant repairs or 
upgrades in order to remain in compliance with 
their SWD permit. 

 
This was noted during the last on-site 

inspection on September 8, 2009. As of the 

September 13, 2013 inspection, no repairs or 

upgrades have been made to the system. 

 
After conducting this inspection, and noting 
that the issue has not been addressed, a 
construction schedule is being developed. It 
will require the necessary upgrades and safety 
precautions for keeping the facility in 
compliance. By August 1, 2014, the district is 

required to submit a plan to SDDENR to 

hire an engineer to evaluate the facility and 

make repairs. In addition, because no work 
has been performed, a construction schedule 
will be added to the permit to ensure upgrades 
to the facility are met. 

 
The operator reported that discharge does not 
reach the discharge structure, but appears to be 
infiltrating. 

 
-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

 
The operator said that the Cell #2 levels 
have been fluctuating with weather, snow 
melt, and Bad River flow. 

 
On 3/24/2014, flow from the WWTF 
reached the discharge pipe for the first time 
during the heating season. The operator has 
been sampling as required by the SWD 
permit. 

 
The pond lining is in need of repair. 

 
By August 1, 2014, the district is required to 

submit a plan to SDDENR to hire an 

engineer to evaluate the facility and make 

repairs. This is one of the issues that will need 
to be addressed. 
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COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 
 
The ponds are in need of repair. There is thick 
co-precipitate sludge in Cell #1’s pond bottom, 
and the dikes are heavily eroded. 

 
This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

 
Sludge needs to be managed, and dikes need to 
be repaired. 

 
By August 1, 2014, the district is required to 

submit a plan to SDDENR to hire an 

engineer to evaluate the facility and make 

repairs. This is one of the issues that will need 
to be addressed. 

 
Since the last on-site inspection, the Radium- 
226 10-month rolling average limit of 5 pCi/L 
was violated 20 times, and the daily maximum 
limit of 15 pCi/L was violated 4 times. 

 
Multiple limit violations were noted in the 

last on-site inspection. 
 

Note: During the initial inspection, the 
operator had some ideas about improving 
treatment. This year, barium chloride will 
be added to the mixing vats a few days 
prior to initial treatment, hopefully giving it 
more time to dissolve and allowing better 
Radium 226 co-precipitation. Also, the 
amount of barium chloride solution used 
for treatment will depend on flow from the 
geothermal well. 

 
-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

 
In the months prior to discharging to the 
Bad River on 3/24/2014, the operator took 
samples from Cell #2 to evaluate the 
effectiveness of barium chloride treatment. 
These results would be within compliance 
if the waters were discharged. 

 
Radium-226 results from the discharge 
samples are not in yet. 

 
These violations are not acceptable and can 
lead to enforcement actions, which can include 
fines and penalties. The facility must look into 
modifications of its operation to ensure 
adequate treatment of the wastewater. 

 
There is a floor drain in the barium chloride 
treatment building that will transport fluid, but 
the operator doesn’t know where it goes. 

 
The destination of the floor drain must be 
determined. If it is not to the geothermal 
wastewater ponds, the drain must be plugged 
or secondary containment must be added. 
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COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 
 
The district has not been submitting Discharge 
Monitoring Reports (DMRs) since January 
2013. 

 
-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

 
The DMRs have since been submitted 
through December 2013. 

 
In your SWD Permit, page 10, Reporting of 
Monitoring Results, states: 

 
Effluent monitoring results obtained 

during the previous 6 month(s) shall be 

summarized for each month and 

reported on a Discharge Monitoring 

Report Form (EPA No. 3320-1), 

postmarked no later than the 28
th 

day 

of the month following the completed 
reporting period. If no discharge 

occurs during the reporting period, "no 

discharge" shall be reported. 
 
DMRs must be submitted to this office on a 
twice-yearly basis (April 28 and October 28), 
regardless of whether a discharge occurs. 
Haakon School District must submit its 
overdue discharge monitoring reports. 

 
The facility is not maintaining the records 
required by the SWD permit for a minimum of 
three years. 

 
In your permit, Section 2.7, Retention of 
Records, states:  of your permit states: 

 
The permittee shall retain records of all 

monitoring information, including all 

calibration and maintenance records and all 

original strip chart recordings for 

continuous monitoring instrumentation, 

copies of all reports required by this permit, 

and records of all data used to complete the 

application for this permit, for a period of at 

least three years from the date of the 

sample, measurement, report or application. 

This period may be extended by request of 

the Secretary at any time. Data collected on 

site, copies of Discharge Monitoring 

Reports, and a copy of this permit must be 

maintained on site during the duration of 

activity at the permitted location. 
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COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 
 
The operator is not keeping an inspection 
notebook for the wastewater treatment facility. 
Instead, there is a calendar hanging in the 
mixing vat shed at the pond area with minimal 
notes about inspections during discharging 
season. 

 
-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

 
The operator has been keeping detailed 
notes of his daily inspections at the facility, 
including pond depth-to-water, discharging 
status, and treatment activities. 

 
All pond site inspections conducted by town 
personnel must be documented in a notebook 
to be reviewed by SDDENR personnel when 
an inspection occurs. At a minimum, the 
notebook shall include the following: 

 
1. Date and time of the inspection; 

 
2. Name of the inspector(s); 

 
3. The facility’s discharge status; 

 
4. The measured water depth in all cells and 

the artificial wetlands; 
 

5. Identification of operational problems 
and/or maintenance problems; 

 
6. Recommendations, as appropriate, to 

remedy identified problems; 
 

7. A brief description of any actions taken 
with regard to problems identified; and 

 
8. Other information, as appropriate. 

 
The inspection notebook is a condition of the 
SWD permit and must be kept for all future 
site inspections. 
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The following comments and corrective actions are recommended and are items that 
will improve the operation of your facility. 

 

COMMENTS RECOMMENDED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 
 
The operator would benefit from more training 
on safely handling the powdered barium 
chloride, as well as appropriate safety 
equipment. 

 
This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

 
The United States Centers for Disease Control 
(USCDC) barium chloride pocket guide is at  
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/npg/npgd0045.html 
(accessed 3/27/2014). 

 
Powdered barium chloride is used to co- 
precipitate the Radium-226 out of the 
wastewater. According to the USCDC, 
recommended safety equipment includes a 
supplied-air respirator, appropriate personal 
protective clothing to prevent skin contact, and 
appropriate eye protection to prevent eye 
contact. 

 
We would like to encourage you to give Mr. 
Leithauser or another operator of Haakon 
School District the opportunity to attend the 
wastewater training courses sponsored by the 
state to upgrade skills and share knowledge 
concerning the operation and maintenance of 
municipal wastewater systems. 

 
For more information as to dates and locations 
of upcoming courses in your area, contact 
South Dakota Association of Rural Water 
Systems, under contract with DENR, at 203 
Center Street W., Madison, SD 57042. Phone: 
(605) 556-7219. Website: 
http://www.sdarws.com. 

 
There are no pond depth indicators in either 
cell. 

 
This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

 
-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

 
The operator has been measuring depth-to- 
water from the raised structure in Cell #2. 

 
Pond depth indicators should be installed in 
each cell, with readings recorded during each 
inspection. These records will be helpful in 
determining flow to the ponds and aid in 
maintaining the proper operating depths in the 
ponds at all times. 

 
Emergency procedures have not been 
established in case of a major storm event, a 
wastewater line break, or a chemical release 
into the system. 

 
This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

 
The facility may wish to consider establishing 
written emergency procedures to ensure the 
school staff is prepared to address emergencies 
that may arise during the operation of the 
wastewater collection and treatment system. 



 

10 | P a g e  

 

Compliance Requirements/Discussion: 

Item 1:   

The ponds are in need of repair. There is thick co-precipitate sludge in Cell #1’s pond bottom, 

and the dikes are heavily eroded.   A construction schedule is being developed. It will require the 

necessary upgrades and safety precautions for keeping the facility in compliance. By August 1, 

2014, the district is required to submit a plan to SDDENR to hire an engineer to evaluate 

the facility and make repairs. In addition, because no work has been performed, a construction 

schedule will be added to the permit to ensure upgrades to the facility are met. 

 Response:  The School District hired Banner Associates, Inc. to complete a preliminary 

engineering report, to outline the work necessary for compliance and establish a time line for 

treatment system repairs and construction. 

Item 2: 

The operator reported that discharge does not reach the discharge structure, but appears to be 
infiltrating.  The operator said that the Cell #2 levels have been fluctuating with weather, snow 
melt, and Bad River flow. The pond lining is in need of repair. 
 

Response:  Plans will be developed to construct and scarify the existing pond banks then 

add with a geosynthetic or clay liner that will seal the ponds to meet infiltration limit 

requirements.  It is anticipated the pond bottoms will have to come up approximately 5 feet to get 

above the ground water influence and provide room for the replacement liners.  This 

reconstruction would occur after or in conjunction with the sludge removal and drying process. 

Item 3: 

The ponds are in need of repair. There is thick co-precipitate sludge in Cell #1’s pond bottom, 

and the dikes are heavily eroded.  Sludge needs to be managed, and dikes need to be repaired. 

Response:  The pond repair will be addressed by Item 2 above.  Banner has had several 

discussions with SD DENR personnel regarding sludge disposal.   TENORM or 

(Technologically-Enhanced, Naturally-Occurring Radioactive Material) sludge is not 

regulated by any federal agency with the exception of EPA.  EPA only regulates TENORM when 

it comes to uranium mill tailings cleanups.  There are no DOT requirements for transporting the 

TENORM sludge.  Some of the potential dangers associated with transporting or handling 

radium-226 and -228 waste is from inhalation of particles and radon gas that are then trapped 

in the lung.  Daughter products of radium-226 and -228  give off gamma radiation.  South 

Dakota does not have an approved radioactive disposal site.  Disposal as a solid waste with a 

solid waste permit is the authority used to dispose of this sludge.  Each state can regulate (or 

not) TENORM as they see necessary.  
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Banner has evaluated several options as follows (with detailed discussion provided later 

in this report):  

1) Increase the pond size and keep the sludge on site if the SD DENR will permit it.  

2) Re-Permit the Existing Philip (RU) Restricted Use Facility to allow disposal of 

TENORM sludge.   

3) Process and haul the sludge to an approved landfill (Rapid City or Pierre).   

Item 4: 

Since the last on-site inspection, the Radium- 226 10-month rolling average limit of 5 pCi/L 
was violated 20 times, and the daily maximum limit of 15 pCi/L was violated 4 times. 

 
Note: During the initial inspection, the operator had some ideas about improving 
treatment. This year, barium chloride will be added to the mixing vats a few days prior to 
initial treatment, hopefully giving it more time to dissolve and allowing better Radium 226 
co-precipitation. Also, the amount of barium chloride solution used for treatment will 
depend on flow from the geothermal well. 

 
-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

 
In the months prior to discharging to the Bad River on 3/24/2014, the operator took 
samples from Cell #2 to evaluate the effectiveness of barium chloride treatment. These 
results would be within compliance if the waters were discharged. 

 
These violations are not acceptable and can lead to enforcement actions, which can include 
fines and penalties. The facility must look into modifications of its operation to ensure 
adequate treatment of the wastewater. 
 

Response:  The former operator indicated that he had revised the chemical feed rate, and 

batched the chemical feed mixture sooner to allow better feed solution.  The revisions made 

by the operator over the previous year appear to have corrected the violations associated 

with Radium 226.  The feed rates will be documented and optimized.  Banner recommends 

the installation of a flow meter and flow paced chemical feed equipment to be placed at the 

upgraded wastewater treatment site to provide a more reliable treatment system.   

 

Item 5: 

There is a floor drain in the barium chloride treatment building that will transport fluid, but the 
operator doesn’t know where it goes. 

The destination of the floor drain must be determined. If it is not to the geothermal wastewater 
ponds, the drain must be plugged or secondary containment must be added. 
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Response:  When the ponds are re-lined the building will likely need to be moved to 

better facilitate water transfer, and more even sludge settling between the two ponds.  Banner 

proposes to design the new floor drain so it will be directed to discharge into the wastewater 

treatment pond.   It currently drains directly into the Bad River.  

 

Item 6: 

The DMRs have been submitted through December 2013. In SWD Permit, page 10, Reporting of 
Monitoring Results, states: 

Effluent monitoring results obtained during the previous 6 month(s) shall be summarized for 

each month and reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report Form (EPA No. 3320-1), 

postmarked no later than the 28th day of the month following the completed reporting period. If 

no discharge occurs during the reporting period, "no discharge" shall be reported. 

DMRs must be submitted to this office on a twice-yearly basis (April 28 and October 28), 
regardless of whether a discharge occurs. Haakon School District must submit its overdue 
discharge monitoring reports. 

Response:  Banner will review the permit requirements with the system operator and 

School District officials so they are aware of this requirement and have proper training and 

procedures in place to be compliant with this requirement. 

 

Item 7: 

The facility is not maintaining the records required by the SWD permit for a minimum of three 
years. 

In your permit, Section 2.7, Retention of Records, states:  of your permit states: 

The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and 

maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring 

instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to 

complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least three years from the date of the 

sample, measurement, report or application. This period may be extended by request of the 

Secretary at any time. Data collected on site, copies of Discharge Monitoring Reports, and a 

copy of this permit must be maintained on site during the duration of activity at the permitted 

location. 

Response:  Banner will review the permit requirements with the system operator and 

School District officials so they are aware of this requirement and have proper training and 

procedures in place to be compliant with this requirement. 

Item 8: 

All pond site inspections conducted by town personnel must be documented in a notebook 
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to be reviewed by SDDENR personnel when an inspection occurs. At a minimum, the 
notebook shall include the following: 

 
1. Date and time of the inspection; 

 
2. Name of the inspector(s); 

 
3. The facility’s discharge status; 

 
4. The measured water depth in all cells and the artificial wetlands; 

 
5. Identification of operational problems and/or maintenance problems; 

 
6. Recommendations, as appropriate, to remedy identified problems; 

 
7. A brief description of any actions taken with regard to problems identified; and 

 
8. Other information, as appropriate. 

 
The inspection notebook is a condition of the SWD permit and must be kept for all future site 
inspections. 

Response:  Banner will review the permit requirements with the system operator and 

School District officials so they are aware of this requirement and have proper training and 

procedures in place to be compliant with this requirement.  A template for the inspection 

notebook has been prepared and is include in the appendix of this report. 

 

4.0   Proposed Treatment System Improvements 

The flow rate of the geothermal system is reported to be approximately 215 gpm at the wellhead 
and is uncontrolled by the school district.  The chemical feed adjustments made by the operator 
appears to allow the system to meet the discharge limits established for Radium 226 based on the 
most recent testing and discharge monitoring report.  The pond is known to be leaking and 
modifications are necessary to bring the system into compliance.  These alterations will impact 
the volume of the ponds.  Calculations were performed to determine if the ponds would still be 
able to meet the required water temperature discharge limit.  Cooling of the water is controlled 
by the surface area of the pond exposed to air and wind speed.  Evaporation provides the bulk of 
the cooling or heat loss.  Records indicate that the average wind speed in Philip, SD is 
approximately 7 mph.  Our calculations indicate that the current pond surface area is adequate to 
cool the water from 140° F down to 85° F with 3 mph wind speed and an ambient air 
temperature of 70° F.  As the ambient air temperature drops the water will cool to a lower 
temperature, thus the critical time is early October or May when the air temperature could be at 
its warmest during the heating season of October 1 to May 1. 

The barium sulfate precipitate is light and is slow to settle thus distance is what is needed for 
good precipitation of the flocculent that is form in the treatment ponds.  Banner recommends the 
installation of a floating baffle down the center of each pond which will double the length of 
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time for the particle to settle to the bottom of the pond.  This baffle will also reduce the risk of 
short circuiting between the pond inlet and outlet. 

We evaluated the possibility of increasing the pond size but found that the property on which the 
ponds are located is not owned by the School District and existing property boundaries eliminate 
the possibility of expansion.  

We evaluated the possibility of buying bulk barium chloride solution which would eliminate the 
bag handling and mixing of the present system.  It was found that the available solution is 
approximately 20% barium Chloride which would require the purchase of approximately 5 times 
the amount in liquid for which drives up the cost by about the same amount, thus this alternative 
was not researched any farther.   

Placing a flow meter in the treatment building that would produce a signal that could pace the 
chemical feeders, would save chemical if the geothermal flow rate was adjusted to match heat 
demand.  Manual feeds are set for the highest flow rate and waste chemical when the flow rates 
are reduced due to the heat demand.  Running the system wide open at peak demand also wastes 
chemical because all of the water needs to be treated and the geothermal value of the water is 
wasted because the demand for heat does not match the available BTU delivered by the water.  
Cooling the water from 140° F down to 85° F wastes or costs approximately 6 million BTU/hr.  
1.8 million BTU/hour could be saved if the flow rate could be reduced down to 150 gpm during 
low heat demand periods. 

The operator stated that a mixture of 55 lbs of Barium Chloride was mixed with 100 gallons of 
water.  The treatment building has two mixing tanks, each holding 100 gallons.  The feed rate 
was set such that these 200 gallons of solution was mixed with the water in a 24 your period.  
Therefor 110 lbs. of Barium Chloride was used each day and at a flow rate of 200 gpm that 
would translate to a feed rate of 45.9 ppm.  The operator reported that this feed rate reduced the 
radium concentration down to a range of 1.5 to 4 PCi/L per month.  Thus the 10 month moving 
average of 5 PCi/L was being met as of the 2013/2014 operating season. 

Another problem at the existing pond is the underground piping.  The barium sulfite precipitation 
coats and plugs underground piping that is not cleaned on a semi-annual basis.  All existing pipe 
has been abandoned because of the plugging problem.  Thus Banner recommends going to an 
open channel concrete trough with baffles for water transfer between ponds and the effluent line.  
The open trough will lend itself to cleaning on a regular basis and provide access for different 
means of cleaning.  We also recommend rebuilding or relocating the existing treatment building 
and constructing a second mixing trough that goes into cell #2.  This will allow the operator to 
take either cell out of operation for maintenance if necessary.  See proposed layout plan in the 
appendix. 

5.0 Sludge Ponds and Sludge Disposal  

A)  The basis for sizing of the upgraded ponds is as described above.   After studying 
available contour and flood plain maps, and after discussion with the former operator of 
the system, it is recommended that the existing pond bottoms be raised by approximately 
five (5) feet in order to avoid ground water influence on the upgraded ponds/liners 
system.   
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Both a PP (polypropylene)  membrane liner and a geosynthetic bentonitic liner were 
evaluated, and either type can be considered during the final design stage when the ponds 
need to be reconstructed in the future.    A concrete revetment is proposed at either end of 
Cells 1 or 2 to allow for ease of removal of sludge without damaging the liner systems.   
The Costs for either type of liner system are approximately the same, and have been 
included in the estimate (See the Appendix for the Material Quotes).   

B)  TENORM Sludge Handling/Disposal Options: 

Note: Technologically Enhanced Naturally Occurring Radioactive Material = TENORM 

1) Bury in the vicinity of the existing WWTP -  The current property ownership and 

lease boundary conditions would not allow for this option.   The facility is located on 

private property currently under a lease agreement between the School District and the 

property owner.  The current property owner uses the surrounding property, outside the 

perimeter fencing of the treatment area, for cattle grazing, and likely would not be open 

to granting additional easements to dispose of waste sludge materials according to the 

School Superintendent.   A secondary, but important technical reason, for not 

recommending this option is due to the high water table present in close proximity to the 

Bad River.    

2) Bury on school property-  Banner was requested to evaluate the feasibility of 

burying the sludge north of the School Administration Offices on school property.   

Banner approached the DENR concerning this option, and found that it may be difficult 

to gain permission from DENR for a new permitted restricted use landfill facility.    The 

location is indicated on the Sludge Disposal Location Map in the appendix.   

3) Transport and dispose at Pierre Landfill – The Landfill Manager in Pierre has 

been approached by the School District and they are open to receiving the sludge 

material.  Both the Rapid City and Pierre landfills are allowed to receive the material, 

according to the SD DENR.   The current tipping fee is nominal ($11.62/ton) for the 

Pierre Landfill site.    This is subject to price change in 2015.    The Rapid City tipping 

fee would be 3 to 4 times higher than this, and the material is not approved for disposal in 

Rapid City.   A special request would have to be made by the City/School District in 

order to receive a permit to dispose of sludge at the RC Landfill.   The mileage from 

Philip to either of the two landfills is approximately the same-  120 miles.   The location 

for the Pierre Landfill is shown on the map in the appendix.    Note:   An area must be 

identified to facilitate the drying of the sludge prior to transport or landfilling (sufficient 

to pass ASTM paint filter test requirements).   

4) Transport and Dispose at the Philip Restricted Use landfill facility, with an 

amendment to the current RU (Restricted Use) Permit---   According to the SD DENR, an 

application for review and amendment would have to go thru public hearings first as part 

of the process to amend the town’s (#13-01) Type IV Facility Permit.   The RU facility is 
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located approximately one half mile south of the lagoons location.   See the sludge 

disposal map, Sheet 3 in the appendix.   This may not be the lowest cost alternative if 

additional soils investigation and liners need to be added at the existing facility, which 

would also be subject to Public Hearing and Notice requirements.   

5) Volume of Sludge Estimated:  100-150 cubic yards, or 115 tons (assuming 1500 

lbs./cubic yard dry density, and 150 c.y.)    Calculations are found in the Appendix.   

6.0 Safe Handling of Materials and PPE (Personal Protective Equipment):     

1) A cost estimate allowance has been provided for the safe handling of the barium 
chloride treatment materials.     Both ergonomic and safety improvements are 
recommended.   See the Appendix for the BaCL2 Material Safety Data Sheet.   

7.0 Proposed Phasing Schedule:   

1) Immediate compliance issues (2014/2015) ---   immediate/low cost repair items that 
are recommended to be done during the next year of well operation.    
 
The new operator should be trained on permit requirements and reporting.  An 
inspection log was created to record flow readings and treatment records.  Discharge 
sampling should be completed in accordance with the permit requirements and 
samples submitted to a properly certified laboratory for testing.  The results should be 
monitored so that adjustment to the chemical feed rates can be made in order to meet 
the effluent permit limits. 
 
It is anticipated that a new treatment building will be constructed concurrent with the 
existing ponds sludge removal operations, pond re-building, re- lining and re-piping.   
However, that upgrade work may not take place for at least 2 to 3 years, thus in the 
interim the existing treatment building floor drain should be plugged or the drain pipe 
re-routed to the ponds.  
 

2) Recommended Short Term Compliance Plan for balance of treatment plant and 
lagoon ponds upgrades:  
 
      Obtain Funding:      2015 
 Engineering and Bidding:    2016 
 Construction:   2017 
 
 

8.0    Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost 

 
The proposed total budget cost for the project, including construction, engineering 
fees, and administration is approximately $640,000.00 (2014 Cost Basis).   See 
Appendix B for a detailed breakdown.    
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Haakon County School District

Philip, SD

September 8, 2014

Preliminary Report and Cost Estimate

BaCl Treatment Plant Unit Quantity Unit Cost Total

1 Mobilization LS 1 18,000.00 18,000.00

2 Bonds/Insurance LS 1 10,000.00 10,000.00

3 Remove Exist. Appurts. LS 1 3,500.00 3,500.00

4 Sludge Removal tons 120 $20.00 $2,400.00

5 Sludge Dewatering tons 120 $15.00 $1,800.00

6 Sludge Hauling tons 80 $50.00 $4,000.00

7 Landfill Tipping Fee tons 80 $15.00 $1,200.00

8 Pond Earthwork  CY 3000 $10.00 $30,000.00

9 Pond Relining SF 45000 $1.20 $54,000.00

10 Pond Baffle Wall LF 320 $100.00 $32,000.00

11 Pond Depth Measurement Each 2 $600.00 $1,200.00

12 Pond revetment for sludge removal LS 1 $60,000.00 $60,000.00

13 Open Channel water transfer Each 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

14 New Treatment Building LS 1 $45,000.00 $45,000.00

15 Electrical, Plumbing, Hvac LS 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

16 Flow meter Each 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

17 Flow paced chemical feeders Each 2 $18,000.00 $36,000.00

18 Open Channel discharge structure/meter Each 2 $5,000.00 $10,000.00

19 Material handling Each 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

20 Feed Line Extensions LS 1 $7,600.00 $7,600.00

21 Road and Gate Improvements LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

22 Abandon/Demolish Exist. Facilities LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

23 Scada System LS 1 $55,000.00 $55,000.00

24 Miscellaneous appurtenances LS 1 43,000.00$  $43,000.00

Sub Total $498,700.00

Contingency 10% $52,000.00

 Construction Total $550,700.00

 Engrg., Admin., C.A. $90,000.00

Total Project Budget $640,700.00
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Year Philip Geothermal Heating System

Month Inspection Record - Wastewater Treatment System
Pond Water Depth

Date Time Inspector

GeoThermal 

Flow (gpm)

Discharge 

Status

Discharge 

Flow (gpm)

Discharge 

Water Temp. Cell 1 Cell 2 Operation Problems or Maintenance required Recommendation Action Taken Comments/Notes

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Chemical Feed Rate: Date:

Name Phone # cost

Chemical Bulk storage Supplier:

Bulk Ordered (bags) :

Bags used : this month

       Bags remaining :
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DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT 
and NATURAL RESOURCES 

JOE FOSS BUILDING 
523 EAST CAPITOL 

PIERRE, SOUTH DAKOTA 57501-3182 

denr.sd.gov 

 
May 5, 2014 
 
Mr. Kevin Morehart 
Superintendent, Haakon School District 
PO Box 730 
Philip, SD, 57567 
 
RE: Surface Water Discharge Compliance Inspection (SWD Permit Number: SD0025569) 
 
Dear Mr. Morehart: 
 
The South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources conducted a Surface Water 
Discharge Compliance Inspection of the Haakon School District’s wastewater treatment facility on 
September 4, 2013. A follow-up inspection was conducted on March 26, 2014, to visit the facility while 
the geothermal system was discharging. I appreciate Mr. Steve Leithauser’s time and cooperation in 
supplying the requested information.  
 
I have attached an inspection summary and a copy of the inspection report. Please pay special attention to 
the inspection summary tables and implement the required corrective actions as soon as possible. All 
corrective actions taken will be reviewed during our next inspection at your facility.  
 
The 2009 on-site inspection also called for significant repairs or upgrades in order to remain in 
compliance. To date, these repairs have not been addressed and Radium-226 limit violations have 
continued. Therefore, a construction schedule will be placed into Haakon School District’s permit. The 
schedule will require the District to make the necessary upgrades to keep the facility in compliance. By 

August 1, 2014, the district is required to submit a plan to SDDENR on hiring an engineer to 

evaluate the system and on repairing the system.  Note that the permit is up for renewal, and this 

plan for repairs will be written into the new permit as a construction schedule. Failure to comply 

could result in an enforcement action and applicable fines. 

 
Please review this report for accuracy, and respond by June 30 with any needed corrections. If you have 
any questions about this letter, the inspection reports, or the compliance schedule, please contact me at 
(605) 773-3351. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Kathleen Grigg 
Engineer I 
Surface Water Quality Program 
Enclosures 
cc:  Steve Leithauser, Operator, Haakon School District 

Scott Brech, President, Haakon 27-1 Board of Education 
 SWD File - Pierre 



 
INSPECTION SUMMARY 

 
 

Facility:      Haakon School District Wastewater Treatment Facility 
 
SWD Permit:      SD0025569 
 
Inspection Date: September 4, 2013 
 
Follow-up Date: March 26, 2014 
 
The following comments detail violations of the permit that were identified during the 
inspection. Corrective actions are required for the district to come into compliance with its 
surface water discharge permit. 
 

COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 

Haakon School District wastewater treatment 
facility is in need of significant repairs or 
upgrades in order to remain in compliance with 
their SWD permit.  

This was noted during the last on-site 

inspection on September 8, 2009. As of the 

September 13, 2013 inspection, no repairs or 

upgrades have been made to the system. 

After conducting this inspection, and noting 
that the issue has not been addressed, a 
construction schedule is being developed. It 
will require the necessary upgrades and safety 
precautions for keeping the facility in 
compliance. By August 1, 2014, the district is 

required to submit a plan to SDDENR to 

hire an engineer to evaluate the facility and 

make repairs. In addition, because no work 
has been performed, a construction schedule 
will be added to the permit to ensure upgrades 
to the facility are met.  

The operator reported that discharge does not 
reach the discharge structure, but appears to be 
infiltrating. 

-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

The operator said that the Cell #2 levels 
have been fluctuating with weather, snow 
melt, and Bad River flow. 

On 3/24/2014, flow from the WWTF 
reached the discharge pipe for the first time 
during the heating season. The operator has 
been sampling as required by the SWD 
permit. 

The pond lining is in need of repair. 

By August 1, 2014, the district is required to 

submit a plan to SDDENR to hire an 

engineer to evaluate the facility and make 

repairs. This is one of the issues that will need 
to be addressed. 



 
COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 

The ponds are in need of repair. There is thick 
co-precipitate sludge in Cell #1’s pond bottom, 
and the dikes are heavily eroded.  

This was noted in the last on-site inspection.  

Sludge needs to be managed, and dikes need to 
be repaired. 

By August 1, 2014, the district is required to 

submit a plan to SDDENR to hire an 

engineer to evaluate the facility and make 

repairs. This is one of the issues that will need 
to be addressed. 

Since the last on-site inspection, the Radium-
226 10-month rolling average limit of 5 pCi/L 
was violated 20 times, and the daily maximum 
limit of 15 pCi/L was violated 4 times. 

Multiple limit violations were noted in the 

last on-site inspection. 

Note: During the initial inspection, the 
operator had some ideas about improving 
treatment. This year, barium chloride will 
be added to the mixing vats a few days 
prior to initial treatment, hopefully giving it 
more time to dissolve and allowing better 
Radium 226 co-precipitation. Also, the 
amount of barium chloride solution used 
for treatment will depend on flow from the 
geothermal well. 

-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

In the months prior to discharging to the 
Bad River on 3/24/2014, the operator took 
samples from Cell #2 to evaluate the 
effectiveness of barium chloride treatment. 
These results would be within compliance 
if the waters were discharged. 

Radium-226 results from the discharge 
samples are not in yet. 

These violations are not acceptable and can 
lead to enforcement actions, which can include 
fines and penalties. The facility must look into 
modifications of its operation to ensure 
adequate treatment of the wastewater. 

 

There is a floor drain in the barium chloride 
treatment building that will transport fluid, but 
the operator doesn’t know where it goes. 

The destination of the floor drain must be 
determined. If it is not to the geothermal 
wastewater ponds, the drain must be plugged 
or secondary containment must be added. 



 
COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 

The district has not been submitting Discharge 
Monitoring Reports (DMRs) since January 
2013.  

-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

The DMRs have since been submitted 
through December 2013. 

In your SWD Permit, page 10, Reporting of 
Monitoring Results, states: 

Effluent monitoring results obtained 

during the previous 6 month(s) shall be 

summarized for each month and 

reported on a Discharge Monitoring 

Report Form (EPA No. 3320-1), 

postmarked no later than the 28
th

 day of 

the month following the completed 

reporting period. If no discharge 

occurs during the reporting period, "no 

discharge" shall be reported.  

DMRs must be submitted to this office on a 
twice-yearly basis (April 28 and October 28), 
regardless of whether a discharge occurs. 
Haakon School District must submit its 
overdue discharge monitoring reports.  

The facility is not maintaining the records 
required by the SWD permit for a minimum of 
three years.  

 

 

 

In your permit, Section 2.7, Retention of 
Records, states:  of your permit states: 

The permittee shall retain records of all 

monitoring information, including all 

calibration and maintenance records and all 

original strip chart recordings for 

continuous monitoring instrumentation, 

copies of all reports required by this permit, 

and records of all data used to complete the 

application for this permit, for a period of at 

least three years from the date of the 

sample, measurement, report or application. 

This period may be extended by request of 

the Secretary at any time. Data collected on 

site, copies of Discharge Monitoring 

Reports, and a copy of this permit must be 

maintained on site during the duration of 

activity at the permitted location. 



 
COMMENTS REQUIRED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 

The operator is not keeping an inspection 
notebook for the wastewater treatment facility. 
Instead, there is a calendar hanging in the 
mixing vat shed at the pond area with minimal 
notes about inspections during discharging 
season. 

-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

The operator has been keeping detailed 
notes of his daily inspections at the facility, 
including pond depth-to-water, discharging 
status, and treatment activities. 

All pond site inspections conducted by town 
personnel must be documented in a notebook 
to be reviewed by SDDENR personnel when 
an inspection occurs. At a minimum, the 
notebook shall include the following: 

1. Date and time of the inspection; 

2. Name of the inspector(s); 

3. The facility’s discharge status; 

4. The measured water depth in all cells and 
the artificial wetlands; 

5. Identification of operational problems 
and/or maintenance problems; 

6. Recommendations, as appropriate, to 
remedy identified problems; 

7. A brief description of any actions taken 
with regard to problems identified; and 

8. Other information, as appropriate. 

The inspection notebook is a condition of the 
SWD permit and must be kept for all future 
site inspections. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
The following comments and corrective actions are recommended and are items that will 
improve the operation of your facility. 
 

COMMENTS RECOMMENDED CORRECTIVE 

ACTIONS 

The operator would benefit from more training 
on safely handling the powdered barium 
chloride, as well as appropriate safety 
equipment. 

This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

The United States Centers for Disease Control 
(USCDC) barium chloride pocket guide is at 
http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/npg/npgd0045.html 
(accessed 3/27/2014). 

Powdered barium chloride is used to co-
precipitate the Radium-226 out of the 
wastewater. According to the USCDC, 
recommended safety equipment includes a 
supplied-air respirator, appropriate personal 
protective clothing to prevent skin contact, and 
appropriate eye protection to prevent eye 
contact. 

We would like to encourage you to give Mr. 
Leithauser or another operator of Haakon 
School District the opportunity to attend the 
wastewater training courses sponsored by the 
state to upgrade skills and share knowledge 
concerning the operation and maintenance of 
municipal wastewater systems. 

For more information as to dates and locations 
of upcoming courses in your area, contact 
South Dakota Association of Rural Water 
Systems, under contract with DENR, at 203 
Center Street W., Madison, SD 57042. Phone: 
(605) 556-7219. Website: 
http://www.sdarws.com. 

There are no pond depth indicators in either 
cell. 

This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

-FOLLOW-UP INSPECTION COMMENTS: 

The operator has been measuring depth-to-
water from the raised structure in Cell #2. 

Pond depth indicators should be installed in 
each cell, with readings recorded during each 
inspection. These records will be helpful in 
determining flow to the ponds and aid in 
maintaining the proper operating depths in the 
ponds at all times. 

Emergency procedures have not been 
established in case of a major storm event, a 
wastewater line break, or a chemical release 
into the system. 

This was noted in the last on-site inspection. 

The facility may wish to consider establishing 
written emergency procedures to ensure the 
school staff is prepared to address emergencies 
that may arise during the operation of the 
wastewater collection and treatment system. 

http://www.cdc.gov/niosh/npg/npgd0045.html


 
NON-MECHANICAL FACILITY 
INSPECTION CHECKLIST 
SOUTH DAKOTA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL 
RESOURCES 

 
 
 

I. General Facility Information 

 

Name Haakon School District Wastewater Treatment Facility 

Location Within Phillip city limits to the Northeast ¼ of Section 23, T1N, R20E, Haakon County 

SWD Permit No. SD0025569 

Contact Person / Title Steve Leithauser / Operator 
Phone Number 
(Cell) (605) 685-5095 

Responsible Party/Title Kevin Morehart / Superintendent 
Phone Number 
(Office, Cell, Home, Etc) (605) 859-2679 

Persons present during the inspection: 

Name Title/Phone  Affiliation 

Steve Leithauser Operator / (605) 685-5095 Haakon School District 

Kathleen Grigg Engineer I / (605) 773-3351 SDDENR 

Jonathan Hill Engineer II / (605) 773-3351 SDDENR 

   

Mailing Address P.O. Box 730, Philip, SD 57567 

Street Address N/A 

Inspection Date September 4, 2013 Last Inspection Date 
September 23, 2011 (FR) 

September 9, 2009 (OS) 

Entrance Time 10:00 am Exit Time 1:30 pm 

Permit Effective Date April 1, 2007 Permit Expiration Date March 31, 2012 

Avg. Reported Flow Rate 194 to 198 GPM Avg. Design Flow Rate 300 GPM 

Population Served N/A 
Design Population 
Equivalent (if known) N/A 

Date Facility Began 
Operation 1981 

Dates of Facility 
Upgrades None 

Receiving Water: Bad River 

Classification: 6, 8, 9, 10 

 

Note: Persons present during the follow-up inspection on March 26, 2014: 
Steve Leithauser, Kathleen Grigg, and Albert Spangler (SDDENR). 

 
 
 

For office use only: OMA Yes   OME Yes   SEV Yes   ENF Yes  
                                     No                               No                               No                      No  
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Facility Description from Statement of Basis: 

 
The Haakon School District 27-1 uses an on-site geothermal well for heating campus buildings during the 
school year (October through May). The facility is located within the city of Philip in the northeast ¼ of Section 
23, Township 1 North, Range 20 East in Haakon County, South Dakota (Latitude 44° 02' 07.1", Longitude 101° 
40' 20.3", Navigational Quality GPS). 
 
The well is approximately 4000 feet deep and is completed in the Madison Formation. Hot water flows from the 
well at about 150ºF and passes through heat exchangers. The cooled water (about 130ºF) then flows via 
gravity from the buildings to a two-cell pond system. The system has a high water surface area of about 0.5 
acres. The water has high levels of naturally-occurring radium-226 and must be treated prior to discharge. 
Treatment consists of further cooling and the addition of barium chloride. The barium chloride reduces the 
concentration of radium-226 through chemical coprecipitation. Discharge from the facility varies depending on 
the building heating needs. The facility typically discharges for approximately 207 days per year with no 
discharge occurring during the summer months (June through September). 
 
The facility began operation in 1981. This geothermal well is also covered under Water Rights permit 1633-2. 
 
 
Does the facility match the above description? Yes* 
 
If not, describe facility modifications or changes. None. 
 
Is a permit modification needed? No. 
 
 
Comments: *Mr. Leithauser did say that this facility description was correct. During the last on-site inspection in 
2009, this was noted and recommended to be added: 
 

The geothermal heating system is no longer used exclusively for the school system. Eight downtown 
businesses have been connected to the geothermal heating system. The description of the system 
should also indicate that the two stabilization ponds are both approximately 0.3 acres in size. 

 
The 2009 inspection also called for upgrades to the facility, and a safety assessment to make sure that the 
barium chloride is being handled properly. After conducting this inspection, and noting that the required actions 
have not been addressed, a construction schedule will be included when the facility’s permit is renewed. The 
construction schedule will require the necessary upgrades and safety precautions for keeping the facility in 
compliance. 
 
For this inspection, a response letter will be required; it must include a plan to hire an engineer to evaluate the 
facility. The permit is up for renewal, and this plan for repairs will be written into the new permit as a compliance 
schedule.
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II. Personnel Inventory and Budget 

 
Number of personnel: 1 

 
Certification Class I Class II Class III Class IV 

Wastewater Treatment 0    

Wastewater Collection 0    

 
Is a certified operator required? If yes, what classification is required? Not required 

 
 
Budget: N/A 

 

Annual wastewater expenses  $ N/A Residential Sewer Use Fee $ N/A 

Annual wastewater revenue  $ N/A Commercial Sewer Use Fee $ N/A 

Describe any wastewater projects 
planned during the next three years.  

None. 

 

Describe measures taken  
to raise funds for the project(s). 

N/A 

 

Personnel and budget comments: Expenses for operating the facility are included in the school’s maintenance 
budget. Businesses in town that have been hooked up to the geothermal heating system are charged for the 
service. 

 

III. Required Recordkeeping and Reporting 

 
Permit Verification 

   Yes No N/A 

1. Is a current copy of the permit and other related materials readily available?  X   

      

2. Are the number and location of discharge points as described in the permit? If no,   X   

 explain.      

      

3. Is the facility information correct in the database? If not, list corrected information below.   X  

 See comments      

      

4.  Is the facility information correct in ICIS ? If not, list corrected information below.   X  

 See comments     

      

5. Has there been any new, different, or increased loading to the WWTF? If yes, describe    X  

 changes.      

      

6. Are influent flows increasing or decreasing? Same     

       

7. List any industries/non-domestic contributors.     

 None     

 
Permit verification comments: Mr. Leithauser, the new operator, started in May 2013. The last operator, Mr. 
Williams, no longer works at the school. The database and ICIS have been updated. 
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Inspection Records 

   Yes No N/A 

1. The following necessary information is current, complete, and reasonably available:     

 a. Inspection notebooks for the WWTF with the following information:   X  

  i. Date and time of the inspection  X   

  Ii Name or initials of inspector   X  

  iii. Facility’s discharge status  X   

  iv. Measured depth of the ponds or measured freeboard   X  

  v. Identification of operational/maintenance problems   X  

  vi. Recommendations to remedy problems   X  

  vii. Steps taken to remedy problems   X  

 b. Lab results  X   

 c. pH testing   X   

 d. Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs)  X   

 e. Emergency discharge forms    X 

 f. Other:     X 

 g. Other:     X 

      

2. Is information is maintained for the required 3-year period?   X  

 
Inspection records comments: Mr. Leithauser is new to the school district. SDDENR spent some time 
discussing how to fill out DMRs, how to calculate a 10-month rolling average, when to submit DMRs, how to 
ice samples, etc. Inspection records need to be retained for 3-years. Presently the discharge season 
inspection notes are recorded on a calendar in the mixing vat shed. Inspection notebooks need to be kept 
and filled out. 

Follow-up Inspection Comments: The operator has been keeping detailed notes of his daily inspections 
at the facility, including pond depth-to-water, discharging status, and treatment activities. 

 

Sampling and Laboratory Information 

   Yes No N/A 

1. The following sampling and analysis requirements are met:     
 a. Dates, times, locations of sampling are recorded.  X   

 b. Initials of person performing sampling are recorded.   X  

 c. The pH meter meets the following specifications:  X   

  i. Capable of simultaneous two-point calibration  X   

  ii. Reads to two decimal places  X   

  iii. Temperature compensation adjustment  X   

 d. pH meter is calibrated properly before use.  X   

 e. pH calibration logbook is maintained with the following information:     
 i. Date  X   

 ii. Time  X   

 iii. Initials of person performing calibration  X   

 iv. 7 buffer reading  X   

 v. 10 buffer reading  X   

 vi. Temperature of buffer  X   

 vii. Buffer expiration date  X   

 f.  Is the permittee performing any other tests?   X  

      

2. Are samples taken at sampling location specified by permit?   X   

       
3. Is the permittee using the method of sample collection required by the permit?  X   

 Required method: Instantaneous, grab, and visual samples     
 If not, explain:      

4. Sample collection procedures adequate and include:     
 a. Sample refrigeration during compositing.   X 

 b. Proper preservation techniques.   X 



 

5 

   Yes No N/A 

 c. Containers in conformance with 40 CFR 136.3. X   

  Specify any problems:     

 
5.   Laboratory Information (from lab result sheets) 
 Name: State Health Lab 

 Address: 615 E 4th Street, Pierre, SD 57501 

 Contact:  

 Phone: 605-773-3361 

 Parameters tested: TSS, TDS, Radium 226 

 Dates, times, and initials of person performing analyses are recorded: Yes 

 
Sampling and laboratory comments: The person doing the sampling has not been initialing the sample 
information. 

 
Flow Measurement: 
Type of effluent flow measurement device: Flow is measured at the wellhead.  

   Yes No N/A 

1. Is flow measured at each outfall? Number of outfalls: 1   X  

2. Are facility personnel calculating flows properly?   X   

3. Are the proper flow tables used by facility personnel?    X 

4. If flow measurement equipment adequate to handle expected ranges of flow rate?  X   

 
Comments on effluent flow measurement: Flow is measured at the geothermal wellhead. The facility does not 
have an effluent flow measurement device. Mr. Leithauser said the last operator told him that wastewater 
doesn’t reach the discharge pipe until late in the heating season. Based on the size of the two ponds and 
geothermal well pumping rate (175-185 gpm), there is likely an infiltration issue in the ponds. 

 
Self-Monitoring Reporting Information 

   Yes No N/A 

1.  Operator is aware of permit conditions (especially SSO and violation reporting?)  X   

2.  Is the facility required to obtain permission from the department before discharging?   X  

 a. If yes, has the facility requested permission to discharges?    X 

 b. If yes, has the facility received permission to discharges?    X 

 c, If yes, has the facility been denied permission to discharge?    X 

3.  Is the facility approved for NetDMR? (If so, there will be no DMRs in the file after the 
approval date.) 

 
 X  

   

4.  Are DMRs being submitted to DENR as required by the permit?   X  

 a. Are they submitted on time?  X  
Use the attached DMR Calculations Form to help answer 5 – 8 for most recent discharges.    

5.  Is monitoring for required parameters performed at least as frequently as required by  X   

 the permit?     

 a. Are they sampling more frequently?   X  

6.  Is the geometric mean properly calculated and recorded for fecal/total coliform data?    X 

7.  Are weekly and monthly averages calculated properly and reported on the DMR?   X  

8.  Are the maximum and minimum values of all data points reported properly?  X   

9.  Is the number of exceedances column (NO. EX) completed properly?  X   

10.  Is the permit signatory or authorized representative signing the DMRs?  X   

11.  Are sample types reported properly?  X   

12. D Does the facility do WET testing? If so, Acute or Chronic?   X  

 
Self-monitoring or DMR comments:  
At the time of inspection, the last DMR received was December 2012, so the DMRs through June 2013 were 
late and missing. Also, 6 DMRs from 2012 were received late. The October 2012 DMR and sample lab reports 
were reviewed. Most values were reported correctly, except the daily maximum was reported for Total 
Dissolved Solids (TDS) for both the daily maximum and the 30-day average. The samples, calculation results, 
and DMR-reported values are attached. 

Follow-Up Inspection comments: The DMRs have since been submitted through December 2013. 
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DMR Calculations Form 
Month of October 2012 

 

Week 1 (10/28 – 11/3) 

Date TSS 
(mg/L) 

TDS 
(mg/L) 

pH Flow 
(gpm) 

Temp  
(ºF) 

10/29/2012 <3 1089 7.96 194 77.6 

10/30/2012 <3 1083 7.94 194 81.4 

10/31/2012 3 1085 7.98 194 81.1 

Week Total 9 3257 ---------- ------------ ---------- 

÷ # of Samples 3 3 ---------- ------------ ---------- 

=7-Day Avg. N/A N/A ---------- ------------ ---------- 

Monthly Summary 

Date TSS 
(mg/L) 

TDS 
(mg/L) 

pH Flow 
(gpm) 

Temp 
(ºF) 

Daily Max. ------------- ------------- 7.98 194 81.4 

Daily Min. ------------- ------------- 7.94 ------------- --------- 

Max. 7-day Avg. ------------- ------------- ------------ ------------- --------- 

Month Total 9 3257 ------------ 582 240.1 

÷ # of Samples 3 3 ------------ 3 3 

=30-Day Avg. 3 1085.67 ------------ 194 80.03 

Reported on DMR 

Date TSS 
(mg/L) 

TDS 
(mg/L) 

pH Flow 
(gpm) 

Temp 
(ºF) 

Daily Max. ------------- ------------- 7.98 194 81.4 

Daily Min. ------------- ------------- 7.94 ------------- --------- 

Max. 7-day Avg. ------------- ------------- ------------ ------------- --------- 

30-Day Avg. 3 1089 ------------ 194 80.0 

 
 

Notes:  Units on the DMR were recorded in ºF for temperature and gpm for 
flow; this is as printed on the DMR form. 

 
 The 7-Day Average does not apply because the week of 10/28 to 11/3 is 

reported on the November DMR. 
 
 For Total Dissolved Solids (TDS), daily maximum was reported for the 

30-day average. 
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Radium-226 Samples 
State Health Lab Sample Reports 

12/07/2010 to 05/14/2013 
 

Date Radium-226 (pCi/L) 

12/07/2010 13.7 

01/04/2011 17.1 

02/03/2011 19.3 

03/02/2011 5.4 

04/06/2011 6.4 

05/02/2011 5.4 

10/24/2011 2.7 

10/25/2011 6.7 

10/26/2011 1.9 

11/01/2011 3.5 

11/07/2011 3.4 

11/14/2011 1.6 

12/07/2011 7.5 

01/03/2012 6.7 

02/06/2012 1.7 

03/05/2012 2.7 

04/02/2012 0.8 

05/02/2012 3.4 

10/29/2012 6.5 

10/30/2012 3.6 

10/31/2012 5.4 

11/07/2012 3.5 

11/14/2012 6.7 

11/28/2012 1.7 

12/17/2012 11.1 

01/22/2013 5.9 

02/19/2013 5.7 

04/16/2013 9.4 

05/14/2013 2.9 
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Radium-226 10-month Rolling Average 
Calculated from State Health Lab Sample Reports 

12/07/2010 to 05/14/2013 
 

Month Year 
Calculated 10-month Rolling 
Average (pCi/L) 

DMR Reported 10-month 
Rolling Average Value (pCi/L) 

September 2011 No Discharge No Discharge 

October 2011 8.11 8.11 

November 2011 5.63 5.63 

December 2011 4.45 4.45 

January 2012 4.58 4.58 

February 2012 4.11 4.11 

March 2012 3.84 3.84 

April 2012 3.56 3.56 

May 2012 3.55 3.55 

June 2012 No Discharge No Discharge 

July 2012 No Discharge No Discharge 

August 2012 No Discharge No Discharge 

September 2012 No Discharge No Discharge 

October 2012 3.85 3.85 

November 2012 3.60 3.60 

December 2012 4.54 4.50 

January 2013 4.86 4.86 

February 2013 5.35 5.35 

March 2013 5.57 5.62 

April 2013 5.95 5.96 

May 2013 5.67 5.7 

June 2013 No Discharge No discharge 

July 2013 No Discharge No Discharge 
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IV. Facility Compliance Review 

    

Effluent Violations  Yes No N/A 

1. Has the facility discharged since the last inspection? If yes, list how many. Continuous
*
  X   

2. Is the facility in compliance with all effluent limits since the last inspection?       
*Heating months

   X  

 a. Effluent BOD5 violations. If yes, how many?     X 

 b. Effluent TSS violations. If yes, how many?    X  

 c. Effluent pH violations. If yes, how many?    X  

 d. Effluent ammonia violations. If yes, how many?     X 

 e. Effluent fecal coliform violations. If yes, how many?     X 

 f. Effluent total coliform violations. If yes, how many?     X 

 h. Effluent temperature violations. If yes, how many?    X  

 i. Effluent TRC violations. If yes, how many?     X 

 j. Other violations. If yes, list parameter and number of occurrences.             TDS, 0   X  

                                                                                                  Radium-226, 8  X   
 
Effluent violations comments: Since the last on-site inspection, the Radium-226 10-month rolling average limit 
of 5 pCi/L was violated 20 times, and the daily maximum limit of 15 pCi/L was violated 4 times. 
 
Compliance Schedule 

   Yes No N/A 

1. Is the facility subject to a compliance schedule either in its permit or in an    X  

 enforcement action? If yes, note date and type of enforcement action.      

      

2. List milestones that remain in the schedule:      

      

3. 
Has facility has missed milestone dates? If yes 
explain: 

    X 

4. Will the facility meet or do they plan to meet final compliance schedule date?    X 

 
Compliance schedule comments: A construction schedule to address violations, and upgrades will be required 
with the permit renewal. 
 
Facility Review 

   Yes No N/A 

1. Are written emergency procedures established (in the event of a major storm event,   X  

 a chemical release into the sewer system, a sewer main break, etc.)?     

      

2. Can the facility be bypassed (internal, collection system, total)? Describe bypass    X  

 procedures:      

      

3. Does the facility accept hauled (septage) wastes? If yes, list amount and hauler contact   X  

 information.      

      

4. Does the facility accept industrial or nondomestic wastes? If yes, list amount and    X  

 sources.      

      

5. Has the facility experienced problems with industrial or hauled wastes? If yes, explain:   X  

      

      

6. Are the non-domestic users regulated by sewer ordinance? If yes, attach relevant    X  

 ordinance.      

 
Facility review comments: Mr. Leithauser said the school and businesses know the emergency contacts. 
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V. Collection System 

 
Piping and Manholes 

 
 Type of Collection System 

 
  

   Yes No N/A 

1. Is a routine sewer-cleaning schedule maintained? If yes, what is the schedule    X 

 and what type of equipment is used?      

      

2. Have sewer backups occurred into basements during high flows since the last  
 

  X 

 inspection? If yes, explain:     

      

If overflows occurred at this facility, the information from question 3 should be entered in the SSO database. 

   Yes No N/A 

3. Have manholes overflowed during high flows? If yes, give dates, volumes, receiving     X 

 waters, etc.      

      

4. Was DENR notified of any overflows or unauthorized releases? If no, why not?    X 

      

      

5. Were samples taken of the overflow/unauthorized release? If yes, list the sample results    X 

 in the comment section below. If no, explain.      

      

6. Have bypasses occurred from the collection system (including lift stations) since the last    X 

 inspection? If yes, explain (date, volumes, receiving water, etc.)     

      

      

7. Does the community have a sump pump ordinance? If yes, how is it enforced?    X 

      

      

8. Has testing for inflow/infiltration sources been conducted since the last inspection?    X 

 If yes, describe testing.      

      

9. Have sources of inflow/infiltration been identified?    X 
      

10. Have measures been taken to correct inflow/infiltration problems?    X 

      
11. Has the collection system been upgraded since the last inspection? If yes, describe:    X 

      

 
Piping and manhole comments: This is a geothermal heating system, so this part of the inspection checklist 
does not directly apply. While the school is discharging, the heating screens get cleaned daily. The big 
mixing vats get cleaned at the end of the year. 

 
 
 

 Separate  Combined (San + Storm) 

 Both  Other 
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VI. Treatment Processes 

 
Stabilization Ponds 

Item Comments 

Inspection frequency 
Monthly during no discharge, every couple of days during 

discharge 

Weeds and/or trees growing on the dikes Yes in Cell #2, not as bad in Cell #1 

Vegetation growing in the ponds Yes in Cell #2, not in Cell #1 

Pond dikes protected from erosion with riprap No 

Dike structure failure (sloughing and/or sagging) Yes 

    Evidence of erosion The banks are slumping in both Cell #1 and Cell #2 

Pond seepage surfacing reported 
Water may be seeping into the ground from Cell #1 and Cell 

#2 

Sludge: Past disposal practices 
None, but there is a lot of the co-precipitate at the bottom of 

the ponds that needs to be managed.  

       Future Plans None 

       Observation of sludge accumulation None 

Fencing in good condition Yes 

All access gates are kept locked Yes 

Signs legible and properly located Yes 

Facility accessible in all weather conditions Yes 

Evidence of burrowing animals No 

Evidence of grazing animals No 

Odor problem (except seasonal turnover) No 

Inter-pond piping valves are working and used Overflow structure from Cell #1 to Cell #2 

Depth indicator(s) None 

Discharge structure (valve control, overflow, etc.) Discharge structure from Cell #2 to the creek. 

Which ponds are drawn down during a discharge? Cell #2 

Cells operated in series or parallel Series 

Are chemicals added for algae, insects, etc? Barium Chloride to co-precipitate Radium-226 

Cell information (stabilization pond) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Cell # 1 Cell # 2 

Maximum operation depth Unknown Unknown 

Current operating depth 1’ 0’ 

Minimum operating depth Unknown Unknown 

Surface area at maximum depth 0.3 Acres 0.3 Acres 
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Comments concerning stabilization ponds: 

 Cell #2 is dry and has thick weeds growing in it. Both ponds are showing signs of erosion. The ponds 
have thick co-precipitate that needs to be managed with facility upgrades. 

 The operators use powdered barium chloride instead of liquid barium chloride; they may not be 
applying adequate safety precautions. Many of these issues have been mentioned in previous 
inspection reports, but not taken care of by the facility. 

 This heating season, the operator would like to add barium chloride to the mixing vats a few days 
prior to initial treatment, hopefully giving it more time to dissolve and to allow better Radium 226 co-
precipitation. Also, the amount of barium chloride solution used for treatment will depend on flow 
from the geothermal well.  

 There is a floor drain in the barium chloride treatment building that will transport fluid, but the 
operator doesn’t know where it goes. 

 
 
 Follow-up Inspection comments: 
 

 The operator said that the Cell #2 levels have been fluctuating with weather, snow melt, and Bad River 
flow. The operator has been measuring depth-to-water from the raised structure in Cell #2. 

 On 3/24/2014, flow from the WWTF reached the discharge pipe for the first time during the heating 
season. The operator has been sampling as required by the SWD permit. Radium-226 results from the 
discharge samples are not in yet. 

 In the months prior to discharging to the Bad River on 3/24/2014, the operator took samples from Cell 
#2 to evaluate the effectiveness of barium chloride treatment. These results would be within 
compliance if the waters were discharged. 
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE COMPLIANCE INSPECTION REPORT 

 
 SECTION A: NATIONAL DATA SYSTEM CODING 
 
Transaction Code: Use N, C or D for New, Change or Delete. All inspections will be New (N) unless there is an error in the data entered. 
 
Permit No.: SWD Permit Number. 
 
Inspection Date: Use month/day/year format. 
 
Inspection Type: Uses the following codes to describe the type of inspection: 
 
A-Performance Audit L-Enforcement Case Support 2 IU Sampling Inspection 
B-Biomonitoring M-Multimedia  3 IU Non-Sampling Insp 
C-Compliance Evaluation P-Pretreatment Compliance Inspection  4 IU Toxics Inspection 
D-Diagnostic R-Reconnaissance Inspection   5 IU Sampling Insp w/Prt 
E-Corps of Engrs Inspection S-Compliance Sampling 6 IU Non-Samp Insp w/Prt 
F-Pretreatment Follow-up U-IU Inspection with Pretreatment Audit 7 IU Toxics w/Prt 
G-Pretreatment Audit X-Toxics Inspection 
I-Industrial User (IU)  Z-Sludge 
 
Inspector Code: Use following codes to describe the lead agency: 
 
 C-Contractor or Other (specify) 
 E-Corps of Engineers 
 J-Joint EPA/State - EPA Lead 

N-NEIC Inspectors 
R-EPA Regional inspector 
S-State Inspector 
T-Joint State/EPA - State Lead 

  
Facility Type: Use following codes to describe the facility: 
 
 1-Municipal - Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) with SIC code 4952. 
 2-Industrial - Other than municipal, agricultural and Federal facilities. 
 3-Agricultural - Facilities with SIC 0111 to 0971. 
 4-Federal - Facilities identified as Federal by the EPA Regional Office. 
 
Remarks: Columns for remarks at discretion of the Inspector. 
 
Inspection Work Days: Estimate the total work effort (to the nearest 0.1 work day), up to 99.9 days, that were used to complete the inspection 
and submit a QA reviewed report of findings. This estimate includes the accumulative effort of all participating inspectors; any effort for 
laboratory analyses, testing, and remote sensing; and the billed payroll time for travel and pre and post inspection preparation. This estimate 
does not require detailed documentation. 
 
Facility Evaluation Rating: Evaluate the quality of the facility self monitoring program using scale of 1 to 5, with a 5 being a very reliable 
program, a 3 being satisfactory and a 1 being a very unreliable program. 
 
Biomonitoring Information: Enter D for static testing; F for flow through testing; or N for no biomonitoring. 
 
Quality Assurance Data Inspection: Enter Q if inspection was a follow-up on QA sample results. Enter N otherwise. 
 
 
 SECTION B: FACILITY DATA 
 
This section is self-explanatory, except for Other Facility Data, which may include new information not in the permit or PCS (e.g., new outfalls, 
names of receiving waters, new ownership, and other updates to the record). 
 
 
 SECTION C: AREAS EVALUATED DURING INSPECTION 
 
Indicate findings (S, M, U or N) in the appropriate line. Use section D and additional sheets as need to explain findings in a brief narrative 
when appropriate. The heading marked Multimedia may indicate medias such as CAA, RCRA, and TSCA. The heading marked "Other" may be 
used to note any additional concerns, such as SPCC, BMPs, and concerns that are not covered elsewhere. 
 
 
 SECTION D: SUMMARY OF FINDINGS/COMMENTS 
 
Briefly summarize the inspection findings along with referencing any attachments such as checklists from NPDES inspection manuals, 
pretreatment guidance documents and monitoring results. 
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Haakon School District Inspection photos 9/4/2013, before heating season, p. 1 
 

      
Baffled trough, where barium chloride solution is added.       Discharge pipe and baffled trough to Cell #1. 
 

      
Broken pipe from the baffled trough to Cell #1. Cell #2, structure for pre-discharge samples and measurements. 
 

      
Cell #, with eroded dikes and thick sludge.            Overflow pipe from Cell #1 to Cell #2, no longer operable. 
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Haakon School District Inspection photos 9/4/2013, before heating season, p. 2 
              

      
Discharge structure at the dry north fork of the Bad River.       Mixing vats for barium chloride. 
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Haakon School District Follow-up photos 3/26/2014, during heating season, p. 1 
 

      
Powdered barium chloride storage in the treatment room.      Mixing vats for barium chloride. 

 

       
Floor drain in treatment room, destination undetermined.        Overflow from Cell #2 to discharge structure. 
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Haakon School District Follow-up photos 3/26/2014, during heating season, p. 2 
 

      
Baffled trough to Cell #1. Pipes to the baffled trough; top insulated black pipe is barium 

chloride solution, bottom pipe is untreated geothermal wastewater. 
 

      
Barium chloride solution is added at the head of the trough.      Baffled trough pours wastewater to Cell #1. 
 

      
Cell #1 during discharge season         Overflow from Cell #1 to Cell #2. 



   

Contact Report  

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Date:  Tuesday - 05/04/14 

Contact: Steve Leithauser (Operator for Haakon School District)  

Tel/Fax: 605-685-5095  

Email:  'steve.leithauser@k12.sd.us'  

Address: PO Box 730,  

                           Philip, SD 57567 

Subject: WasteWater Treatment Syst.-  DENR Compliance Issues 

Project: Proposal- Initial Inquiry Only   

  BAI. No. 20xxx.xx.xx 

 

 

 

Brief 6/3/14 Call with Steve Leithauser (Operator for Philip School District): 

 

He said NOV was received from DENR (May 5) several weeks ago for their Madison Well Water Treatment 

System.   He did not elaborate on all the deficiencies that were specifically noted.   I requested he fax a copy of 

the NOV to Banner’s attention.    He said Ken Buehler and others from DENR were out earlier this year.   

 

He said that historic records show the process not able to get the wastewater into compliance with the permit 

levels.    He said there has not ‘ever’ been a discharge to the Bad River  (Cell 2 has always been dry).   Cells are in 

series apparently.    

 

Current lagoons are just ‘dig outs’ with bentonite liner, he said.   I asked about construction plans of the 

installation, and he said he had copies he could get for us. 

 

He said that Cell 2 was allowed to dry out and there are cracks in it, because it was not kept sufficiently wet over 

the years. 

 

He said that he was able to find tune the BaCl process to get the wastewater into compliance.     He has only 

been there 1.5 years in the position, he said. 

 

He said that DENR is currently unaware, but that he needs to report, that x amount of gallons from Cell 2 leaked 

out of the bottom recently, and disappeared. 



 

 

Contact Report (cont’d) 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

He said that sludge removal was never sent to Ft Pierre for disposal (9 years ago) because the quote was for 

$280k and the school district could not afford, so they disposed of it ‘elsewhere’. 

 

He said that the concrete flow channels/stop logs/valving as designed ‘don’t work’ and have been partially 

plugged and blocked, non-functioning since 1-2 years from start of operations. 

 

He said that he has some ‘re-design’ ideas in mind, but the DENR has told him to get an engineer, and not do 

anything himself following thru on any of his ideas/changes at this time. 

 

 
 

Prepared By: David LaFrance, PE 
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 Permit No.: SD0025569 

 
 
 SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT 
 AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
 JOE FOSS BUILDING 
 523 EAST CAPITOL AVENUE 
 PIERRE, SOUTH DAKOTA 57501-3181 
 
 
 AUTHORIZATION TO DISCHARGE UNDER THE 
 
 SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE SYSTEM 
 
 

In compliance with the provisions of the South Dakota Water Pollution Control Act and the Administrative 
Rules of South Dakota (ARSD), Chapters 74:52:01 through 74:52:11,  
 
the Haakon School District 27-1 
 
is authorized to discharge to  
 
the Bad River 
 
from its geothermal well water treatment facility located within the city of Philip in the northeast ¼ of Section 23, 
Township 1 North, Range 20 East in Haakon County, South Dakota (Latitude 44° 02' 07.1", Longitude 101° 40' 
20.3"), in accordance with discharge point(s), effluent limits, monitoring requirements and other conditions set forth 
herein.  Authorization for discharge is limited to those outfalls specifically listed in the permit.  The permittee must 
comply with all conditions of this permit.  Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the South Dakota 
Water Pollution Control Act and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and 
reissuance, or modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application. 
 

This permit shall become effective April 01, 2007. 
 
 

This permit and the authorization to discharge shall expire at midnight, March 31, 2012. 
 

 
 
Signed this 1st day of February 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Steven M. Pirner 
Secretary 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
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DEFINITIONS 
 

30-day (and monthly) average means the arithmetic average of all samples collected during a consecutive 
30-day period or calendar month, whichever is applicable.  The calendar month shall be used for purposes 
of reporting self-monitoring data on discharge monitoring report forms. 

 
7-day (and weekly) average means the arithmetic mean of all samples collected during a consecutive 7-
day period or calendar week, whichever is applicable.  The calendar week which begins on Sunday and 
ends on Saturday, shall be used for purposes of reporting self-monitoring data on discharge monitoring 
report forms.  Weekly averages shall be calculated for all calendar weeks with Saturdays in the month.  If a 
calendar week overlaps two months (i.e., the Sunday is in one month and the Saturday in the following 
month), the weekly average calculated for that calendar week shall be included in the data for the month 
that contains the Saturday. 
 
ARSD means the Administrative Rules of South Dakota. 
 
An Authorized Release is a discharge from a permitted outfall that meets all permit conditions and 
effluent limits. 
 
BOD5 means Five-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand.  BOD is a measurement of the amount of oxygen 
utilized by the decomposition of organic material, over a specified time period (usually 5 days) in a sample. 
 
A Bypass is the intentional diversion of waste streams from any portion of a treatment facility.  
 
Composite samples shall be flow proportioned.  The composite sample shall contain at least four samples 
collected over the compositing period.  Unless otherwise specified, the time between the collection of the 
first sample and the last sample shall not be less than six hours nor more than 24 hours.  Acceptable 
methods for preparation of composite samples are as follows: 

 
1. Constant time interval between samples, sample volume proportional to flow rate at time of 

sampling; 
 
2. Constant time interval between samples, sample volume proportional to total flow (volume) since 

last sample.  For the first sample, the flow rate at the time the sample was collected may be used; 
 
3. Constant sample volume, time interval between samples proportional to flow (i.e. sample taken 

every “X” gallons of flow); and 
 
4. Continuous collection of sample, with sample collection rate proportional to flow rate. 

 
Daily Maximum (Daily Max.) is the maximum value allowable in any single sample or instantaneous 
measurement. 
 
Existing Source means any building, structure, facility or installation from which there is or may be a 
discharge of pollutants, which is not considered a New Source.  

 
A grab sample, for monitoring requirements, is a single "dip and take" sample collected at a representative 
point in the discharge stream. 

 
An instantaneous measurement, for monitoring requirements, is a single reading, observation, or 
measurement.  
 

 
TSS means Total Suspended Solids.  TSS is a measure of the filterable solids present in a sample. 
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An Unauthorized release is a discharge from the lower end of the treatment or containment system 
through a release structure or over or through retention dikes that does not meet all permit conditions or 
effluent limits. 
 
Upset means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance with 
technology-based permit effluent limits because of factors beyond the reasonable control of the permittee.  
An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly designed 
treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper 
operation. 

 
IC25 (inhibition concentration) is a point estimate of the toxicant concentration that would cause a 25% 
reduction in a nonlethal biological measurement of the test organism, such as reproduction or growth. 

 
NOEC (no observed effect concentration) is the highest tested concentration of an effluent or a toxicant at 
which no adverse effects are observed on the aquatic test organism at a specific time of observation.  
Determined using hypothesis testing.  

 
New Source means any building, structure, facility or installation from which there is or may be a 
discharge of pollutants, the construction of which commenced after the publication of proposed 
Pretreatment Standards under Section 307(c) of the Federal Clean Water Act which will be applicable to 
such source if such Standards are thereafter promulgated in accordance with that section, provided that: 

 
1. The building, structure, facility or installation is constructed at a site at which no other source is 

located; or 
 

2. The building, structure, facility or installation totally replaces the process or production equipment 
that causes the discharge of pollutants at an existing source; or 

 
3. The wastewater generating processes of the building, structure, facility, or installation are 

substantially independent of an existing source at the same site.  In determining whether these are 
substantially independent; factors, such as the extent to which the new facility is integrated with 
the existing plant, and the extent to which the new facility is engaged in the same general type of 
activity as the existing source should be considered. 

 
Construction on a site at which an existing source is located results in a modification rather than a new 
source if the construction does not create a new building, structure, facility or installation meeting the 
criteria of b or c of this section but otherwise alters, replaces, or adds to existing process or production 
equipment.  Construction of a new source has commenced if the owner or operator has: 

 
1. Begun, or caused to begin as part of a continuous onsite construction program: 

 
a. Any placement, assembly, or installation of facilities or equipment; or 
b. Significant site preparation work including clearing, excavation, or removal of existing 

buildings, structures, or facilities which is necessary for the placement, assembly, or 
installation of new source facilities or equipment. 

 
2. Entered into a binding contractual obligation for the purchase of facilities or equipment which is 

intended to be used in its operation within a reasonable time.  Options to purchase or contracts 
which can be terminated or modified without substantial loss, and contracts of feasibility, 
engineering, and design studies do not constitute a contractual obligation under this paragraph. 

 
pH is the measure of the hydrogen ion concentration of water or wastewater; expressed as the negative log 
of the hydrogen ion concentration.  A pH of 7 is neutral.  A pH less than 7 is acidic, and a pH greater than 
7 is basic. 

 



 
 
 

Page 5 of 18 
Permit No: SD0025569 
 

Process Wastewater means any water which, during manufacturing or processing, comes into direct 
contact with or results from the production or use of any raw material, intermediate product, finished 
product, by-product, or waste product. 

 
SDDENR means the South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources. 

 
Secretary means the Secretary of the South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources, or 
authorized representative. 

 
Severe property damage means substantial physical damage to property, damage to the treatment 
facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or substantial and permanent loss of natural resources 
which can reasonably be expected to occur in the absence of a bypass.  Severe property damage does not 
mean economic loss caused by delays in production. 

 
Sewage Sludge is any solid, semi-solid or liquid residue that contains materials removed from domestic 
sewage during treatment.  Sewage sludge includes, but is not limited to, primary and secondary solids and 
sewage sludge products. 

 
TSS means Total Suspended Solids.  TSS is a measure of the filterable solids present in a sample.
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1.0 EFFLUENT LIMITS AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 
 
1.1 Description of Discharge Points 

The authorization to discharge provided under this permit is limited to those outfalls specifically 
designated below as discharge locations.  Discharges at any location not authorized under a SWD permit is 
a violation of the South Dakota Water Pollution Control Act and could subject the person{s} responsible 
for such discharge to penalties under Section 34A-2-75 of the Act.  Knowingly discharging from an 
unauthorized location or failing to report an unauthorized discharge within a reasonable time from the first 
learning of an unauthorized discharge could subject such person to criminal penalties as provided under the 
South Dakota Water Pollution Control Act. 

 
Outfall 
Serial Number  Description of Discharge Point 

 
Outfall 001   Any discharge of treated geothermal well water from the second cell of the 

Haakon School District 27-1 treatment facility to the Bad River (Latitude 44° 
02' 05.6", Longitude 101° 40' 23.6"). 

 



 
 
 

Page 7 of 18 
Permit No: SD0025569 
 

1.2 Effluent Limits 
Effective immediately and lasting through the life of this permit, the quality of effluent discharged by the 
facility shall, as a minimum, meet the limits as set forth below: 

 

 Effluent Limit 

Effluent Characteristic 10 Month Rolling 
Average1  

30-Day Average2  Daily Maximum2  

Radium-226, pCi/L 5 N/A 15 

Total Suspended Solids, mg/L N/A 20 30 

Total Dissolved Solids, mg/L N/A N/A 2,500 

Temperature, ºF N/A N/A 85 

Discharge Flow Rate, gpm N/A N/A 330 

The pH of the discharge shall not be less than 6.0 standard units or greater than 9.0 standard units in any sample. 

There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts.     

No process water or sanitary wastes shall be introduced into this discharge.   

No chemicals, such as corrosion inhibitors, shall be added to this discharge.   

                                                           
1 The radium-226 limit is based on a 10-month rolling average. For each monitoring period, an average of the data 
from the previous 10 months shall be calculated.  If only one sample is collected in a month, that shall be the same 
as the average. 
 
2 See Definitions. 
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1.3 Self-Monitoring Requirements 

As a minimum, upon the effective date of this permit, the following constituents shall be monitored at the 
frequency and with the type of measurement indicated; samples or measurements shall be representative of 
the volume and nature of the monitored discharge.  If no discharge occurs during the entire monitoring 
period, it shall be stated on the Discharge Monitoring Report Form (EPA No. 3320-1) that no discharge or 
overflow occurred. 

 

Effluent Characteristic Frequency Reporting Values 1 Sample Type 1 

Discharge Flow Rate, GPM At least three per discharge 2, 3 Daily maximum;          
30-day average  Instantaneous 

Total Flow, gallons Monthly Monthly total Calculate 

Duration of discharge, days Monthly Monthly total 4 Calculate 

Radium-226, pCi/L At least three per discharge2 Daily maximum;          
10-month rolling average Grab 

pH, standard units At least three per discharge2 
Daily minimum; 
Daily maximum 

Instantaneous 5 

Total Suspended Solids, mg/L At least three per discharge2 
Daily maximum; 
30-day average 

Grab 

Total Dissolved Solids, mg/L At least three per discharge2 
Daily maximum; 
30-day average 

Grab 

Floating Solids At least three per discharge2 Presence or Absence Visual 

Water Temperature, °F At least three per discharge2 
daily maximum; 
30-day average 

Instantaneous6 

No process or sanitary waste At least three per discharge2 Presence or Absence Certify 
                                                           
1  See Definitions. 
2  At the initiation of any discharge, a minimum of three samples shall be taken the first week and one sample each 

week for the following three weeks.  Samples shall be taken monthly thereafter, until the discharge is 
discontinued. If a discharge is less than one week in duration, a sample shall be taken at the beginning, middle, 
and end of the discharge. All of the samples collected during the 30-day period are to be used in determining the 
averages.  The permittee always has the option of collecting additional samples if appropriate. 

3  Flow measurements shall be made in such a manner that the permittee can affirmatively demonstrate that 
representative values are being obtained.   

4  The date and time of the start and termination of each discharge shall also be reported in the comment section of 
the DMR. 

5  pH shall be taken within 15 minutes of sample collection with a pH meter. The pH meter must be capable of 
simultaneous calibration to two points on the pH scale that bracket the expected pH and are approximately three 
standard units apart. The pH meter must read to 0.01 standard units and be equipped with temperature 
compensation adjustment. 

6  The water temperature of the effluent shall be taken as a field measurement.  Measurement shall be made with a 
mercury-filled, or dial type thermometer, or a thermistor.  Readings shall be reported to the nearest whole degree 
Fahrenheit. 
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1.4 Inspection Requirements 
 The permittee shall inspect its geothermal well water treatment facility on at least a monthly basis.  During 

any discharge, an inspection shall be conducted weekly.  The inspection shall be conducted to determine if 
a discharge is occurring, has occurred since the previous inspection, and/or if a discharge is likely to occur 
before the next inspection.  In addition, the inspection shall be performed to determine if proper operation 
and maintenance procedures are being undertaken at the facility.  The permittee shall maintain a notebook 
recording information obtained during the inspection.  At a minimum, the notebook shall include the 
following: 

 
1. Date and time of the inspection; 
 
2. Name of the inspector(s); 
 
3. The facility's discharge status; 
 
4. The measured amount of pond freeboard; 
 
5. Identification of operational problems and/or maintenance problems; 
 
6. Recommendations, as appropriate, to remedy identified problems; 
 
7. A brief description of any actions taken with regard to problems identified; and 
 
8. Other information, as appropriate. 

 
The permittee shall maintain the notebook in accordance with proper record-keeping procedures and shall 
make the notebook available for inspection, upon request, by the Secretary or the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency.
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2.0 MONITORING, RECORDING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
2.1 Representative Sampling 

Samples taken in compliance with the monitoring requirements established under Section 1.3 shall be 
collected from the effluent stream prior to discharge into the receiving waters.  Samples and measurements 
shall be representative of the volume and nature of the monitored discharge. 
 

2.2 Monitoring Procedures 
Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under ARSD 74:52:03:06, a.b.r. 40 
CFR, Part 136, unless other test procedures have been specified in this permit.  
 

2.3 Reporting of Monitoring Results 
Effluent monitoring results obtained during the previous 6 month(s) shall be summarized for each month 
and reported on a Discharge Monitoring Report Form (EPA No. 3320-1), postmarked no later than the 28th 
day of the month following the completed reporting period.  If no discharge occurs during the reporting 
period, "no discharge" shall be reported.  Legible copies of these, and all other reports required herein, 
shall be signed and certified in accordance with the Signatory Requirements (see Section 2.14), and 
submitted to the Secretary at the following address: 

 
original to: South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources 

Surface Water Quality Program 
Joe Foss Building 
523 East Capitol Avenue 
Pierre, South Dakota 57501-3181 

 
2.4 Compliance Schedules 

Reports of compliance or noncompliance with, or any progress reports on interim and final requirements 
contained in any Compliance Schedule of this permit shall be submitted no later than 14 days following 
each schedule date. 
 

2.5 Additional Monitoring by the Permittee 
If the permittee monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by this permit, using test procedures 
approved under ARSD 74:52:03:06, a.b.r. 40 CFR 136 or as specified in this permit, the results of this 
monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of the data submitted in the DMR.  Such 
increased frequency shall also be indicated. 
 

2.6 Records Contents 
Records of monitoring information shall include: 

 
1. The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements; 

 
2. The initials or name(s) of the individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements; 

 
3. The date(s) analyses were performed; 

 
4. The time analyses were initiated; 

 
5. The initials or name(s) of individual(s) who performed the analyses; 

 
6. References and written procedures, when available, for the analytical techniques or methods used; 

and,  
 

7. The results of such analyses, including the bench sheets, instrument readouts, computer disks or 
tapes, etc., used to determine these results. 
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2.7 Retention of Records 
The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and maintenance 
records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, copies of all 
reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to complete the application for this permit, for a 
period of at least three years from the date of the sample, measurement, report or application.  This period 
may be extended by request of the Secretary at any time.  Data collected on site, copies of Discharge 
Monitoring Reports, and a copy of this permit must be maintained on site during the duration of activity at 
the permitted location. 
 

2.8 Twenty-four Hour Notice of Noncompliance Reporting 
1. The permittee shall report any noncompliance which may endanger health or the environment as 

soon as possible, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours from the time the permittee first became 
aware of the circumstances.  The report shall be made to the State of South Dakota at (605) 773-
3231 and the EPA, Region VIII, Emergency Response Branch at (303) 293-1788. 

 
2. The following occurrences of noncompliance shall be reported by telephone to the Secretary at 

(605) 773-3351 by the first workday (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. Central Time) following the day the 
permittee became aware of the circumstances: 

 
a. Any unanticipated bypass which exceeds any effluent limit in the permit (See Section 

3.7, Bypass of Treatment Facilities.); 
b. Any upset which exceeds any effluent limit in the permit (See Section 3.8, Upset 

Conditions.); or, 
c. Violation of a maximum daily discharge limit for any of the pollutants listed in the 

permit to be reported within 24 hours. 
 

3. A written submission shall also be provided within five days of the time that the permittee 
becomes aware of the circumstances.  The written submission shall contain: 

 
a. A description of the noncompliance and its cause; 
b. The period of noncompliance, including exact dates and times; 
c. The estimated time noncompliance is expected to continue if it has not been corrected; 

and, 
d. Steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent reoccurrence of the 

noncompliance. 
 

4. The Secretary may waive the written report on a case-by-case basis if the oral report has been 
received within 24 hours by the Surface Water Quality Program, South Dakota Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources, Pierre, (605) 773-3351. 

 
5. Reports shall be submitted to the addresses in Section 2.3, Reporting of Monitoring Results. 
 

2.9 Other Noncompliance Reporting 
Instances of noncompliance not required to be reported within 24 hours shall be reported at the time that 
monitoring reports for Section 2.3 are submitted.  The reports shall contain the information listed in 
Section 2.8. 
 

2.10 Changes in Discharge of Toxic Substances 
Notification shall be provided to the Secretary as soon as the permittee knows of, or has reason to believe 
that any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in the discharge of a toxic pollutant, as 
defined in ARSD 74:52:01:01, which is not limited in the permit and if that discharge will exceed the 
highest of the following notification levels: 

 
1. One hundred micrograms per liter (100 μg/L); 

 
2. Two hundred micrograms per liter (200 μg/L) for acrolein and acrylonitrile; 
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3. Five hundred micrograms per liter (500 μg/L) for 2,4-dinitrophenol and for 2-methyl-4, 6-
dinitrophenol; 

 
4. One milligram per liter (1 mg/L) for antimony; or 

 
5. Five (5) times the maximum concentration value reported for that pollutant in the permit 

application. 
 

2.11 Planned Changes 
The permittee shall give notice to the Secretary as soon as possible of any planned physical alterations or 
additions to the permitted facility.  Notice is required only when the alteration or addition could 
significantly change the nature or increase the quantity of pollutant discharged.  This notification applies to 
pollutants which are not subject to effluent limits in the permit.  The alteration or addition to a permitted 
facility may meet one of the criteria for determining whether a facility is a new source (see ARSD, Chapter 
74:52:01:01(30)). 

 
2.12 Duty to Provide Information 

The permittee shall furnish to the Secretary, within a reasonable time, any information which the Secretary 
may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this 
permit, or to determine compliance with this permit.  The permittee shall also furnish to the Secretary, upon 
request, copies of records required to be kept by this permit. 
 

2.13 Other Information 
When the permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit application, or 
submitted incorrect information in a permit application or any report to the Secretary, it shall promptly 
submit such facts or information. 
 

2.14 Signatory Requirements 
All applications, reports or information submitted to the Secretary shall be signed and certified. 

 
1. All permit applications shall be signed as follows: 

 
a. For a corporation: by a responsible corporate officer; 
b. For a partnership or sole proprietorship: by a general partner or the proprietor, 

respectively; 
c. For a municipality, State, Federal, or other public agency: by either a principal executive 

officer or ranking elected official. 
 

2. All reports required by the permit and other information requested by the Secretary shall be signed 
by a person described above or by a duly authorized representative of that person.  A person is a 
duly authorized representative only if: 

 
a. The authorization is made in writing by a person described above and submitted to the 

Secretary; and, 
b. The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the 

overall operation of the regulated facility, such as the position of plant manager, 
superintendent, position of equivalent responsibility, or an individual or position having 
overall responsibility for environmental matters.  (A duly authorized representative may 
thus be either a named individual or any individual occupying a named position.) 

 
3. Changes to authorization.  If an authorization under paragraph 2.14.2 is no longer accurate 

because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the 
facility, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of paragraph 2.14.2 must be submitted to 
the Secretary prior to or together with any reports, information, or applications to be signed by an 
authorized representative. 
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4. Certification.  Any person signing a document under this section shall make the following 
certification: 

 
"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my 
direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel 
properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.  Based on my inquiry of the person or 
persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, 
and complete.  I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations." 
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3.0 COMPLIANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1 Duty to Comply 

The permittee must comply with all conditions of this permit.  Any permit noncompliance constitutes a 
violation of the Act and is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and 
reissuance, or modification; or for denial of a permit renewal application.  The permittee shall give the 
director advance notice of any planned changes at the permitted facility or of an activity which may result 
in permit noncompliance. 
 

3.2 Duty to Mitigate 
The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any discharge in violation of this 
permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting human health or the environment. 
 

3.3 Proper Operation and Maintenance 
The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of treatment and 
control (and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with 
the conditions of this permit.  Proper operation and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls 
and appropriate quality assurance procedures.  This provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary 
facilities or similar systems which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is necessary to 
achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.  However, the permittee shall operate, as a 
minimum, one complete set of each main line unit treatment process whether or not this process is needed 
to achieve permit effluent compliance. 
 

3.4 Need to Halt or Reduce Activity not a Defense 
It shall not be a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt 
or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit. 
 

3.5 Removed Substances 
Collected screenings, grit, solids, sludges, or other pollutants removed in the course of treatment shall be 
disposed of in such a manner so as to prevent any pollutant from entering any waters of the state or 
creating a health hazard.  Sludge/digestor supernatant and filter backwash shall not be directly blended 
with or enter either the final plant discharge and/or waters of the State. 
 

3.6 Inspection and Entry 
The permittee shall allow the Secretary or EPA, upon the presentation of credentials and other documents 
as may be required by law, to: 

 
1. Enter upon the permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or conducted, 

or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit; 
 

2. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions 
of this permit; 

 
3. Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control 

equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; and, 
 

4. Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as 
otherwise authorized by the Act, any substances or parameters at any location.  

 
3.7 Bypass of Treatment Facilities 

1. Bypass not exceeding limits.  The permittee may allow any bypass to occur which does not cause 
effluent limits to be exceeded, but only if it also is for essential maintenance to assure efficient 
operation.  These bypasses are not subject to the provisions of paragraphs 2 and 3 of this section. 

 
2. Notice: 
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a. Anticipated bypass.  If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall 
submit prior notice, if possible at least 60 days before the date of the bypass. 

b. Unanticipated bypass.  The permittee shall submit notice of an unanticipated bypass as 
required under Section 2.8, Twenty-four Hour Notice of Noncompliance Reporting. 

 
3. Prohibition of bypass. 

 
a. Bypass is prohibited and the Secretary may take enforcement action against a permittee 

for a bypass, unless: 
(1) The bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe 

property damage; 
(2) There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary 

treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal 
periods of equipment downtime.  This condition is not satisfied if adequate 
back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable 
engineering judgement to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal 
periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance; and, 

(3) The permittee submitted notices as required under paragraph 2 of this section. 
b. The Secretary may approve an anticipated bypass, after considering its adverse effects, if 

the Secretary determines that it will meet the three conditions listed above in paragraph 
3.a of this section. 

 
3.8 Upset Conditions 

1. Effect of an upset.  An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for 
noncompliance with technology based permit effluent limits if the requirements of paragraph 2 of 
this section are met.  No determination made during administrative review of claims that 
noncompliance was caused by upset, and before an action for noncompliance, is final 
administrative action subject to judicial review (i.e., Permittees will have the opportunity for a 
judicial determination on any claim of upset only in an enforcement action brought for 
noncompliance with technology-based permit effluent limits). 

 
2. Conditions necessary for a demonstration of upset.  A permittee who wishes to establish the 

affirmative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly signed, contemporaneous 
operating logs, or other relevant evidence that: 

 
a. An upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset; 
b. The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated; 
c. The permittee submitted notice of the upset as required under Section 2.8, Twenty-four 

Hour Notice of Noncompliance Reporting; and, 
d. The permittee complied with any remedial measures required under Section 3.2, Duty to 

Mitigate. 
 

3. Burden of proof.  In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the 
occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof. 

 
3.9 Toxic Pollutants 

The permittee shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under Section 307(a) of the 
Federal Clean Water Act for toxic pollutants within the time provided in the regulations that establish those 
standards or prohibitions, even if the permit has not yet been modified to incorporate the requirement. 
 

3.10 Anticipated Noncompliance 
The permittee shall give advance notice to the Secretary of any planned changes in the permitted facility or 
activity which may result in noncompliance with permit requirements. 
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3.11 Permit Actions 
This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause.  The filing of a request by the 
permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned 
changes or anticipated noncompliance, does not stay any permit condition. 
 

3.12 Duty to Reapply 
If the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after the expiration date of this 
permit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit.  The application should be submitted at least 
180 days before the expiration date of this permit. 
 

3.13 Availability of Reports 
Except for data determined to be confidential under ARSD 74:52:02:17, all reports prepared in accordance 
with the terms of this permit shall be available for public inspection at the offices of SDDENR and EPA.  
Permit applications, permits and effluent data shall not be considered confidential. 
 

3.14 Property Rights 
The Secretary’s issuance of this permit, adoption of design criteria, and approval of plans and 
specifications, does not convey any property rights of any sort, any exclusive privileges, any authorization 
to damage, injure or use any private property, any authority to invade personal rights, any authority to 
violate federal, state or local laws or regulations, or any taking, condemnation or use of eminent domain 
against any property owned by third parties.  The State does not warrant that the permittee's compliance 
with this permit, design criteria, approved plans and specifications, and operation under this permit, will 
not cause damage, injury or use of private property, an invasion of personal rights, or violation of federal, 
state or local laws or regulations.  The permittee is solely and severally liable for all damage, injury or use 
of private property, invasion of personal rights, infringement of federal, state or local laws and regulations, 
or taking or condemnation of property owned by third parties, which may result from actions taken under 
the permit. 
 

3.15 Severability 
The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this permit, or the application of any 
provision of this permit to any circumstance, is held invalid, the application of such provision to other 
circumstances, and the remainder of this permit, shall not be affected thereby. 
 

3.16 Transfers 
This permit may be automatically transferred to a new permittee if: 

 
1. The current permittee notifies the Secretary at least 30 days in advance of the proposed transfer 

date; 
 

2. The notice includes a written agreement between the existing and new permittees containing a 
specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between them; and, 

 
3. The Secretary does not notify the existing permittee and the proposed new permittee of his or her 

intent to modify, or revoke and reissue the permit.  If this notice is not received, the transfer is 
effective on the date specified in the agreement mentioned in paragraph 2 above. 

 
3.17 Reopener Provision 

This permit may be reopened and modified (following proper administrative procedures) to include the 
appropriate effluent limits (and compliance schedule, if necessary), or other appropriate requirements if 
one or more of the following events occurs: 

 
1. Water Quality Standards: The water quality standards of the receiving water(s) to which the 

permittee discharges are modified in such a manner as to require different effluent limits than 
contained in this permit. 

 
2. Total Maximum Daily Load: Additional controls in the permit are necessary to implement a total 

maximum daily load approved by the Secretary and/or EPA. 
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3. Water Quality Management Plan: A revision to the current water quality management plan is 

approved and adopted which calls for different effluent limits than contained in this permit. 
 
4. Total Maximum Daily Load:  Additional controls in the permit are necessary to implement a total 

maximum daily load approved by the Secretary and/or EPA. 
 

5. Whole Effluent Toxicity:  Whole effluent toxicity is detected in the discharge. 
 

6. Noncompliance:  The discharger is a significant contributor of pollution to waters of the state, 
presents a health hazard, or is in noncompliance with the conditions of the permit; or 

 
7. Other Changes:  Other conditions or standards change so that the discharge no longer qualifies for 

this permit, such as the permittee being designated as a major discharger, changes in necessary 
influent or effluent pollutant monitoring, additional industrial pretreatment requirements become 
applicable to the permittee, or other items. 
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4.0 PENALTIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE 
 
4.1 Penalties for Violations of Permit Conditions 

Any person who violates a permit condition shall, upon conviction, be punished by a Class 1 misdemeanor. 
 In addition to a jail sentence authorized by SDCL 22-6-2, a Class 1 misdemeanor imposed by SDCL, 
Chapter 34A-2, is subject to a criminal fine not to exceed ten thousand dollars per day of violation.  The 
violator is also subject to a civil penalty not to exceed ten thousand dollars per day of violation, for 
damages to the environment of this state.  Except as provided in permit conditions on Section 3.7, Bypass 
of Treatment Facilities and Section 3.8, Upset Conditions, nothing in this permit shall be construed to 
relieve the permittee of the civil or criminal penalties for noncompliance. 
 

4.2 Penalties for Tampering 
Any person who falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate, any monitoring device or method 
required to be maintained under this permit is in violation of the provisions of SDCL 34A-2-77, and is 
subject to penalties under SDCL 34A-2-75.  In addition to a jail sentence authorized by SDCL 22-6-2, such 
violators are subject to a criminal fine not to exceed ten thousand dollars per day of violation.  The violator 
is also subject to a civil penalty not to exceed ten thousand dollars per day of violation, or for damages to 
the environment of this state. 
 

4.3 Penalties for Falsification of Reports 
Any person who knowingly makes any false statement, representation, or certification in any record or 
other document submitted or required to be maintained under this permit, including monitoring reports or 
reports of compliance or noncompliance shall, upon conviction, be punished by a Class 1 misdemeanor.  In 
addition to a jail sentence authorized by SDCL 22-6-2, a Class 1 misdemeanor imposed by SDCL, Chapter 
34A-2, is subject to a criminal fine not to exceed ten thousand dollars per day of violation.  The violator is 
also subject to a civil penalty not to exceed ten thousand dollars per day of violation, for damages to the 
environment of this state, or both. 
 

4.4 Oil and Hazardous Substance Liability 
Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the 
permittee from any responsibilities, liabilities, or penalties to which the permittee is or may be subject 
under Section 311 of the Federal Clean Water Act. 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 

SOUTH DAKOTA 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

PERMIT TO OPERATE A RESTRICTED USE SOLID WASTE FACILITY 

UNDER THE SOUTH DAKOTA SOLID WASTE PROGRAM 

 

 

OPERATOR:    City of Philip 
P.O. Box 408 
Philip, South Dakota 57567-0408 

 

PERMIT NUMBER:   13-01 

ISSUE DATE:    January 28, 2013 

EXPIRATION DATE:   January 28, 2018 

 

CLASSIFICATION OF FACILITY:  Type IV Restricted Use Facility – The facility may accept a 
maximum of 499 tons of waste per year. 

 

GENERAL FACILITY DESCRIPTION: The restricted use site may accept construction and 
demolition debris for burial.  Furniture, carpeting, and similar 
nonputrescible wastes may be accepted for burial.  Trees, 
branches, and untreated wood may be accepted for burning 
or burial.  Yard waste may be accepted for composting.  
White goods, scrap metal and waste tires may be accepted 
for temporary storage and recycling.   

 

ACREAGE:    5.00 acres 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:   NW¼ SE¼ of Section 23, T1N, R20E, Haakon County 

 

In consideration of information contained in the application and supplements, the Secretary of 
the South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources hereby renews this 
permit for the city of Philip to operate a restricted use solid waste facility.  The renewal of this 
permit is pursuant to SDCL 34A-6-1.13 and ARSD 74:27.  In addition to any provisions included 
herein by operation under state or federal law or regulation, this permit and all rights under it are 
subject to, defined by and limited by the conditions set forth herein. This permit shall be valid for 
a period of five years from the issuance date. 

 

   

Steven M. Pirner, Secretary 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources 



 
 

 

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

1.01 Operator Representations Incorporated 
This permit incorporates by reference all representations made by the city of Philip 
(hereinafter called the operator) and its agents regarding plans, controls, designs, 
operations, and environmental impacts contained in the permit application dated July 10, 
2012, and in supplemental documents.  

 

1.02 DENR Limitation of Liability 
This permit and all rights under it are expressly conditioned on the truth and accuracy of 
the representations made by the operator in the application and documents cited above. 
The Department of Environment and Natural Resources - Waste Management Program 
(DENR-WMP) assumes no liability for the accuracy and truth of such representations 
made by the operator. 

 

1.03 Duty to Comply 
The operator shall construct, operate, and maintain this facility in accordance with South 
Dakota Codified Laws and the Administrative Rules of South Dakota: SDCL 34A-6 and 
ARSD 74:27.  If the provisions of the laws, rules, or any conditions of this permit are 
violated, DENR-WMP may take action to suspend or revoke this permit as provided for by 
SDCL 34A-6-1.21; may assess a civil penalty pursuant to SDCL 34A-6-1.4 and 34A-6-
1.31; or issue a notice of violation with penalties pursuant to SDCL 34A-6-1.22. 

 

1.04 Related Laws, Regulations and Permits  
No provision of this permit exempts the operator from the requirements of any local, state, 
or federal laws, regulations, or rules in existence or promulgated after this permit 
becomes effective.  It is the responsibility of the operator to obtain any other required 
permits and licenses. 

 

1.05 Procedure for Requesting Amendments 
The operator must contact DENR-WMP to request a permit amendment prior to any 
significant deviation in the design or operation of the facility, and before any expansion 
beyond the permitted site boundaries.  This permit may be reopened and amended, 
following proper administrative procedures, to include the appropriate requirements of 
ARSD 74:27, SDCL 34A-6, and promulgated federal or state laws, rules, or regulations.  
Any permit modification shall be in compliance with ARSD 74:27, SDCL 34A-6, and 
applicable federal regulations. 

 

1.06 Administrative Changes Authorized 
DENR-WMP reserves the right to incorporate administrative changes and/or modifications 
to this permit at any time.  When an administrative change is made to this permit, DENR-
WMP shall notify the operator, in writing, within 10 business days of instituting the change. 
Administrative changes are authorized for the purposes of changing or correcting: 

 (a) typographical errors; 
 (b) regulatory references; 
 (c) titles of organizations or regulatory agencies; or 
 (d) items which do not substantially change the requirements of this permit. 
  

 

 



 
 

 

1.07 Severability 
The provisions of this permit are severable.  If any provision of this permit, or the 
application of any provision of this permit to any circumstance, is held invalid, the 
application of such provisions to other circumstances and the remainder of this permit, 
shall not be affected thereby. 

 

1.08 Duty to Provide Access 
The operator shall allow DENR-WMP unrestricted entry during regular business hours for 
site inspections, waste sampling, and reviewing facility records. 

 

1.09 Duty to Provide Information  
The operator shall furnish to DENR-WMP, within 10 business days, any information which 
DENR-WMP may request to determine compliance with this permit. 

 

1.10 Variances Approved 
DENR-WMP specifically recognizes and approves the variances listed in Attachment A of 
this permit, based on the reasons and documentation stated therein. 

 
 

2.0  DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS 
 

2.01 Access Control  
The operator shall maintain access controls at the site. These shall include a fence 
around the entire facility, locked gate(s), and sign(s) stating the operator's name and 
phone number, hours of operation, acceptable waste types, and directions for disposal. 

 

2.02 Acreage Limitation 
The operator shall not exceed the 5.00 acre total operational area identified in the permit. 

 

2.03 Storm Water Control 
The operator shall construct and maintain soil berms or containment structures around 
disposal areas and composting pads/areas. The berms or containment structures should 
be designed to divert run-on and contain runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour storm event (3.9 
inches). The berms shall be adequately compacted. 

 
 

3.0  OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

3.01 Emergency Requirements 
The operator shall notify DENR-WMP, within one business day, of any emergency 
situation at the facility. For the purposes of this section, an emergency is defined as any 
unplanned event that could be a threat to personnel, the general public, or the 
environment. 

 

3.02 Authorized and Unauthorized Wastes 
The operator may accept the materials listed in Table 1 for disposal, burning, storage, or 
composting as indicated in column 2 of Table 1.  The operator may not accept the 
materials listed in Table 2.  Any unauthorized waste found on-site must be handled 
according to Table 2 procedures.  The operator shall contact DENR-WMP to determine 
how to handle any waste that is not clearly identified in Table 1 or Table 2. 



 
 

 

3.03 Routine Inspections Required 
The operator shall inspect the facility at least weekly and on all days the facility is open to 
the public to evaluate permit compliance and to prevent and/or detect the disposal of 
unauthorized wastes.  Any unauthorized wastes shall be removed and properly disposed 
of at a facility permitted to accept such materials.  The site inspections shall be 
documented as required by Section 4.01(c) of this permit. 

 

3.04 Vector Control 
The operator shall take any steps necessary to ensure the site is reasonably free of 
mosquitoes, rats, or other disease vectors. 

 

3.05 Waste Separation Required 
The operator shall place materials that are to be buried in a pile or piles that are well 
separated from the burn pile, composting pile, and the recycling piles. 

 

3.06 Open Burning Requirements 
The operator may periodically open burn trees, branches, brush, and untreated wood, 
subject to existing state, federal, and local laws, rules, and regulations.  The operator is 
responsible for removing materials other than trees, branches, brush, and untreated wood 
from the burn pile prior to burning.  The local fire department, local law enforcement, and 
DENR-WMP shall be notified prior to open burning.   
 
Open burning shall occur only:  

 (a) when the prevailing winds are away from adjacent residences; 
 (b) when smoke will not obscure visibility or create a traffic hazard on any public road; and 
 (c) during daylight hours. 
 
 The operator shall not burn within 300 feet of a waste tire pile. 

 

3.07 Waste Tire Storage 
The operator shall store tires as follows: 

 (a) each tire pile shall be surrounded by a 50-foot fire lane; 
 (b) all tire piles shall be maintained free of mosquitoes and rodents; 
 (c) tires must not be located within 300 feet of the tree pile or an open flame;  
 (d) waste tire piles may not have an area greater than 5,000 square feet or a vertical 

height greater than 10 feet; and 
 (e) waste tires may not be stored on-site for more than one year from the date of receipt. 
 

3.08 Refrigerant Removal 
The operator shall ensure that refrigerants (Freon) are properly removed from appliances 
by certified technicians prior to recycling/crushing by a metals recycler. 

 

3.09 Yard Waste Composting Requirements 
The operator shall place yard waste to be composted in piles or windrows.  The piles or 
windrows of yard waste shall be turned as needed to give the material sufficient air for 
composting and to prevent the generation of an unpleasant odor.  Moisture levels in yard 
waste piles or windrows shall be maintained to promote biological decomposition.  
Precipitation that collects within the bermed area may be used to maintain moisture levels.  
 



 
 

 

Reminder:  Permit condition 2.03 requires the operator to divert storm water run-on 
around the composting pad and contain runoff from the composting pad. 

 
 

4.0  RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

4.01 Required Records 
The operator shall maintain all records required by this permit and shall make records 
available to DENR-WMP as stated in ARSD 74:27:13:22.  At a minimum, the records shall 
include: 

 (a) the amounts, sources, types, and dates for the wastes received; 
 (b) documentation of any unauthorized waste found on-site and the steps taken in 

response; 
 (c) documentation of the daily and/or weekly site inspections; 
 (d) records of any employee training; 
 (e) copies of the current solid waste permit, permit application, and any other permits 

required by state, local, or federal laws, rules, and regulations; 
 (f) records of any emergency conditions at the facility; 
 (g) documentation of complaints received and responses to complaints; 
 (h) data on open burning activities at the site (including dates, weather conditions, and an 

estimate of the quantity of wood in the pile); 
 (i) documentation to verify that refrigerant (for example Freon) has been properly 

removed from all refrigerant-containing appliances; and 
 (j) documentation identifying the quantity and destination of all material removed from the 

site (tires, white goods/metals, compost, municipal solid waste, leachate, etc.). 
   

4.02 Maintenance of Records 
The operator shall maintain all required records for a period of three years from the date 
the records were generated. 

   
 

5.0 CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 

5.01 Closure Notification 
The operator shall notify DENR-WMP of the intent to close any portion of the site at least 
90 days prior to closure. 

 

5.02 Startup of Closure Activities 
The operator shall begin closure activities for all waste disposal areas of the facility within 
30 days of receipt of the last load of waste. 

 

5.03 Removal of Stored Wastes and Recyclables 
The operator shall remove all white goods, metals, tires, compost, and/or leachate prior to 
closing the site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

5.04 Final Closure Requirements 
The final cover and closure activities for the site shall meet the requirements of ARSD 
74:27:15:03 and include: 

 (a) covering the restricted use waste disposal areas/trenches upon completion/filling.  The 
final cover for the waste disposal area(s) shall consist of a minimum of two feet of 
earthen material capable of maintaining perennial vegetation; 

 (b) incorporating contours of the waste disposal area(s) into the contours of the 
surrounding area; 

 (c) grading to prevent ponding of water; and 
 (d) seeding and revegetating the waste disposal area(s) and yard waste area in 

consultation with the County Extension Agent or local Natural Resources Conservation 
Service representative. 

 

5.05 Completion of Final Closure 
The operator shall complete closure activities for all waste disposal areas within 180 days 
of receipt of the last load of waste. 

 

5.06 Certification of Closure 
Upon completion of closure of a waste disposal area or the facility, the owner or operator 
shall provide the DENR-WMP with a certification confirming that the provisions of the 
closure plan (if applicable) have been carried out, and the facility has been closed in 
accordance with this permit and the applicable performance standards of ARSD 74:27:15. 

 

5.07 Notation on Deed Required 
The operator shall record a notation on the deed to the property or on some other 
instrument that is normally examined during a title search.  The notation shall state that 
the land has been used as a solid waste facility. 

 

 

6.0 FINANCIAL ASSURANCE 

 

6.01 Financial Assurance Requirement 
DENR-WMP will not require financial assurance for the permitted facility as long as the 
operator complies with the environmental laws and rules of the state and the conditions of 
this permit. 



 
 

 

Table 1 

Authorized Wastes  

Philip Restricted Use Solid Waste Facility 

 
Under South Dakota law, local ordinances may further restrict some of the items listed below.  The city of Philip may 
choose not to accept some of the items listed below. 

 

Type of Waste Handling Procedures / Requirements 

Construction and demolition debris: 
Concrete, brick, stonework, asphaltic concrete, 
concrete block, asphaltic or fiberglass shingles, 
painted or stained wood, attached insulation, pipe, 
and similar wastes.  

These wastes must be buried.  These wastes may 

not be burned.  Concrete, brick, stonework, asphaltic 
concrete, and concrete block may be buried or 
temporarily stored for subsequent recycling and reuse. 

Trees and untreated wood:  Scrap lumber, trees, 

tree branches, and brush.  Painted, stained, 

glued, or chemically treated wood is 

considered treated and cannot be open burned. 

These wastes may be burned or buried.  Wastes to be 
burned must be isolated in a separate area of the site. 
Contact the local fire department, DENR-WMP, and 
local law enforcement prior to open burning. 

White goods/metals:  Refrigerators, washers, 
dryers, freezers, stoves, water heaters and other 

recyclable scrap metals, excluding petroleum fuel 
tanks unless they have been cleaned and can be 
recycled. 

These materials may be accepted for temporary 
storage only.  A properly certified or trained individual 
must remove all refrigerants (Freon) from refrigerant-
containing appliances prior to recycling. 

Waste tires Waste tires may be accepted for temporary storage 
only.  Keep tires at least 300 feet away from any open 

flame.  Waste tires may not be burned or buried.  
Storage is not to exceed one year. 

Miscellaneous wastes:  Carpets, chairs, couches, 
mattresses, linoleum, glass, and similar items. 

These wastes may not be burned.  These materials 
must be buried. 

Ash  Only ash from wood burning stoves or other 
household sources and authorized on-site open 
burning may be accepted for burial.   

Yard waste: Leaves, grass clippings and similar 
vegetation.  

Yard waste may not be burned.  Yard waste must be 
composted.  Reuse of compost shall be in compliance 
with applicable federal, state and local laws. 

    



 
 

 

Table 2 

Examples of Unauthorized Wastes 

Philip Restricted Use Solid Waste Facility 
 

The following wastes are not allowed to be accepted at this facility.  If these substances/materials are 
found at the site, proper specific handling procedures and requirements are stated here for operator use. 
The DENR-WMP can be contacted at (605) 773-3153. 

 

Type of waste Handling Procedures / Requirements 

Hazardous waste:  Waste oil, solvents, 
PCBs, ash, or similar wastes. 

Isolate waste and contact DENR-WMP as soon as 
possible.   

Pesticide containers Waste must be removed from the site and taken to a  
permitted solid waste facility or contact the Department 
of Agriculture for recycling options. 

Regulated asbestos-containing materials Isolate waste and contact DENR-WMP as soon as 
possible.  Waste must be taken to a permitted solid 
waste facility. 

Lead-acid batteries Waste must be removed from the site and taken to a 
recycler that accepts lead-acid batteries. 

Putrescible wastes:  Municipal solid waste 
and household garbage. 

Waste must be removed from the site and taken to a 
permitted municipal solid waste facility. 

Liquid waste:  Petroleum products, 
sludges, tar, paint, used motor oil, 
contaminated water, or other liquid 
wastes. 

Isolate waste and contact DENR-WMP as soon as 
possible to determine appropriate disposal methods. 

Treated wood: Wood treated with 
inorganic chemicals, chromated copper 
arsenate (CCA), pentachlorophenol (PCP), 
or creosote.  CCA and PCP treated wood 
is commonly referred to as green or brown 
treated. 

Waste must be removed from the site and taken to a 
permitted municipal solid waste landfill for disposal. 

Miscellaneous wastes: Cardboard, plastic, 
plastic containers, Styrofoam, foam 
rubber, packaging materials, containerized 
paints, sealants, adhesives, and similar 
materials. 

Waste must be removed and taken to a permitted 
municipal solid waste facility for disposal or recycled. 

Contaminated soil:  Soil contaminated with 
diesel fuel, fuel oil, kerosene, jet fuel, 
gasoline, pesticides, solvents, transformer 
oil, motor oil, lubricants, grease, tar, or 
similar materials. 

Isolate waste and contact DENR-WMP as soon as 
possible to determine appropriate disposal methods. 

Note:  Materials containing cathode ray tubes (CRTs), such as televisions and computer monitors,  
may not be accepted at restricted use sites unless the operator is certain they will be recycled.  CRTs 
may not be buried at restricted use sites. 
 



 
 

 

Attachment A 

Variances Approved 

Philip Restricted Use Site 

 

 
The DENR-WMP specifically recognizes and approves the following variances with the conditions as listed 
below: 
 
 
Regulatory Reference ARSD 74:27:11:05 - Distance to residences, other buildings, and roads 
  
 State solid waste rules specify that restricted use facilities may not be located within 1,000 feet of an 

occupied dwelling, school, hospital, interstate or primary road right-of-way, or public park or recreation 
area.  The location may not pose a safety hazard to the public. 

 
 State rules allow a variance for restricted use sites provided the facility is operated in a manner that will 

not threaten homes, other buildings, roads (visibility), or human health or safety. 
 
 The Philip restricted use site is located within 1,000 feet of an occupied dwelling.  The operator has 

demonstrated an ability to operate the facility in a manner that is acceptable.  Further, the operational 
and design requirements of this permit are specifically designed to ensure that operation of the facility, 
specifically open burning, will not pose a threat. 

 
 The operator shall comply with the conditions of this permit. 
 
 
Regulatory Reference ARSD 74:27:11:03 – Floodplains. 
 

Facilities shall not be located within the boundaries of a 100-year floodplain. 
 
 State solid waste rules (ARSD 74:27:11:09) allow a variance to the floodplain location criteria if the 

owner or operator demonstrates that the facility location will not pose a hazard to human health or 
degrade the environment. 

 
 The restricted use facility is located southwest of town, north of the South Fork Bad River, and within 

the 100-year floodplain. However, the city of Philip has demonstrated an ability to operate the facility in 
a manner that is acceptable, and that poses minimal risk to the floodplain. Further, the operational and 
design requirements of this permit are specifically designed to ensure that operation of the facility will 
not pose a threat either to or from the floodplain. 

 
 The operator shall comply with the conditions of this permit. 
 
 
Regulatory Reference ARSD 74:27:11:06 – Distance to surface water. 
 
 Facilities containing putrescible waste or other facilities disposing of materials that may pollute surface 

water may not be located within 1,000 feet of streams, creeks, lakes, reservoirs, or other bodies of 
water classified for fish life propagation. 

 
State solid waste rules (ARSD 74:27:11:09) allow a variance to the surface water location criteria if the 
owner or operator demonstrates that the facility location will not pose a hazard to human health or 
degrade the environment. 



 
 

 

The South Fork Bad River is located within 1,000 feet of the restricted use site and is a classified 
surface water body for warmwater marginal fish life propagation and limited-contact recreation water 
from the confluence of the Bad River and South Fork Bad River to Cottonwood Creek in Jackson 
County, SD.  The city of Philip has demonstrated an ability to operate the facility in a manner that is 
acceptable.  The operational and design requirements of this permit are specifically designed to 
ensure that operation of the facility will not pose a threat.  Therefore, operation of the disposal facility is 
not expected to impact surface waters or pose a hazard to human health or the environment. 
 

The operator shall comply with the conditions of this permit. 
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David LaFrance

From: Allen Bullock <allen.bullock@cetco.com>

Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 10:59 AM

To: David LaFrance

Subject: RE: Lagoon re-lining project

Attachments: TR-401bmcl.pdf; TR-400cl.doc

David  

Please find the attached information with reference to our earlier conversation.  

   

I have included information on our Bentomat CL system, which we recommend for this type of lining 

application.  Bentomat CL is a composite reinforced GCL that will ensure superior long term performance.  

   

For budgetary Purposes you should assume $ 0.64 per sq. foot for product and freight.  Let me know if you need 

anything else upon reviewing this material  

   

Thanks  

Allen  

   

Allen Bullock 

Technical Sales Manager 
Environmental Products 
2870 Forbs Avenue ● Hoffman Estates, IL  60192 
Direct: 847.851.1843 ● Mobile: 847.910.3141 
allen.bullock@cetco.com  |  www.cetco.com  

Innovative Remediation Solutions 

for Use on Land and in Water  
   

From: David LaFrance [mailto:davidl@bannerassociates.com]  

Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 4:55 PM 
To: Allen Bullock 

Subject: RE: Lagoon re-lining project  
   

This picture shows lagoons (2 cells) at 10 ft. deep, plus 3 ft. freeboard.   We’ll need to re-do the bottoms and go 

shallower, 5 ft. deep with 3 ft. freeboard to meet the latest state standards (min. 1 x 10 minus 7 cm/sec.) with a new 

liner.     

   

Let me know what you come up with, for a prelim. spec. and budgetary pricing.  

   

thank you,  

D.LaFrance  

   

From: Allen Bullock [mailto:allen.bullock@cetco.com]  

Sent: Monday, August 25, 2014 1:50 PM 
To: David LaFrance 

Subject: RE: Lagoon re-lining project  
   

Hi david  

I am at a conf today and will give you a call later this afternoon  
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Sent from Samsung Mobile  
   

-------- Original message --------  

From: David LaFrance  

Date:08/25/2014 9:14 AM (GMT-06:00)  

To: Allen Bullock  

Subject: Lagoon re-lining project  

   
Allen,  

Can you give me a call regarding a specialty wastewater lagoon re-lining project here in western SD?    I’d like to get 

some pricing from you for the Akwaseal liner.    

   

thanks,   

   

David LaFrance, PE  
Project Manager  
   

 
   
Banner Associates, Inc.  
730 South St, Suite 201 | PO Box 2024 (57709-2024)  
   
Rapid City, South Dakota 57701  
   
Telephone | 855.323.6342  
   
www.bannerassociates.com  

   
Confidentiality Notice: This E-Mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. & 2510-2524, is  
confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, dissemination, or copying  
of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please reply to the sender that you have received the message in error, and permanently delete the  
original and destroy any copy, including written (printed) copies of this email and any attachments thereto. Thank You.  
   

   



J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. 
408 S Veterans Street    Flandreau, SD  57028      Phone: (605) 997-3706        Fax: (605) 997-2873 

 

 

PROPOSAL 

 
         TO: David LaFrance, PE 

              Banner Associates, Inc. 

              730 South St, Suite 20 

              Rapid City, South Dakota 57701  DATE:        August 27, 2014     

         PROJECT:   Lagoon Re-lining Project 

         

         

Ph.:                                   

FX:     LOCATION: Philip, SD                 

   

SCOPE OF WORK 

J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. proposes to install Raven prefabricated sheets in the two 

proposed lagoons.  JCR will first dig an anchor trench around both lagoons before liner is 

deployed.  After liner is deployed, JCR will attach to the 6 concrete attachments (three in each 

pond).    

J.C. Ramsdell Enviro. Services, Inc. will arrive on site with their full deployment crew and 

all necessary equipment.  This includes mobile units for moving sand bags and QA/QC 

testing, skid-steers for pulling liner and moving of minor objects, and a loader for lifting 

and moving the liner or larger objects. 

 

J.C. Ramsdell Enviro. Services, Inc. proposes to furnish and install the material as listed below: 

Item Description Quantity    Cost Total Price 

1 Mob  304 mi $10/mi            $   3,040.00 

2 4000B Liner 43,200SF         $0.60/SF $25,920.00 

3 Anchor Trench 1,120LF $1.90/LF $2,128.00 

4 Labor (5 men) 3 days $950/man-day  $14,250.00 

5 Batten attachment 320LF $17/LF              $ 5,440.00 

 

TOTAL                         $50,778.00 

 

OPTION 

2 K36B Liner 43,200SF $0.65/SF $ 28,080.00 

 

• Item 1 includes mobilization of 5 man crew and equipment to site. 

• Item 2 includes material and delivery to site. 

• Item 3 includes equipment and labor to dig anchor trench around each lagoon. 

• Item 4 includes labor to install liner in the two ponds. 

• Item 5 includes labor and materials to install batten attachment to each concrete 

attachment. 
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PRICING 

Prices are FOB project site in full truckload lots.  The bid quantities are based on the quantities 

derived from the project specifications and/or drawings.  If revisions or drawing inaccuracies 

result in a change in the quantities of less than 5% of the quantities in this proposal, the unit price 

shall be applied.  If the change in quantity exceeds 5%, J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. 

reserves the right to negotiate a revised unit price.  SD sales tax of 6% has been added. 

TERMS OF SALE 

1.  COORDINATION 

1.1 The General Contractor/Owner shall coordinate and sequence the project so that the 

work can proceed in an orderly, productive, and continuous manner. 

2.  SERVICES 

The following shall be provided to J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. free of charge: 

2.1  Prior to liner installation, the exposed subgrade shall be prepared in accordance with 

the Project subgrade preparation specifications.  Weak or compressible areas, which 

cannot be satisfactorily compacted, should be removed and replaced with properly 

compacted fill.  All surfaces to be lined shall be smooth, free of all foreign and 

organic material, rocks or stones 3/8” and larger, sharp objects, or debris of 

any kind.  The surface should provide a firm, and unyielding foundation with no 

sudden, sharp, or abrupt changes in grade.  Standing water or excessive moisture 

shall not be allowed and shall be removed by the owner.  Subgrade shall be 

protected from flooding or desiccation cracking.  Subgrade shall be firm enough 

to support the use of rubber-tired equipment to deploy lining material.  J.C. 

Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. reserves the right to reject any surfaces, which do 

not meet the Liner Manufacturer’s sub-grade preparation specification. 

2.2  The General Contractor/Owner shall provide a waste container with disposal fees 

paid by the owner and portable toilets for J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. crews. 

2.3  The General Contractor/Owner shall supply a suitable aggregate to fill ballast tubes 

on site. 

2.4  The General Contractor/Owner shall provide a secure lay down and material storage 

area (150’ by 150’) located within a reasonable distance of the work area.  This area 

should be cleared of all rocks or sharp objects, which could damage the liner 

material. 

2.5  The General Contractor/Owner shall unload material as it arrives on site if 

J.C. Ramsdell Enviro. Services, Inc. personnel are not available. 

2.6  The General Contractor/Owner shall provide continuous site dewatering of the 

work area from rainwater, snow, melting snow, and ice, or any other source of 

water to allow uninterrupted operation for J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. 

crews.  

2.7  The General Contractor/Owner shall furnish the proper aggregates requested 

by J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. (i.e.: Sand for sandbags.) 

2.8  The General Contractor/Owner is to perform excavation, backfill, and 

tamping of anchor trench. 

 
 

3.  EXCLUSIONS 
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3.1  Liquidated or consequential damages.  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. reserves 

the rights to, at its option, repair and/or replace any defective material or 

workmanship defects at no additional cost to J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc.  

J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. will not pay any consequential or liquidated 

damages associated with repairs or replacement of materials. 

3.2  Bonds, permits, fees and deposits. 

3.3  Furnishing and installing geosynthetics or piping products other than those 

described in the proposal. 

3.4  Damage to the lining system due to others. 

3.5  Destructive testing or any third-party independent laboratory testing.  Owner can 

expect approximately 45 destructive tests at a cost of $75.00 each. 

3.6  Subgrade preparation, maintenance and inspection.  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro 

Services, Inc. is responsible for visually inspecting only the finished surface 

prior to liner placement, and is not responsible for subsurface soil conditions. 

3.7  Hazardous waste training or any work requiring any site specific hazardous 

waste safety equipment.  All work is to be performed in a clean non-hazardous 

environment. 

4.  LABOR 
4.1  Prices quoted are based on utilizing non-union, non-prevailing wage labor.   

5.  SAFETY 
5.1  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. crew has been properly trained in the aspect of 

liner installation safety.  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. is responsible for the 

safety of its crew while on the project site.  The owner shall be responsible for 

providing protection and safety of others on the project site by providing fences, 

barricades, ropes, ladders, security, etc. as necessary to prevent injury or death. 

6.  SCHEDULE 

6.1  The proposal is based on work commencing during the summer of 201x, proceeding 

in an unencumbered manner with one (1) mobilization of the 6 man crew and 

equipment for  3  good weather working days.  Should additional mobilizations be 

required, they will be provided at a cost as previously detailed. 

6.2  The proposal is based on JCR crew operating one (1) shift per day.  JCR crew 

standard workdays are from 7 AM to 6 PM.  Additional hours may be worked if 

JCR supervisor determines necessary.  JCR crew will work Saturdays and Sundays.  

The proposal is based on JCR crew proceeding without delays or interruptions 

caused by reasons beyond their control.  Delays due to inadequate or incomplete 

subgrade preparation and protection, improper sequencing, scheduling or 

coordinating of the work by the Owner, or other delays caused by reasons beyond 

J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. control will be charged at an hourly rate of 

$300/hr for a maximum of 8 hours per day.  In addition, J.C. Ramsdell Enviro 

Services, Inc. will charge the general contractor demobilization and mobilization at 

the price previously detailed. 

6.3  Ten working days notice must be given to JCR prior to their arrival on site.   

6.4  Mobilization to the site will occur following receipt of an order based upon J.C. 

Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. submitted materials and procedures, establishment 
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of an approved credit line and the signing of an agreement document between the 

owner and J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. 

 

 

7.  CHANGE ORDERS 
7.1  Change orders shall be in writing and subject to advance approval by J.C. Ramsdell 

Enviro Services, Inc. as to price before performing changed work.  No back charges 

will be issued, nor accepted unless 72 hours notice in writing of a condition 

requiring correction is given with an additional and reasonable amount of time for 

its correction. 

8.  INSURANCE 
8.1  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. will indemnify the owner for damages caused 

by its negligence.  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. will maintain insurance to 

the limits currently in effect with J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc., and will 

provide the owner with a certificate of insurance for the duration of the project.  

Any requirements in excess of the standard J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. 

policies will be charged and paid for by the Owner. 

9.  PAYMENTS 

9.1  The pricing is based upon J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. receiving a 

signed contract and a copy of the bond to initiate the order.  Final payment, 

including all retainers, shall be made by the owner to J.C. Ramsdell Enviro 

Services, Inc. 30 days after substantial completion of work stated in this proposal.  

All material will be purchased and paid for 30 days after invoice.  Any material 

shipped or ordered more than 30 days after the date of this proposal will be subject 

to any material price increases incurred from the date of this proposal. 

9.2  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. reserves the right to charge the owner interest, 

at the maximum legal rate allowed by state law in which the work is performed, on 

all late payments. 

10. QUALITY CONTROL 
10.1  The Liner Manufacturer will perform manufacturing quality control testing in 

their laboratory on the resins and geomembrane liner material during the 

manufacturing process.  Quality control during the manufacturing process shall be 

performed per Liner Manufacturer’s QC/QA guidelines.  The Liner Manufacturer 

will perform manufacturing conformance testing every 50,000 square feet.  J.C. 

Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. will have on site a qualified QC/QA person to 

perform all required field/laboratory testing. 

10.2  Permissible welding temperatures shall be between 32-104 degrees F and J.C. 

Ramsdell Enviro. Services, Inc. reserves the right to continue welding beyond 

specified temperatures as long as the seam test results meet the project and the 

Liner Manufacturer’s field seam values. 

11. WARRANTIES 
11.1  J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. shall provide the owner with standard pro-rata 

Material and Workmanship Warranties on the placement of liner upon successful 

completion of the work, contingent upon receipt of final and full payment.  The 
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terms and conditions of the J.C. Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. warranties shall 

take precedence over all other warranties in the contract documents. 

  1 year Workmanship Warranty from J.C. Ramsdell  

                        Enviro Services, Inc. 

5 year  Material Warranty from liner manufacturer. 
 

This offer to perform the stated work is based solely on this proposal and no other document(s), 

and is valid for THIRTY (30) days from the above date unless extended in writing by J.C. 

Ramsdell Enviro Services, Inc. 

ACCEPTED BY: 
 
COMPANY:____________________        J.C. RAMSDELL ENVIRO SERVICES, INC. 

 

BY:___________________________        BY:__Austin Luebke             ___________ 

 

TITLE:________________________        TITLE:__Estimator__________________ 

 

DATE:________________________         DATE:___8/27/2014_________________ 



 

TR 401-BMCL 
5/07 

800.527.9948 Fax 847.851.1899  
For the most up-to-date product information, please visit our website, www.cetco.com. 

A wholly owned subsidiary of AMCOL International Corporation. The information and data contained herein are believed to be accurate and reliable, 
CETCO makes no warranty of any kind and accepts no responsibility for the results obtained through application of this information. 

 

 
 
 

 
BENTOMAT® CL CERTIFIED PROPERTIES 

 
MATERIAL PROPERTY TEST METHOD TEST FREQUENCY 

ft2(m2) 
REQUIRED VALUES 

Bentonite Swell Index1 ASTM D 5890 1 per 50 tonnes 24 mL/2g min. 

Bentonite Fluid Loss1 ASTM D 5891 1 per 50 tonnes 18 mL max. 

Bentonite Mass/Area2 ASTM D 5993 40,000 ft2 (4,000 m2) 0.75 lb/ft2 (3.6 kg/m2) min

GCL Grab Strength3 ASTM D 6768 200,000 ft2 (20,000 m2) 45 lbs/in (78 N/cm) MARV

GCL Peel Strength3 ASTM D 6496 40,000 ft2 (4,000 m2) 3.5 lbs/in (6.1 N/cm) min 

GCL Index Flux4 ASTM D 5887 Periodic 1 x 10-9 m3/m2/sec max 

GCL Hydraulic Conductivity4 ASTM D 5887 Periodic 5 x 10-10 cm/sec max 

GCL Hydrated Internal 
Shear Strength5 

ASTM D 5321 
ASTM D 6243 Periodic 500 psf (24 kPa) typical 

  
Bentomat CL is a reinforced GCL consisting of a layer of sodium bentonite between two geotextiles, 
which are needlepunched together and laminated to a thin flexible membrane liner. 
 
Notes 
1 Bentonite property tests performed at a bentonite processing facility before shipment to CETCO’s GCL production facilities. 
2 Bentonite mass/area reported at 0 percent moisture content. 
3 All tensile strength testing is performed in the machine direction using ASTM D 6768.  All peel strength testing is performed using ASTM D 

6496.  Upon request, tensile and peel results can be reported per modified ASTM D 4632 using 4 inch grips. 
4 ASTM D5887 Index flux and hydraulic conductivity testing with deaired distilled/deionized water at 80 psi (551 kPa) cell pressure, 77 psi 

(531 kPa) headwater pressure and 75 psi (517 kPa) tailwater pressure.  Reported value is equivalent to 92 gal/acre/day.  This flux value is 
equivalent to a permeability of 5x10-10 cm/sec for typical GCL thickness.  ASTM D 5887 testing is performed only on a periodic basis 
because the membrane is essentially impermeable. 

5 Peak value measured at 200 psf (10 kPa) normal stress for a specimen hydrated for 48 hours.  Site-specific materials, GCL products, and 
test conditions must be used to verify internal and interface strength of the proposed design. 
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Pond Size Calculation for Cooling Pond Design Qev  = (1+ 0.225v)/0.018 x (Pw - Pa) x 144 x A x 1050 Btu/lbm

85.74 x (Ts + 460)

Flow 150 gpm

Influent Temperature 140
o
F v = 3 mph = 4.4 fps

Required Temperature 85
o
F Ts  = 85

o
F

Ambient Air Temp 70
o
F Tw  = 140

o
F

Surface Area Available 19600 SF Ta  = 70
o
F

Pa  = 0.074

Heat Loss Required: 150 gpm X 500.4 BTU/hr//
o
F/gpm   X ( 140

o
F   - 85

o
F  ) Pw  = 0.698

= 4,128,300 BTU/hour therefore:

Evaporative Heat loss

Qev  = 223.22 x A  = BTU/hr

Convective Heatloss

QCV  = 139.3 x  A BTU/hr

Total Heat Loss per Hour = 139.3 + 223.22 = 362.52 xA

for A = 19600 sf; Heat Loss = 7,105,431 BTU/hr Pond area is adequate

4,128,300 BTU/hr

Evaporative Loss

Convective Heat Loss

110.5556

46728.3



Pond Size Calculation for Cooling Pond Design Qev  = (1+ 0.225v)/0.018 x (Pw - Pa) x 144 x A x 1050 Btu/lbm

85.74 x (Ts + 460)

Flow 215 gpm

Influent Temperature 140
o
F v = 3 mph = 4.4 fps

Required Temperature 85
o
F Ts  = 85

o
F

Ambient Air Temp 70
o
F Tw  = 140

o
F

Surface Area Available 19600 SF Ta  = 70
o
F

Pa  = 0.074

Heat Loss Required: 215 gpm X 500.4 BTU/hr//
o
F/gpm   X ( 140

o
F   - 85

o
F  ) Pw  = 0.698

= 5,917,230 BTU/hour therefore:

Evaporative Heat loss

Qev  = 223.22 x A  = BTU/hr

Convective Heatloss

QCV  = 139.3 x  A BTU/hr

Total Heat Loss per Hour = 139.3 + 223.22 = 362.52 xA

for A = 19600 sf; Heat Loss = 7,105,431 BTU/hr Pond area is adequate

5,917,230 BTU/hr

Evaporative Loss

Convective Heat Loss

110.5556

46728.3
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  PRODUCT  

 

460-S0209 SOLN Barium Chloride Crystals, 
Form Solid  

  EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER(S)  

  (800) 424-9300 (24 Hours)     CHEMTREC  

 

 

Nalco Company 1601 W. Diehl Road • Naperville, Illinois 60563-1198 
(630)305-1000  
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1. CHEMICAL PRODUCT AND COMPANY IDENTIFICATION  

 
PRODUCT NAME : 460-S0209 SOLN Barium Chloride Crystals, Form Solid  
  
APPLICATION : REAGENT 
  
COMPANY IDENTIFICATION : Nalco Company 
 1601 W. Diehl Road  
 Naperville, Illinois  
 60563-1198  
  
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBER(S) : (800) 424-9300 (24 Hours)     CHEMTREC  
 
NFPA 704M/HMIS RATING 
HEALTH : 3 / 3 FLAMMABILITY : 1 / 1 INSTABILITY : 0 / 0 OTHER :  
0 = Insignificant    1 = Slight    2 = Moderate   3 = High    4 = Extreme 
 

2. COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS  

 
Our hazard evaluation has identified the following chemical substance(s) as hazardous.  Consult Section 15 for the 
nature of the hazard(s).   
 

Hazardous Substance(s)  CAS NO  % (w/w)  
Barium Chloride  10361-37-2    60.0 -  100.0 
 

3. HAZARDS IDENTIFICATION 

 

**EMERGENCY OVERVIEW** 

WARNING   
May be fatal if swallowed.  Irritating to eyes and skin.   
Do not take internally.  Do not get in eyes, on skin, on clothing.  Do not breathe dust.  Wear suitable protective 
clothing.  In case of contact with eyes, rinse immediately with plenty of water and seek medical advice.  After 
contact with skin, wash immediately with plenty of water.   
Not flammable or combustible.   

 
PRIMARY ROUTES OF EXPOSURE : 
Eye, Skin   
 
HUMAN HEALTH HAZARDS - ACUTE : 
 
EYE CONTACT : 
Can cause moderate irritation.   
 
SKIN CONTACT : 
Can cause mild to moderate irritation.   
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INGESTION : 
Not a likely route of exposure.  Ingestion of barium chloride can cause vascular constriction, violent peristalsis and 
digitalis-like effects.  May be harmful or fatal if swallowed.   
 
INHALATION : 
Repeated or prolonged exposure may irritate the respiratory tract.   
 
SYMPTOMS OF EXPOSURE : 
Acute : 
A review of available data does not identify any symptoms from exposure not previously mentioned.   
Chronic : 
A review of available data does not identify any symptoms from exposure not previously mentioned.   
 
AGGRAVATION OF EXISTING CONDITIONS : 
A review of available data does not identify any worsening of existing conditions.   
 

4. FIRST AID MEASURES  

 
EYE CONTACT : 
Immediately flush eye with water for at least 15 minutes while holding eyelids open.  If irritation persists, repeat 
flushing.  Get immediate medical attention.   
 
SKIN CONTACT : 
Remove contaminated clothing. Wash off affected area immediately with plenty of water.  If symptoms persist, call a 
physician.   
 
INGESTION : 
Induce vomiting if the patient is fully conscious.  Get immediate medical attention.   
 
INHALATION : 
Remove to fresh air, treat symptomatically.  If symptoms develop, seek medical advice.   
 
NOTE TO PHYSICIAN : 
Based on the individual reactions of the patient, the physician's judgement should be used to control symptoms and 
clinical condition.   
 

5. FIRE FIGHTING MEASURES  

 
FLASH POINT : None   
 
EXTINGUISHING MEDIA : 
Not expected to burn.  Use extinguishing media appropriate for surrounding fire.   
 
FIRE AND EXPLOSION HAZARD : 
Not flammable or combustible.   
 
SPECIAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT FOR FIRE FIGHTING : 
In case of fire, wear a full face positive-pressure self contained breathing apparatus and protective suit.   
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6. ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES  

 
PERSONAL PRECAUTIONS : 
Notify appropriate government, occupational health and safety and environmental authorities.  Use personal 
protective equipment recommended in Section 8 (Exposure Controls/Personal Protection).   
 
METHODS FOR CLEANING UP : 
Sweep up and shovel.  Reclaim into recovery or salvage drums.  Dispose of material in compliance with regulations 
indicated in Section 13 (Disposal Considerations).   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PRECAUTIONS : 
Do not contaminate surface water.   
 

7. HANDLING AND STORAGE  

 
HANDLING : 
Do not take internally.  Ensure all containers are labelled.  Avoid eye and skin contact.  Avoid generating dusts.   
 
STORAGE CONDITIONS : 
Store separately from oxidizers.  Keep in dry place.   
 

8. EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAL PROTECTION  

 
OCCUPATIONAL EXPOSURE LIMITS : 
Exposure guidelines have not been established for this product.  Available exposure limits for the substance(s) are 
shown below.   
 
ACGIH/TLV : 
Substance(s)  
      Barium, soluble 
compounds, as Ba  

TWA: 0.5 mg/m3   
 

OSHA/PEL : 
Substance(s)  
       Barium, soluble 
compounds, as Ba  

TWA: 0.5 mg/m3   
 

 
ENGINEERING MEASURES : 
General ventilation is recommended.  Local exhaust ventilation may be necessary when dusts or mists are 
generated.   
 
RESPIRATORY PROTECTION : 
Respiratory protection is not normally needed.  An approved respirator must be worn if the occupational exposure 
limit is likely to be exceeded.  A dust respirator may be used.   
 
HAND PROTECTION : 
Nitrile gloves, PVC gloves, Neoprene gloves, Rubber gloves, Butyl gloves, Cloth gloves  
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SKIN PROTECTION : 
Wear standard protective clothing.   
 
EYE PROTECTION : 
Wear safety glasses with side-shields.   
 
HYGIENE RECOMMENDATIONS : 
Keep an eye wash fountain available.  Keep a safety shower available.   
 
HUMAN EXPOSURE CHARACTERIZATION : 
Based on our recommended product application and personal protective equipment, the potential human exposure 
is:  Low  
 

9. PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES  

 
PHYSICAL STATE  Crystalline  
 
APPEARANCE  Clear   
 
ODOR  None  
 
SPECIFIC GRAVITY  3.1 
SOLUBILITY IN WATER  Partial  
MELTING POINT  235 °F / 113 °C  
 
Note: These physical properties are typical values for this product and are subject to change. 
 

10. STABILITY AND REACTIVITY  

 
STABILITY : 
Stable under normal conditions.   
 
HAZARDOUS POLYMERIZATION : 
Hazardous polymerization will not occur.   
 
CONDITIONS TO AVOID : 
Moisture   
 
MATERIALS TO AVOID : 
Contact with strong oxidizers (e.g. chlorine, peroxides, chromates, nitric acid, perchlorate, concentrated oxygen, 
permanganate) may generate heat, fires, explosions and/or toxic vapors.   
 
HAZARDOUS DECOMPOSITION PRODUCTS : 
Under fire conditions:  None known 
 

11. TOXICOLOGICAL INFORMATION  

 
The following results are for the product.   
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ACUTE ORAL TOXICITY : 
Species  LD50  Test Descriptor  
Rat 118 mg/kg   Product  
Rating :  Toxic  
  
CARCINOGENICITY : 
None of the substances in this product are listed as carcinogens by the International Agency for Research on 
Cancer (IARC), the National Toxicology Program (NTP) or the American Conference of Governmental Industrial 
Hygienists (ACGIH).   
 
HUMAN HAZARD CHARACTERIZATION : 
Based on our hazard characterization, the potential human hazard is:  High   
 

12. ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION  

 
ECOTOXICOLOGICAL EFFECTS : 
 
No toxicity studies have been conducted on this product.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HAZARD AND EXPOSURE CHARACTERIZATION  
Based on our hazard characterization, the potential environmental hazard is:  Moderate   
Based on our recommended product application and the product's characteristics, the potential environmental 
exposure is:  Low   
 
If released into the environment, see CERCLA/SUPERFUND in Section 15.  
 

13. DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS  

 
If this product becomes a waste, it could meet the criteria of a hazardous waste as defined by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) 40 CFR 261.  Before disposal, it should be determined if the waste meets 
the criteria of a hazardous waste.   
 
Hazardous Waste:  D005  
 
As a non-hazardous waste, it is not subject to federal regulation. Consult state or local regulation for any additional 
handling, treatment or disposal requirements.  For disposal, contact a properly licensed waste treatment, storage, 
disposal or recycling facility.   
 

14. TRANSPORT INFORMATION  

 
The information in this section is for reference only and should not take the place of a shipping paper (bill of lading) 
specific to an order.  Please note that the proper Shipping Name / Hazard Class may vary by packaging, properties, 
and mode of transportation.  Typical Proper Shipping Names for this product are as follows.  
 
LAND TRANSPORT : 
 

Proper Shipping Name : BARIUM COMPOUNDS, N.O.S.  
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Technical Name(s) : BARIUM CHLORIDE 
UN/ID No : UN 1564  
Hazard Class - Primary : 6.1  
Packing Group : III  

 
Flash Point : None  

 
AIR TRANSPORT (ICAO/IATA) : 
 

Proper Shipping Name : BARIUM COMPOUNDS, N.O.S.  
Technical Name(s) : BARIUM CHLORIDE 
UN/ID No : UN 1564  
Hazard Class - Primary : 6.1  
Packing Group : III  
IATA Cargo Packing Instructions : 619  
IATA Cargo Aircraft Limit : 200 KG  (Max net quantity per package)  

 
MARINE TRANSPORT (IMDG/IMO) : 
 

Proper Shipping Name : BARIUM COMPOUNDS, N.O.S.  
Technical Name(s) : BARIUM CHLORIDE 
UN/ID No : UN 1564  
Hazard Class - Primary : 6.1  
Packing Group : III  

 

15. REGULATORY INFORMATION  

 
NATIONAL REGULATIONS, USA : 
 
OSHA HAZARD COMMUNICATION RULE, 29 CFR 1910.1200 : 
Based on our hazard evaluation, the following substance(s) in this product is/are hazardous and the reason(s) is/are 
shown below.  
 
Barium Chloride :  Systemic Effect  
 
CERCLA/SUPERFUND, 40 CFR 117, 302 : 
Notification of spills of this product is not required.   
 
SARA/SUPERFUND AMENDMENTS AND REAUTHORIZATION ACT OF 1986 (TITLE III) - SECTIONS 302, 311, 
312, AND 313 : 
 
SECTION 302 - EXTREMELY HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES (40 CFR 355) : 
This product does not contain substances listed in Appendix A and B as an Extremely Hazardous Substance.    
 
SECTIONS 311 AND 312 - MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET REQUIREMENTS (40 CFR 370) : 
Our hazard evaluation has found this product to be hazardous.  The product should be reported under the following 
indicated EPA hazard categories:   
 

X Immediate (Acute) Health Hazard  
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- Delayed (Chronic) Health Hazard  
- Fire Hazard  
- Sudden Release of Pressure Hazard  
- Reactive Hazard  

 
Under SARA 311 and 312, the EPA has established threshold quantities for the reporting of hazardous chemicals.  
The current thresholds are: 500 pounds or the threshold planning quantity (TPQ), whichever is lower, for extremely 
hazardous substances and 10,000 pounds for all other hazardous chemicals.  
 
SECTION 313 - LIST OF TOXIC CHEMICALS (40 CFR 372) : 
This product contains the following substance(s), (with CAS # and % range) which appear(s) on the List of Toxic 
Chemicals  
 

Hazardous Substance(s)  CAS NO  % (w/w)  
Barium Chloride  10361-37-2   60.0 - 100.0 

 
TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL ACT (TSCA) : 
The substances in this preparation are included on or exempted from the TSCA 8(b)  Inventory (40 CFR 710)  
 
FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT, CLEAN WATER ACT, 40 CFR 401.15 / formerly Sec. 307, 40 
CFR 116.4 / formerly Sec. 311 : 
None of the substances are specifically listed in the regulation.  
 
CLEAN AIR ACT, Sec. 111 (40 CFR 60, Volatile Organic Compounds), Sec. 112 (40 CFR 61, Hazardous Air 
Pollutants), Sec. 602 (40 CFR 82, Class I and II Ozone Depleting Substances) : 
None of the substances are specifically listed in the regulation.  
 
CALIFORNIA PROPOSITION 65 : 
This product does not contain substances which require warning under California Proposition 65.  
 
MICHIGAN CRITICAL MATERIALS : 
None of the substances are specifically listed in the regulation.  
 
 
STATE RIGHT TO KNOW LAWS : 
The following substances are disclosed for compliance with State Right to Know Laws:  
 

Barium Chloride  10361-37-2 
 
NATIONAL REGULATIONS, CANADA : 
 
WORKPLACE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INFORMATION SYSTEM (WHMIS) : 
This product has been classified in accordance with the hazard criteria of the Controlled Products Regulations 
(CPR) and the MSDS contains all the information required by the CPR.  
  
WHMIS CLASSIFICATION : 
D1B - Materials Causing Immediate and Serious Toxic Effects - Toxic Material, D2B - Materials Causing Other Toxic 
Effects - Toxic Material   
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CANADIAN ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT (CEPA) : 
The substances in this preparation are listed on the Domestic Substances  List (DSL), are exempt, or have been 
reported in accordance with the  New Substances Notification Regulations.  
  

16. OTHER INFORMATION  

 
Due to our commitment to Product Stewardship, we have evaluated the human and environmental hazards and 
exposures of this product.  Based on our recommended use of this product, we have characterized the product's 
general risk.  This information should provide assistance for your own risk management practices.  We have 
evaluated our product's risk as follows:  
  
* The human risk is:  Low  
  
* The environmental risk is:  Low  
  
Any use inconsistent with our recommendations may affect the risk characterization.  Our sales representative will 
assist you to determine if your product application is consistent with our recommendations.  Together we can 
implement an appropriate risk management process.  
 
This product material safety data sheet provides health and safety information.  The product is to be used in 
applications consistent with our product literature.  Individuals handling this product should be informed of the 
recommended safety precautions and should have access to this information.  For any other uses, exposures should 
be evaluated so that appropriate handling practices and training programs can be established to insure safe 
workplace operations.  Please consult your local sales representative for any further information.  
 

REFERENCES  
 
Threshold Limit Values for Chemical Substances and Physical Agents and Biological Exposure Indices, American 
Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists, OH., (Ariel Insight# CD-ROM Version), Ariel Research Corp., 
Bethesda, MD.  
 
Hazardous Substances Data Bank, National Library of Medicine, Bethesda, Maryland (TOMES CPS# CD-ROM 
Version), Micromedex, Inc., Englewood, CO.  
 
IARC Monographs on the Evaluation of the Carcinogenic Risk of Chemicals to Man, Geneva:  World Health 
Organization, International Agency for Research on Cancer.  
 
Integrated Risk Information System, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Washington, D.C. (TOMES CPS# CD-
ROM Version), Micromedex, Inc., Englewood, CO.  
 
Annual Report on Carcinogens, National Toxicology Program, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 
Public Health Service.  
 
Title 29 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1910, Subpart Z, Toxic and Hazardous Substances, Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration (OSHA), (Ariel Insight# CD-ROM Version), Ariel Research Corp., Bethesda, MD.  
 
Registry of Toxic Effects of Chemical Substances, National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health, Cincinnati, 
OH, (TOMES CPS# CD-ROM Version), Micromedex, Inc., Englewood, CO.  
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Ariel Insight# (An integrated guide to industrial chemicals covered under major regulatory and advisory programs), 
North American Module, Western European Module, Chemical Inventories Module and the Generics Module (Ariel 
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The Teratogen Information System, University of Washington, Seattle, WA (TOMES CPS# CD-ROM Version), 
Micromedex, Inc., Englewood, CO.  
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TITLE:  Solid Waste Management Program Funding Applications 
  
  
EXPLANATION:   The Solid Waste Management Program was established under SDCL 

46A-1-83.  The Board of Water and Natural Resources may award 
grant and loan funds for the purpose of solid waste planning and 
management under the program. ARSD 74:05:10:09 provides that 
applications for the March funding round are due by January 1.  The 
following applications have been received by DENR for funding 
consideration at this meeting. 
 

a. Brown County 
b. Pierre 

 
Pursuant to ARSD 75:05:10:11, the Board must make its funding 
decisions within 120 days after applications are presented.  In 
accordance with SDCL 46A-1-83, a minimum of 50 percent of the 
Solid Waste Management Program funds must be reserved for 
recycling activities. 

  
COMPLETE 
APPLICATIONS:  

The application cover sheets and summary sheets have been 
provided as part of the board packet.  Complete applications are 
available online and can be accessed by typing the following address 
in your internet browser: 
 

http://denr.sd.gov/bwnrapps/BWNRappsother0615.pdf 
 

If you would like hard copies of the applications, please contact 
Andy Bruels at (605) 773-4216. 

 

http://denr.sd.gov/bwnrapps/BWNRappsother0615.pdf


WRAP REVIEW SHEET 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

 
 ENGINEERING REVIEW COMPLETED BY: DREW HUISKEN 
 
 
Applicant: Brown County 
  
Project Title: Landfill Scraper Purchase 
  
Funding Requested: $385,000 
  
Other Proposed Funding: $385,494 – Local Cash 
  
Total Project Cost: $770,494 
  
Project Description: Brown County is proposing to purchase a new scraper at 

the landfill to replace the existing scraper which has 
outlived its useful life. 
 

  
Type:  Regional Landfill 
  
Service Population: 36,531 
  
 
Financial & History Information: 

 
In March 2014, Brown County received a $346,400 
SWMP grant for the construction of a second cell at its 
landfill. 
 
In March 2012, Brown County received a $342,000 
SWMP grant to purchase a new dozer for the landfill. 
 
In June 2011, Brown County received a $298,230 SWMP 
grant for a new compactor purchase.  

 



SO EForm 0482LD V2 

Solid Waste Management Program RECEIVED 

Application MAR 3 1 2015 
Applicant/Tax ID # 
Brown County 
46-6000010 

Address 

25 Market St reet 
Aberdeen, SO 57401 

Phone 
Number 

(605) 626-7110 

Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

Project Title: Brown County Landfill Purchase of a new scraper 

Description: 

. Divis10n of Financial 
Proposed Fund tng Pac!iil}emicaiAssistancc 

SWMP Funds: $385,000 

Local Cash: $385,494 

Tota l Project Cost: $770,494 

Brown County is proposing to purchase a new scraper to replace their existing scraper which has out lived its 
useful life. 

The Applicant certifies that: 

I declare and affirm under the penalties of perjury that this application has been examined by me, and to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, is in all things true and correct. ~ 

DuaneSutton,Chair ~~ 3--Z </-/ f" 
7 

Name and Title of Authorized Signatory (Typed) Signature Date 
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Professional Contacts: 

Application Prepared By: Northeast Council of Governments 

Contact Person: Ted Dickey 
---------------------------------------------------------

Mai ling Address: PO Box 1985 

City, State, and Zip: Aberdeen, SO 57401 

Telephone Number: (605) 626-2595 Fax: (605) 626-2975 

Emaii address: ted@necog.org 

Consulting Engineering Firm: N/A 
---------------------------------------------------

Contact Person: 

Mai ling Address: 

City, State, and Zip: 

Telephone Number: Fax: 

Email address: 

Legal Counsel's Firm: Brown County States Attorney 

Legal Counsel: Larry Lovrien 
---------------------------------------------------------

Mailing Address: 22 Court St., Suite 2 
---------------------------------------------------------

City, State, and Zip: Aberdeen, SO 57401 
---------------------------------------------------------

Telephone Number: (605) 626-7130 Fax: (605) 626-7132 

Email address: larry.lovrien@browncounty.sd.gov 

Finance Office: Brown County Auditor 

Contact Person: Maxine Fischer 

Mailing Address: 25 Market Street 

City, State, and Zip: Aberdeen, SO 57401 

Telephone Number: (605) 626-7110 Fax: (605) 626-4010 

Email address: maxine.fischer@browncounty.sd.gov 
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BUDGET SHEET 
A B c D E 

Cost Classification Total Funds 
SWMP Funds 

1. Administrative Expenses 

A. Personal Services 

B. Travel 

C. Legal 

D. Other 

2. Land, Structure, Right of Way 

Engineering 

A. Planning & Design Fees 

B. Proj ect Inspection Fees 

C. Other 

4. Construction & Proj ect Improvements 

5. Equipment $385,000 $385,494 $770,494 

6. Contractual Services 

7. Other 

8. Other 

Subtotal (Lines 1- 8) $385,000 $385,494 $770,494 

1 0. Contingencies 

11. Total (Lines 9- 1 0) $385,000 $385.494 $770.494 

12. Total Percentage 49.97% 50.03% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Columns A- E: Identify each funding source and enter the amounts budgeted by cost category. Page 3 of9 



Proposed Method of Financing 
Secured Funds 

SWMP Funds 

Local Cash 385,494 

Other: 

Other: 

Other: 

Total 385,494 

Interest rate and term you are applying for: ____ %, years. 

What security is being pledged toward the repayment of this loan? 

(Political Subdivisions Only) 

D 1. General Obligation bond (requires bond election) 
D 2. Revenue Obligation bond 

D 3. Sales Tax Revenue bond 

Unsecured Funds 

385,000 

385,000 

Other Funds to be Borrowed 

Amount Rate Term Annual Debt Service 
Security Pledged for 

Repayment 

*Other: 

*Other: 

*Other: 
----- - ---- - - -------------

*Please attach copies of commitment letters that contain specific terms and conditions for each source of financing. 
**Please attach collateral information such as cost, book, and market values. 

Date 

6/26/2015 

----- -----

**Collateral Position 
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Applicant Type 

Fiscal Year Ends 

Population Served 

Current: 

!county 

December 31 

36531 2010: 

Estimated date construction or acquisition will commence: 

Estimated completion or acquisition and installation date: 

**Estimated Useful Life of Project: 

**The term of the loan cannot exceed the useful life of project 

Demographic Area 

36,53 1 2000: 35,460 

August 20, 2015 

November 1 1, 201 5 

15 

Identify and briefly describe the current area that is served and identify any new areas to be served as a result of 
this project. 

The Brown County Landfill serves over 40,000 residents in a 4 county area. There are no new areas to be served as 
a result of this project. 

Services Provided 

Describe the current services provided and identify any additional service as a result of this project. 

The facility currently accepts appliances, asbestos, compost contaminated soil, industrial solid waste, municipal 
solid waste, tires, rubble scrap metal, sludge, trees and e-waste. There will be no additional services as a result of 
this project. 

Describe how the services or products provided with this project w ill assist in promoting the goals of the Solid 
Waste Management Hierarchy, which are identified on page 4 of the instructions. 

The purchase of a new scraper will not assist in promoting the goals of the Solid Waste Management Hierarchy. 

Page 5 of9 



Status report for all existing Solid Waste Management Program grants or loans 

Grant/Loan# Status 

2015G-SW-100 Currently drawing final drawdown. Project is complete. 

If applicable, list the top thre e products that comprise the applicant's sales. 

Name City, State, & Phone Products o/o of Sales 

City of Aberdeen Aberdeen, SO 605-626-7025 Mun icipal Solid Waste 40% 

A-1 Sanitation Aberdeen, SO 605-226-2971 Municipal Solid Waste 1 Oo/o 

City of Groton Groton, SO 605-397-8422 Municipal Solid Waste 4% 

If applicable, list the top three principal competitors and their current market share within the industry. 

Name City, State, & Phone Products o/o of Market Share 

N/A 
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List all current debt pledged to the same proposed security for repayment of !oan. 

Purpose of Debt 

Year Debt acquired 

Security Pledged 

Amount 

Maturity Date (mo/yr) 

Debt Holder 

Debt Coverage 
Requirement 

Annual Requ ired 
Payment 

Outstanding Balance 

Term 

Rate 

Please use additional sheets if necessary. 
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Property Tax Information: 
(Complete this section only if General Obligation Bond is pledged to repay your loan) 

Three year valuation trend: 

Year 

Assessed Valuation 

Full & True Valuation 

Three year levies and collection trend: 

Year 

Amount Levied 

Collected 

Penalties/! nterest 

Late Payments 

Five Largest Taxpayers Description Assessed Valuation 

Additional Comments: 
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Sales Tax Information 
(Complete this section only if sales tax is pledged to repay your loan.) 

Sales tax revenue history for the most current fifteen months: 

Month/ Year Amount Collected 

Comments: 

Page 9 of9 
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RESOLUTION 

Authorizing SWMP Signatory 
For Brown County 

WHEREAS, Brown County is proposing to purchase a scraper for the Brown 
County Landfill ; and 

WHEREAS, Brown County is applying for a Solid Waste Management Program 
Grant (SWMP) in an amount up to, but not exceeding $385,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, Brown County needs to authorize a SWMP signatory. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Brown County make application to 
the South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources for a 
SWMP grant in an amount up to, but not exceeding $385,000.00; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chair of Brown County be the authorized 
signatory for all related documents, including the application and pay requests. 

Dated this z.c( day of M~ 2015 

ATTEST: 

~d:;;;y~o -
Co ty uditor 
Brown County 

Chai~ 
Brown County 
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PROJECT NARRATIVE 

Project Description 

The Brown County Landfill is proposing to purchase a scraper to replace the aging 
scraper at the landfill. Total Project cost is estimated at $770,494. 

Eligibility 

As a solid waste facility in the State of South Dakota, the Brown County Landfill 
is eligible for Solid Waste Management funding. 

Need/Problem Identification 

The existing scraper is in need of replacement as it has over 10,000 man-hours of 
operation. 

Ability to Solve the Problem/Method of Accomplishment 

The purchase of a new machine will solve the problem at the landfill. 

Scope of Project 

Brown County is looking to purchase a 627K Wheel Tractor-Scraper with a cold 
start attachment. Attached is a spec sheet that details the other features of the scraper. 
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Price Guide 

• Minimum charge: $3 .00 per load (most loads range in price from $3 to $10). 
• All loads prorated based on net weight (ex: 500 lbs. of rubble debris would cost 

$4.00). 
• The following items are Accepted Free: Lead acid batteries, waste oil, paint, 

grass & leaves, computer & office paper, cardboard, # 1 & #2 plastic, 
magazines, phone books, antifreeze (resident only) & propane tanks. 

Appliances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $12.50 per item 
Refrigerators, freezers, air conditioners, washers, dryers, dishwashers, stoves, dehumidifiers 
(with or without freon) 

Asbestos. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $5 per bag 
Friable Powder or dust state Can be crumbled or reduced to powder by hand Manifest required 

Compost .... . . ...... . .. ........ ... .. . 
Grass, leaves and light garden residue only 

Contaminated Soil ................... . 
Gas & Diesel contaminated soil 
(notification & analysis required before disposal) 

Contaminated Soil - Special ............ . 
NW Energy, Coal Gasification and Other like material 
(notification and analysis required before disposal) 
Contaminated Soil Mixture ............ . 
Waste Oil & Mixed Fuel contaminated soil 
(notification & analysis required before disposal) 

Industrial Solid Waste ................ . 

FREE 

$7 per ton 

$38 per ton 

$11.50 per ton 

$38 per ton 

Municipal Solid Waste 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $38 per ton 
In County: 
Paper, Plastic, Cardboard, Carpet, Upholstered furniture, Mattress, box springs TV's, Computer 
Hardware etc. 
- Check with landfill for material not accepted. 

M uoicipai Soiid Waste 2 .............. . $38 per ton 



Out of County: glass, paper, plastic, cardboard, carpet, upholstered furniture, matresses. box 
springs 
- Check with landfill for material not accepted. 

Municipal Solid Waste Dead Animals .... 
Carcasses (notification required prior to dumping) 

Municipal Solid Waste Rubble .... 
Unjt 1 & 2 C&D Debris (same as Rubble 1) 

Tire S hreds .... 
New Deal Tire (Shreds) 

Rubble 1 ...... ......... .. ... . . . ..... . 
Construction Debris: lumber, shingles, sheetrock, all wood furniture 
(Rubble Site) 

Rubble 2 .. ...... .................... . 
Heavy Debris: concrete, dirt, rocks, etc. 
(Rubble Site) 

Rubble 3 ............................ . 
Pallets 

Scrap Metal ................ ........ . . 
All Metals 

Sludge ....................... .. .. . . . 
Sump Waste (analysis may be required) 

Tires .......... . . ......... . .. . .. . ... . 
Large quantities priced per ton 

Tires Count . .. ...................... . 
Car & Light Truck 

Tree C hips .... . ..................... . 
Wood chips from trees 

T rees 1 .................... ......... . 
Less than 8 inches in diameter 

Trees 2 ...... . ...................... . 
More than 8 inches in diameter (must be 8 foot or shot1er in length) 

$38 per ton 

$20 per ton 

$38 perton 

$20 per ton 

$14 per ton 

$20 per ton 

$20 per ton 

$10 per ton 

$200 per ton 

$2.50 per tire 

$14 perton 

$20 per ton 

$14 perton 
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February 16, 2015 

BROWN COUNTY SOLID WASTE 

Dear Mike Scott. 

We are pleased to quote the following for your consideration. 

MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 

627K Wheel Tractor-Scraper T4F 

Cold Start Attachment 

Non Push Pull 

HID Work Ughts 

Cooling, High Ambient Tief 4 
Cab Precteaner 

Product Link, Satellite PL321 

SELL PRICE 

WARRANTY 

Standard Warranty: 

Extended Warranty: 

·rires, 33.25R29 BS VL T "" E2A 

Sequence Assist 

Load Assist 

3 -Camera shows RT side/cutting edgeJdirecUy behind machine 

Air Hom and Beacon 

Wiring Group 

627 _ T 4 coverage /60 Months I 2000 Hours 

Thank you for the opportunity to quote this equipment. 

Sincet"ely, -·-., 

' '\ 

~~~~ 
David Sangster 
Machine Sales Representative DavidSangster@butlermachinery.com 
605-216-4605 

Quote 119970-01 

$770,494.45 
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PAST TWO YEARS FINANCIALS 



BROWN COUNTY 

AUDIT REPORT 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

State of South Dakota 
Department of Legislative Audit 

427 South Chapelle 
%500 East Capitol 

Pierre, SO 57501-5070 
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MARTIN L. GUINDON. CPA 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

County Commission 
Brown County 
Aberdeen, South Dakota 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Brown County, South Dakota (County), as of December 31, 2012 and for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 6, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal" control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opin ions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the County's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs as item No. 2012-01 to be a material weakness. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements. noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinron on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

County's Response to Findings 

The County's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of 
Current Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. The County's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 
4-11-11, this report is a matter o ublic record and its distribution is not limited. 

Martin L. Guindon, CPA 
Auditor General 

August6,2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

County Commission 
Brown County 
Aberdeen, South Dakota 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Brown County, South Dakota (County), compliance with the types of compliance 
requi rements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County's major federal programs 
for the year ended December 31, 2012. The County's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMS Circular A-133, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Brown County complied. in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2012. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the County's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that cou ld have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses rnay exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMS Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purposes. As required by South 
Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11, this report and our report on compliance for each major federal program 
are matters of public record and eir distribution is not limited. 

Martin L. Guindon, CPA 
Aud itor General 

August6, 2013 
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BROWN COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AND CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Prior Audit Findings: 

The prior audit report contained no written audit findings. 

SCHEDULE OF CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results: 

Financial Statements 

a. An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements of each opinion unit. 

b. A material weakness was disclosed by our audit of the financial statements for a lack of internal 
controls over financial reporting as discussed in cu rrent audit finding No. 2012-01. 

c. Our audit did not disclose any noncompliance which was material to the financial statements. 

Federal Awards 

d. An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance with the requirements applicable to major 
programs. 

e. Our audit did not disclose any audit findings that need to be disclosed in accordance with the 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a). 

f. The federal award tested as a major program was: 

CDBG- State-Administered CDBG Cluster 

g. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal award programs was 
$300,000. 

h. Brown County did qualify as a low-risk auditee. 

Current Federal Audit Findings: 

There are no written current federal compliance audit findings to report. 

Current Other Audit Findings: 

Internal Control-Related Findings - Material Weakness: 

Finding No. 2012-01: 
Financial Reporting Errors 

Internal accounting controls over financial reporting for the year ended December 31 , 2012 were 
inadequate resulting in inaccurate information being presented to users of the report. 
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Analysis: 

We noted the following significant errors in the County's annual financial report for the year ended 
December 31 , 2012: 

a. The Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities - Cash and Cash Equivalents in the 
amount of $238,256.31 were incorrectly reported as Investments and also incorrectiy 
reported on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. 

b. The Statement of Net Position - Business-Type Activities - Restricted Cash and Cash 
Equivalents in the amount of $331,453.17 were incorrectly reported as Restricted 
Investments. 

c. The Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities - Other Capital Assets Net of 
Depreciation were understated by $154,055.67, which was the result of using the incorrect 
average cost per mile to convert paved roads to gravel roads. 

d. The Statement of Net Position- Business-Type Activities- Amount Due Within One Year 
was understated by $424,750.00 and Amount Due in More Than One Year was overstated by 
the same amount. 

e. The Statement of Activities - Business-Type Activities- Operating Grants and Contributions 
were overstated by $197,000.00 and Capital Grants and Contributions were understated by 
the same amount. 

f. The Balance Sheet - Assigned Fund Balance was overstated by $211 ,203.00, Restricted 
Fund Balance was understated by $44,356.70 and Unassigned Fund Balance was 
understated by $166,846.30. 

Other less significant errors were also noted in the County's annual financial report. 

We were able to correct the material reporting errors and therefore have issued an unmodified auditor's 
opinion on the financial statements contained in this audit report. However, users of the annual financial 
reports received information of diminished reliability. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

We recommend the County strengthen internal accounting controls over financial reporting. 

Management's Response: 

Brown County agrees with the finding and will strive to comply with the recommendation. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

County Commission 
Brown County 
Aberdeen, South Dakota 

Report o n the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brown County, South Dakota 
(County), as of December 31 , 2012 and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of 
Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The County's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the County's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brown County as of December 31, 2012, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedules on pages 43 through 47, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The County has omitted the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing 
information. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, 
which as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 6, 
2013 on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2012 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

ASSET S: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,049,627.06 $ 2,950,224.67 $ 5,999,851 .73 
Investments 3,950,000.00 1 '078, 779.38 5,028, 779.38 
Accounts Receivable, Net 587,834.85 141,776.21 729,611.06 
Inventories 1,133,771.10 49,639.69 1,183,410.79 
Other Assets 205,527.15 205,527.15 
Restricted Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 345,160.83 345,160.83 
Investments 1,383,006.22 1,383,006.22 

Capital Assets: 
land, Improvements and Construction in 

Progress 2.003, 770.4 7 493.564.81 2,497,335.28 
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 50,976,391.72 4,233,919.49 55,210,311.21 

TOTAl ASSETS $ 61,906,922.35 $ 10,676.071.30 $ 72.582,993.65 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable $ 91,632.36 $ 128,925.23 $ 220,557.59 
Other Current liabilities 171 ,091.36 171 ,091.36 
Deferred Revenue 220,404.84 220,404.84 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due Within One Year 820,495.95 457,287.68 1,277, 783.63 
Due in More than One Year 6, 796,905.02 1,323,940.95 8,120,845. 97 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,100,529.53 1,910,153.86 10,010,683.39 

NET POSITION: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Restricted For: (See Note 11) 

52,980,162.19 4,727,484.30 57,707,646.49 

Road and Bridge Purposes 1 ,547,178.01 1,547,178.01 
Other Purposes 333,059.72 333,059.72 

Unrestricted (Deficit) (See Note 12) (1,054,007.1 0) 4,038,433.14 2,984,426.04 

TOTAL NET POSITION 53,806,392.82 8,765,917.44 62,572,310.26 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 61 ,906,922.35 $ 10,676,071.30 $ 72,582,993.65 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Functions/Prosrams 
Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities: 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Health and Welfare 
Culture and Recreation 
Conservation of Natural Resources 
Urban and Economic Development 
Intergovernmental Expenditures 

~Depreciation Expense • Unallocated 
' Interest on Long-Term Debt 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Solid Waste 

Total Primary Government 

•The County does not have Interest expense 
related to the functions presented above. This 
amount includes Indirect Interest expense 
on general long· term debt. 

•• This amount excludes the depreciation that 
is included in the d1rect expenses of the 
various functions (See Note ZL_ 

BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Pro!Jram Revenues 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and 
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions 

$ 3,680,158.51 s 848,056.87 $ 520,532.57 $ 
4,810,400.08 398,163.51 702,463 82 
7,266,105.23 17,350.41 3,1 52,363 03 402,853.92 

958,724.29 175,740.46 
1,547,591 .09 998,893.97 15,447.46 76,647.00 

220,376.47 41,944.70 4,065.69 
7,366,488.55 

112,902.34 
16,961.19 

495 462.69 

26,475,170.44 2,480,169.92 4,394,872.57 479,500.92 

2,651 919.34 2,327.115.00 21,031.00 197,000 00 

$ 29,127,089.78 $ 4,807,284 92 $ 4,415 903 57 $ 676.500.92 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property Taxes 
Wheel Tax 
911 Telephone Surcharge 

State S llared Revenues 
Grants and Contnbutions not Restricted to Specific Programs 
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 
Miscellaneous Revenue 

Transfers 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position • Beginning 

NET POSITION· ENDING 

The notes to the financial statements are an Integral part of this statement. 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Changes In Net Position 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business. Type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (2,311 ,569.07) $ $ (2,311 ,569 07) 
(3,709.752.75) (3,709,752.75) 
(3,693,537.87) (3,693,537 87) 

(762,983.83) (782,983 83) 
(456,602.66) (456.602 66) 
(174,366.08) ( 174,366 08) 

(7,366,488.55) (7,366,488.55) 
(1 12,902.34) ( 112,902.34) 

(16 ,961.19) (16,961 19) 
(495,462.69) (495,462 69) 

(19,120,627.03) 0 00 (19, 120,627 03) 

(106,773.34! (106,773 34! 

(19,120,627.03) (106,773.34) (19,227,400 37) 

11,781,513.60 11,781,513 60 
756,279.77 756,279.77 
228,398,78 228,398 78 
319,751 .29 319 751 29 
16,869.88 16,869 88 
40,671 86 26,252.31 66,924 17 
18,416.87 32,718.00 51,134.87 
10,284 05 (10.?84 05) 000 

i3,172,18610 48,886 26 13,22087236 

(5,948,440.93) (50,087.08) (6,006,528 0 1) 

59,754 833 75 8 824 004 52 68 578 838 27 

$ 53,806,392.82 $ 8,765,917 44 $ 62157b310,;26 . 



BROWN COUNTY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 2012 

Other Total 
General Road and Bridge Governmenta l Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds Funds 

ASSETS: 
Current Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 865,553.83 $ 1,436,699.97 $ 747,373.26 $ 3,049,627.06 
Investments 3,526, 756.73 423,243.27 3,950,000.00 
Taxes Receivable--Delinquent 179,634.99 179,634.99 
Accounts Receivable, Net 3,869.23 2,450.39 6,319.62 
Due from Other Governments 23.821.14 311,624.10 66,435.00 401,880.24 
Inventory of Supplies 9,836.36 1,123,934.74 1 '133, 771 .10 
Deposits 205,527.15 205,527.15 

->. 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,814,999.43 $ 3,297,952.47 $ 813,808.26 $ 8,926,760 16 N 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $ 32,584.11 $ 56,998.28 $ 2,049.97 $ 91,632.36 
Accrued Wages Payable 104,689.49 22,896.06 14,324.34 141,909.89 
Payroll Withholding Payable 14,995.59 3,125.31 1,875.73 19,996.63 
Revenues Collected in Advance 9,184.84 9,184.84 
Deferred Revenue 181,597.99 200,000.00 18,441 .84 400,039.83 

Total Liabilities 343,052.02 283,019.65 36,691.88 662,763.55 

Fund Balances: (See Note 1. 1.) 
Nonspendable 215,363.51 1,123,934.74 1 ,339,298.25 
Restricted 33,153.70 423,243.27 510,174.05 966,571 .02 
Assigned 1,666,777.94 1.467,754.81 266,942.33 3,401,4 75.08 
Unassigned 2,556,652.26 2,556,652.26 

Total Fund Ba~ances 4,471,947.41 3,014,932.82 777,116.38 8,263,996.61 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 4,814,999.43 $ 3,297,952.47 $ 813,808.26 $ 8,926 ,760 16 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 
General Property Taxes- Current $ 
General Property Taxes- Delinquent 
Penalties and Interest 
Telephone Tax (Outside) 
Mobile Home Tax 
Wheel Tax 
911 Telephone Surcharge 
Tax Deed Revenue 

Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental Revenue: 

Federal Grants 
Federal Shared Revenue 
Federal Payments in Lieu of Taxes 
State Grants 
State Shared Revenue: 
Bank Franchise 
Motor Vehicle Licenses 
Court Appointed Attorney/Public Defender 
Prorate/Port of Entry Fees 
Abused and Neglected Child Defense 
63 3/4% Mobile Home/Manufactured Home 
Telecommunications Gross Receipts Tax 
Motor Vehicle 1/4% 
Motor Fuel Tax 
911 Remittances 

Other Payments in Lieu of Taxes 
Other Intergovernmental Revenue 

Charges for Goods and Services: 
General Government: 

Treasurer's Fees 
Register of Deeds' Fees 
Legal Services 
Clerk of Courts Fees 
Assessors Fees 
Geographic Information Service Fees 

For the Year Ended December 31 , 2012 

General 
Fund 

11,159,424.23 
111,113.40 

30,633.46 
3,201.48 
2.261.31 

20.00 
72,494 70 

488,581 .07 
16 ,869.88 

198.00 
5,765.69 

80,829.27 

13,527.63 

2.487.22 

234,424.80 
8,474.73 

4,497.22 
22.266.79 

62,276.08 
51 5,098.92 
101 .431 .39 

59,162.87 
20,000.00 

425.54 

Road and Bridge 
Fund 

$ 

756,279.77 

12,630.00 

92.984.27 

364.290.11 

2,449,138.75 

157,032.1 2 

43,192.01 

17,919.42 

18,806.35 

$ 

Brown County 
TIF #1 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 510.623.45 $ 11,670,047.68 
11 1,1 13.40 
30 .633.46 

3,201 .48 
2,261 31 

756,279.77 
228,398.78 228,398.78 

20.00 
7 ,920.00 93,044.70 

217,393.36 

22,657.00 

186,725.45 

270,085.14 

13,056.00 
3,250.00 

798,958.70 
16,869.88 

198.00 
392,712.80 

80,829.27 
2,449,138.75 

13,527.63 
157 ,032.12 

2,487 22 
43,1 92.0 1 

234,424.80 
8,474.73 

17,91942 
186,725.45 

4,497 22 
311,158.28 

62,276.08 
528,154.92 
104,681.39 
59,162.87 
20,000.00 

425.54 



Other Fees 1,274.17 
1,274.17 Public Safety: 

Law Enforcement 116.040.67 
116,040.67 Prisoner Care 159,332.00 
159,332 00 Sobriety Testing 

79,725.00 79.725 00 Other 
Public Works: 12,000.00 12.000.00 
Road Maintenance Contract Charges 

Health and Welfare: 
207.91 207.91 

Economic Assistance: 
Poor Lien Recoveries 167,820.46 

167,820.46 Culture and Recreation 885,499.54 
885,499.54 Conservation of Natural Resources 41,944.70 

41 ,94470 Other Charges 1,954 20 
'1.954 20 Fines and Forfeits: 

Fines 559.65 
559 65 Costs 28,159.19 

28,1 59.19 Miscellaneous Revenue: 
Investment Earnings 32,229.92 3,788.86 1.749.93 2,903.15 40,671 86 Rent 113,394.43 4,512.50 11 7,906.93 Contributions and Donations 4,347.46 9,000.00 13,347.46 Refund of Prior Year's Expenditures 5,752.10 

5.752.10 ..... Other 10,000.00 1 363.77 1,301 00 12,664.77 01 Total Revenues 14,583,774.17 3,931.145.84 1,749.93 1.556.038.33 20,072,708 27 
Expenditures: 
General Government: 

Legislative: 
Board of County Commissioners 183,855.76 

183,855.76 Elections 78,349.20 
78,349 20 Judicial System 60,042.87 60,042 87 Financial Administration: 

Auditor 330,820.34 
330,820.34 Treasurer 466,516.03 
466,516.03 Data Processing 289,820.53 
289.820.53 Legal Services: 

State's Attorney 576,722.38 1,330.60 578,052.98 Court Appointed Attorney 333,846.70 333,846 70 Abused and Neglected Child Defense 14,250.00 14,25000 ' Teen Court 
21 ,873.75 21,873.75 Other Administration: 

General Government Building 622,956 45 
622,956.45 Director of Equalization 472,239.76 472,230.76 Register of Deeds 266,290.41 
266,290.41 Veterans Service Officer 119,888.64 119,888 64 Predatory Animal 10,374.57 10,374.57 Geographic Information System 73,857.84 73,857 84 



...>. 

O'l 

Public Safety: 
Law Enforcement: 

Sheriff 
County Jail 
Coroner 
Juvenile Detention 

BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

(Continued) 

General 
Fund 

1,259,333.35 
1,396,039.62 

29,007.06 
732,222.83 

Road and Bridge 
Fund 

Brown County 
TIF #1 
Fund 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

45.986.92 
83,437.67 

Protective and Emergency Services: 
Fire Protection 13.797.44 
Emergency and Disaster Services 226,668 06 
Communication Center 999,269.64 

Public Works: 
Highways and Bridges: 
Highways, Roads and Bridges 

Health and Welfare: 
7,527,201.03 700.44 

Economic Assistance: 
Support of Poor 688,932.03 

Health Assistance: 
County Nurse 26,780.00 
Ambulance 30,281.72 

Social Services: 
Care of Aged 950.00 
Domestic Abuse 11,310.00 

Mental Health Services: 
Mentally Ill 45,977.62 
Developmentally Disabled 95000 
Drug Abuse 19,000.00 
Mental Health Centers 35,226.00 
Mental Illness Board 111 .945.21 

Culture and Recreation: 
Culture: 

Public Library 18.GOO.OO 
Historical Museum 298,809.74 
Historical Sites 850.00 

Recreation: 
Recreational Programs 4,750.00 
Parks 78,041 .52 
Exhibition Building 321,328.22 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

1,305,320.27 
1,479.477.29 

29.007 .06 
732,222.83 

13,797.44 
226,668.06 
999,269.64 

7 .527.90147 

688,932 03 

26.780.00 
30,281.72 

950.00 
11,310.00 

45,977.62 
950.00 

19,000.00 
35.226 00 

111,945.21 

18,000.00 
298,809.74 

850.00 

4,750.00 
78,041.52 

321.328.22 



County Fair 794,107.25 99.88 794,207.1 3 
Senior Center 4.275.00 4 ,275 00 

Conservation of Natural Resources: 
Soil Conservation: 
County Extension 65,253.07 65,253.07 
Weed and Pest Control 142,606.72 142,606.72 

Urban and Economic Development: 
Urban Development: 

Planning and Zoning 84,664.81 84,664 81 
Urban and Rural Development 415,406.62 415,406 62 

Economic Development: 
Tourism. Industrial or Recreational Development 19,736.25 6,844,220.39 6.863.956.64 

Intergovernmental Expenditures 37.814.00 75,088.34 112,902.34 
Debt Service . 39,900.00 455,562.69 495,462.69 

Total Expenditures 10,538,103.56 7,565,01 5.03 6,884,120.39 1,921 ,327 99 26,908,566.97 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 4,045,670.61 (3,633,869.19} (6.882,370.46} (365.289.66) (6.835,858.70) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 14,072.91 4,155.994.40 762,560.26 4 ,932,627.57 
Transfers Out (4,560,132.92) (3.788.86) (358.421 .74) (4,922,343.52) 
General Long-Term Debt Issued 6,950,000.00 6,950,000 00 
Insurance Proceeds 176,139.31 48,857.59 224,996.90 

---1 Sale of County Property 14,350.98 93,762.02 1.650.13 109 76:~ 13 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,355,569.72) 4.294,825.1 5 6,591 ,578.26 764,210.39 7 295,044 08 

Net Change In Fund Balance (309,899.11) 660,955.96 (290, 792.20) 398.920 73 459,18538 

Fund Balance - Beginning 4,781 ,846.52 2.353.976.86 290,792.20 378,195.65 7,804,811 23 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 4.471 .94741 $ 3.014.932 82 $ 0.00 $ 777.11 6 .38 $ 8.263.996 6 I 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



BROWN COUNTY 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Net Change in Fund Balances- Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of 
Activities are different because: 

This amount represents capital asset purchases which are 
reported as expenditures on the fund financial statements 
but increase assets on the government-wide statements. 

This amount represents the current year depreciation expense 
reported in the Statement of Activities which is not reported on 
the fund financial statements because it does not require the 
use of current financial resources. 

In the Statement of Activities , gains and losses on disposal 
of capital assets are reported, whereas, in the governmental 
funds, the proceeds from the disposal of capital assets are 
reflected, regardless of whether a gain or loss is realized. 

The receipt of donated capital assets is not reported on the 
fund statements, but is reported as a program revenue on the 
government-wide statements. 

The issuance of long-term debt (Tax Incremental Revenue 
Bonds - Series 2011) is an other financing source in the fund 
statements but an increase in long-term liabilities on the 
government-wide statements. 

The fund financial statement governmental fund property tax 
accruals differ from the government-wide statement property 
tax accruals in that the fund financial statements require 
the amounts to be "available". 

Governmental funds recognize expenditures for amounts of 
compensated absences actually paid to employees with 
current financial resources during the fiscal year. Amounts 
of compensated absences earned by employees are not 
recognized in the funds. In the statement of activities, 
expenses for these benefits are recognized when the 
employees earn leave credits. 

s 459,185.38 

1 ,912,862.55 

(1 ,672,037.38) 

(83,961.44) 

479,500.92 

(6,950,000.00) 

(35, 763. 73) 

(58,227.23) 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (5,948,440.93) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ASSETS: 

Current Assets: 

BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2012 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable, Net 
Other Receivables 
Inventory of Supplies 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Investments 

Capital Assets: 
Land 
Buildings 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Construction Work in Progress 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Asse!s 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities: 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages Payable 
Payroll W ithholding Payable 
Compensated Absences Payable -Current 
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 

Costs --Current 
Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Accrued Leave Payable 
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 

Total Noncurrent liabilities 

NET POSITION: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted Net Position 

Total Net Position 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

Enterprise Funds 
Solid Waste 

Fund 

$ 2,950,224.67 
1 ,078, 779.38 

140,448.01 
1.328 20 

49.639.69 
4,220,419.95 

345,160.83 
1,383,006.22 

478,078.38 
950,630.60 

5,041.222.21 
2,443,598.38 

15,486.43 
{4.201 ,531.70) 
6,455,651.35 

$ 10,676.071.30 

$ 121,655.63 
6,396.48 

873.12 
32,537.68 

424.750.00 
586 212.91 

20,523.90 
1,303,417.05 
1,323.940.95 

4. 727,484.30 
4.038.433.14 
8,765,917.44 

s 10,676,071.30 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSiTION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Operating Revenues: 

Charges for Goods and Services 
Solid Waste Fee 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Personal Services 
Other Current Expense 
Depreciation Expense 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Ex penses): 
Operating Grants 
Investment Earnings 
Rental Revenue 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 

Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 

NET POSITION- ENDING 

Enterprise Funds 
Solid Waste 

Fund 

$ 1,750,551.10 
496,850.00 
79,713.90 

2,327,1 15.00 

358,041.01 
1,557,439.87 

736,438.46 
2,651 ,919.34 

(324,804.34) 

218,031.00 
26,252.31 
32,718.00 

277,001.31 

(47,803.03) 

(10,284.05) 

(58,087.08) 

8,824,004.52 

$ 8,765,917.44 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF C~SH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash Receipts from Customers 
Cash Payments to Employees for Servtces 
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Serv1ces 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Operating Subsidies 
Rental Revenue 
Transfers Out 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Cap1tal Grant 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related F1nanc1ng Activ1t1es 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of Investment Securities 
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 
Cash Received for Interest 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation Expense 

Change in Assets and Liabilities: 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Wages Payable 
Accrued Leave Payable 
Closure Costs 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of th1s statement. 
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Enterprise Funds 
Solid Waste 

Fund 

$ 2.374,643.17 
(348.717.83) 

(1 , 160.098.16) 

865.827.18 

34,856.71 
32.718.00 
(10,284.05) 

57,290.66 

(583,356.51 ) 
197.000.00 

(386.356 51) 

(2 461,785.60) 
2,4d5 844.07 

26 252 31 

10,310 78 

547,072.11 

2 748 313.39 

$ 3,295,385.50 

$ (324,804.34) 

736,438.46 

47,528.17 
337.23 

(829.83) 
1,770.94 
7,552.24 

397 834.31 

$ 865,827.18 



BROWN COUNTY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Financial Reporting Entity: 

The reporting entity of Brown County, (County) consists of the primary government (which 
includes all of the funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that 
make up the legal entity, plus those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary 
responsibility); those organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the 
financial reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Component units are legally separate organ izations for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable. The County is financially accountable if its 
County Commission appoints a voting majority of another organization's governing body and 
it has the ability to impose its will on that organization, or there is a potential for that 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, 
the County (primary government). The County may also be financially accountable for 
another organization if that organization is fiscally dependent on the County. 

The County has created a Housing and Redevelopment ·commission under the authority of 
South Dakota Codified Law 11-7-7. Brown County organized the Brown County Housing and 
Redevelopment Commission solely for abdicating its authority over the non-city housing 
projects within Brown County to the Aberdeen Housing Commission organized by the City of 
Aberdeen. Therefore. this component unit's financial activity was not included on the 
County's annual report. The financial activity of the component unit is to be included as a 
component unit on the City of Aberdeen 's annual report. 

b. Basis of Presentation: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the 
reporting entity as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary 
funds. The statements _distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part 
by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the County and for each function 
of the County's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically 
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular 
function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by recipients of goods and services 
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified 
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: 
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governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary 
operating fund of the County or it meets the following criteria: 

1. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 1 0 percent of the corresponding total for all 
funds of that category or type, and 

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all 
governmental and enterprise funds combined, or 

3. Management has elected to classify one or more governmental or enterprise funds as 
major for consistency in reporting from year to year, or because of public interest in the 
fund's operations. 

The funds of the County financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
The General Fund is always considered to be a major fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than trusts for individuals, private organizations, or other 
governments or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. 

Road and Bridge Fund - to account for funds credited to the road and bridge fund 
pursuant to SDCL 32-11-4.2 to be used by the board of county commissioners for 
grading, constructing, planing, dragging, and maintaining county highways and also for 
dragging, maintaining and grading secondary roads. Proper equipment for dragging, 
grading, and maintaining highways, such as graders, tractors, drags, maintainers, and 
planers may be purchased from the road and bridge fund. (SDCL 32-1 1-2 and 32-11-
4.2) This is a major fund. 

Brown County TIF #1 Fund- authorized by SDCL 11 -9-3 to account for proceeds of 
$6,950,000 in bonds issued for the tax increment district, which funds (less attorney fee, 
wire transfer fee and initial interest payment) were subsequently distributed to the 
Northern Beef Plant. This is a major fund . The cash balance of the Fund was transferred 
to the Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service Fund. The Special Revenue Fund was closed 
as of December 31 , 2012. 

The remaining Special Revenue funds are not considered major funds: 911 Service, 
Emergency Management, Domestic Abuse, Teen Court, State Grants •. Richmond Youth 
Camp, Donations, 24/7 Sobriety, and Modernization and Preservation. These funds are 
reported on the fund financial statements as "Other Governmental Funds". 

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, genera/ long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. 

Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service Fund- to account for Tax Increment property taxes 
which may be used only for the payment of the debt principal, interest, and related costs 
of the Tax Incremental Revenue Bonds Series 2011 . This is not a major fund. 
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Proprietary Funds: 

Enterorise Funds- Enterprise funds may be used to reporr any activity for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services. Acrivl/1es are required to be reporled as 
enterprise funds if any one of £he following criteria is met. Governments should apply each of 
these criteria in the context of the activity's principal revenue sources. 

a. The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net 
revenues from fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge 
of net revenues from fees and charges and the full fatlh and credit of a related 
primary government or component unit-even if that government is not expected 
to make any payments-is not payable solely from fees and charges of the 
activity. (Some debt may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds 
but should be considered as payable "solely" from the revenues of the activity.) 

b. Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, 
including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service}, be recovered with 
fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues. 

c. The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover 
its costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service). 

Solid Waste Fund- financed primarily by user charges this fund accounts for the solid 
waste operation of the County as provided by SOCL 34A-6. This is a major fund. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Fiduciary funds consist of the following sub-category and are never considered to be major 
funds: 

Agency Funds - Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are used to account for the 
accumulation and distribution of property tax revenues and various pass through funds. 

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" revenues and 
expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial 
statements, regardless of the measurement focus. 

Measurement Focus: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus, applied on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting are applied to governmental fund types, while the 
"economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are applied to 
the proprietary and fiduciary fund types. 
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Basis of Accounting: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental 
and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis of accounting, revenues and related assets are recorded when earned (usually 
when the right to receive cash vests): and, expenses and related liabilities are recorded when 
an obligation is incurred (usually when the obligation to pay cash in the future vests). 

Fund Financial Statements: 

All governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Their revenues, including property taxes, are recognized when they become 
measurable and available. "Available" means resources are collected or to be collected soon 
enough after the end of the fiscal year that they can be used to pay the bills of the current 
period. The accrual period for the County is 30 days plus any grant receivables where 
expenditures have been incurred. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not 
available. Reported deferred revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have been 
met but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The revenues which are 
accrued December 31 , 2012 are various grant reimbursements, state shared revenues, E911 
surcharge and court appointed attorney reimbursements. 

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions 
to this general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are 
recognized when due. 

All proprietary and fiduciary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are 
recognized when they are incurred. 

d. Deposits and Investments: 

For the purpose of financial reporting, "cash and cash equivalents" includes all demand and 
savings accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with a term to maturity 
at date of acquisition of three months or less. Investments in open-end mutual fund shares, 
or similar investments in external investment pools, are also considered to be cash 
equivalents. 

Investments classified in the financial statements consist entirely of certificates of deposit 
whose term to maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months, and/or those types of 
investment authorized by South Dakota Codified Law (SDCL) 4-5-6. 

e. Capital Assets: 

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and all other tangible or 
intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful Jives extending 
beyond a single reporting period. Infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that 
normally are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for significantly greater 
number of years than most capital assets. 

The accounting treatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in 
the government-wide or fund financial statements. 
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Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated cost, where actual cost could not 
be determined. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date 
donated. Reported cost values include ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its 
intended location and conoition for use. Subsequent to initial capitalization, improvements or 

~betterments that are significant and which extend the useful life of a capital asset are also 
capitalized. 

The total December 31, 2012 balance of governmental activities capital assets includes 
approximately 75 percent for which the costs were determined by estimates of the original 
costs. The total December 31 , 2012 balance of business-type capital assets are all valued at 
original cost. 

For governmental activities Capital Assets, construction-period interest is not capitalized, in 
accordance with USGAAP, while for capital assets used in business-type 
activities/proprietary fund's operations, construction period interest is capitalized in 
accordance with USGAAP. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
government-wide Statement of Activities. except for that portion related to common use 
assets for which allocation would be unduly complex, and which is reported as Unallocated 
Depreciation, with net capital assets reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Accumulated 
depreciation is reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position and on the 
proprietary fund's Statement of Net Position. 

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the 
capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets 
reported in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds are as follows: 

Land and Land Rights 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Infrastructure"* 

Capitalization 
Threshold 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

25,000 
25,000 

5,000 
25,000 

Depreciation 
Method 

-----N/ A-----­
Straight-line 
Straight-line 
Straight-line 
Straight-line 

Estimated 
Useful Life 

-----N/A------
15-1 00 years 
13-225 years 

5-60 years 
17-125 years 

**Bridges are capitalized for structures greater than 20 feet, per SDCL 31-14. The 
composite/group method is used for roads (gravel and paved roads). For roads- the entire 
system including base, culverts and gravel surface. For paved roads - new construction -
definition of new construction being 2" overlay or greater for distance exceeding one mile. 

Land is an inexhaustible capital asset and is not depreciated. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as expenditures of the appropriate governmental fund upon acquisition. 
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for on the accrual basis, the 
same as in the government-wide financial statements. 
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f. Long-Term Liabil ities: 

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in 
the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are 
reported as liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. The long-term liabilities 
primarily consist of compensated absences, accrued landfill closure/post closure, and the Tax 
Incremental Revenue Bonds Series 2011. 

In the fund financial statements. debt proceeds are reported as revenues (other financing 
sources), while payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures when they 
become due. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is on the accrual basis, the 
same in the fund statements as in the government-wide financial statements. 

g. Program Revenues: 

Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties other than the 
County's taxpayers or ci tizenry, as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three 
categories, as follows: 

1. Charges for seNices -These arise from charges to customers, applicants, or others 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods, seNices, or privileges provided, 
or are otherwise directly affected by the services. 

2. Program-specific operating grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and 
voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or 
individuals that are restricted for use in a particular program. 

3. Program-specific capital grants and contributions -These arise from mandatory and 
voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or 
individuals that are restricted for the acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular 
program. 

h. Proprietary Funds Revenue and Expense Classifications: 

In the proprietary fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 
revenues and expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in 
the Statement of Cash Flows. That is, transactions for which related cash flows are reported 
as capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities 
are not reported as components of operating revenues or expenses. 

i. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

For the purposes of the proprietary funds' Statement of Cash Flows, the County considers all 
highly liquid investments as deposits including restricted assets with a term to maturity of 
three months or less, at date of acquisition, to be cash equivalents. 

j . Equity Classifications: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Equity is classified as Net Position and is displayed in three components: 

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets -Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
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2. Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use 
either by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors. or laws and 
regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
leg1slation. 

3. Unrestricted Net Position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "net investment in capital assets". 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish between 
"Nonspendable", "Restricted", "Committed", "Assigned", and "Unassigned" components. 
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements. 

k. Application of Net Position: 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy 
to use restricted resources first and then use the unrestricted resources, as they are needed. 
However, an exception to this policy is that restricted Snow Removal resources in the Road 
and Bridge Fund shall only be for expenses on snow removal when the amount spent in a 
fixed year exceeds the cost for an average year's snow removal. 

I. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures: 

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the County classifies governmental fund 
balances as follows: 

• Nonspendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is 
not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints. 

• Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes 
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due 
to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation . 

• Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes 
that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level 
of decision making authority and does not lapse at year-end. 

• Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund Balance may be 
assigned by the County Commissioners. 

• Unassigned- includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been 
classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other 
governmental funds. 

The Nonspendable Fund Balance is comprised of the following: 

• Amount reported in nonspendable form such as inventory. 
• Amount legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as South Dakota 

Public Assurance Affiance. 

The County uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, 
such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Government 
would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund 
balance when expenditures are made. 
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(...) __. 

A schedule of fund balances is provided as follows: 

BROWN COUNTY 
DISCLOSURE OF FUND BALANCES REPORTED ON BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31 , 2012 

Road Other 
General and Bridge Governmental 

Fund Fund Funds ---Fund Balances: 
Non spendable: 

Inventory $ 9,836.36 $ 1,123,934. 74 $ Deposit - South Dakota Public 
Assurance Alliance 205,527.15 

Restricted For: 
Fire Protection Purposes 33,153.70 
Snow Removal Purposes 

423,243.27 
Domestic Abuse Purposes 

1,447.00 24/7 Sobriety Purposes 
26,119.51 Brown County TIF #1 Debt 

Service Purposes 
415,795.18 Teen Court Purposes 

31,839.40 Richmond Youth Camp Purposes 
21 ,916.96 Modernization and Preservation Purposes 
13,056.00 Assigned To: 

Applied to Next Year's Budget 1,266,777.94 
Capital Outlay Accumulations 400,000.00 
Road and Bridge Purposes 

1,467,754.81 
Emergency and Disaster Purposes 

69,856.63 911 Service Purposes 
197,085.70 Unassigned 2,556,652.26 

Total Fund Balances $ 4,471,947.41 $ 3.014,932.82 $ 777,116.38 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 1,133,771 .10 

205,527.15 

33,153.70 
423,243.27 

1,447.00 
26,119.51 

415,795.18 
31,839.40 
21,916.96 
13,056.00 

1,266, 777.94 
400,000.00 

1,467,754.8 I 
69,856.63 

197 ,085.70 
2,556,652.26 

$ 8,263,996.61 



2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND 
INTEREST RATE RISK 

The County follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash 
management efficiency and returns, except for restricted cash assets in the Solid Waste Fund. 
Vanous restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by statutes. These restrictions are 
summarized below: 

Deposits -The County's cash deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by 
SDCL 4-6A-1, 7-20-1 , 7-20-1.1 and 7-20-1.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits. 
Qualified depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their 
other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit 
accounts which exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible 
securities, a qualified public depository may furnish irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by 
federal home loan banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank's public debt rating which 
may not be less than "AA" or a qualified public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a 
corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota. 

Investments - In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits County funds to be invested only in (a) securities of 
the United States and securities guaranteed by the United States Government either directly or 
indirectly; or (b) repurchase agreements fully collateralized by securities described in {a) above; or 
in shares of an open-end, no-load fund administered by an investment company whose 
investments are in securities described in {a) above and repurchase agreements described in {b) 
above. Also, SOCL 4-5-9 requires investments to be in the physical custody of the political 
subdivision or may be deposited in a safekeeping account with any bank or trust company 
designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal agent. 

Credrt Risk - State law limits eligible investments for the County, as discussed above. The County 
has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. 

As of December 31, 2012, the County had the following investments. 

External Investment Pools: 

SDFIT 

Credit 
Rating 

Unrated 

Market 
Value 

$ 238,256.31 

The South Dakota Public Fund Investment Trust (SDFIT) is an external investment pool created for 
South Dakota local government investing. It is regulated by a nine member board with 
representation from municipalities, school districts and counties. The net asset value of the SDFIT 
money market account {GCR) is kept at one dollar per share by adjusting the rate of return on a 
daily basis. Earnings are credited to each account on a monthly basis. 

Concentrat ion of Credit Risk - The County places no limit on the amount that may be invested in 
any one issuer. 

Interest Rate Risk - The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 

Ass ignment of Investment Income- State law allows income from deposits and investments to 
be credited to either the General Fund or the fund making the investment. The County's policy is to 
credit all income from deposits and investments to the General Fund, except for interest earned on 
specific certificates of deposits and financial assurance savings account of the Solid Waste Fund. 
USGAAP, on the other hand, requ ires income from deposits and investments to be reported in the 
fund whose assets generated that income. W here the governing board has discretion to credit 
investment income to a fund other than the fund that provided the resources for investment, a 
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transfer to the designated fund is reported. Accordingly, in the fund financial statements, intertund 
transfers of investment earnings are reported, while in the government-wtde financial statements, 
they have been eliminated, except for the net amounts transferred between governmental activities 
and bustness-type activities. 

3. RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Assets restricted to use for a specific purpose through segregation of balances in separate 
accounts are as follows: 

Amount: Purpose: 
$ 1,728,167.05 DENR required Closure/Post Closure Costs for the Landfill 

4. RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES 

Receivables and payables are aggregated on the government-wide financia l statements; however, 
they are reported in detail on the fund financial statements. The County expects all receivables to 
be collected within one year. 

5. INVENTORY 

Inventory in the General Fund and special revenue funds consists of expendable supplies held for 
consumption. Supply inventories are recorded at cost. 

Inventory in the proprietary funds is recorded as an asset when acquired. The consumption of 
inventories is charged to an expense as it is consumed. lnventones are recorded at the lower of 
cost or market, on the first-in, first-out cost flow assumption. 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide financial statements, inventory is recorded as an asset at the time of 
purchase, and charged to expense as it is consumed. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, inventory is recorded as an asset at the time of purchase, and 
charged to an expense as it is consumed. Material supply inventories are off-set by nonspendable 
fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even 
though they are a component of net current assets. 

6. PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are levied on or before October 1, of the year preceding the start of the fiscal year. 
They attach as an enforceable lien on property, and become due and payable as of the following 
January 1, the first day of the fiscal year. Taxes are payable in two installments on or before 
April 30 and October 31 of the fiscal year. 

The County is permitted by several state statutes to levy varying amounts of taxes per $1 ,000 of 
taxable valuation on taxable real property in the County. 
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7. CHANGES IN GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the one year ended December 31 , 2012 is as follows: 

Balance 
1/1/2012 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital Asset, not being Depreciated: 

Land $ 1 ,325.399.22 

Construction Work in Progress 554,432.64 

Total Capilal Assets. not being Depreciated 1,879.831.86 

Capital Assets, being Depreciated: 

Buildings 7,376,586.42 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 

Than Buildings) 58,239,441.42 

Machinery and Equipment 8,228,977.71 

Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated 73,845,005.55 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS s 75.724,837.41 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings $ (1 ,565,367.17) 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 

Than Buildings) (17,665,480.1 0) 

Machinery and Equipment (4, 133,771.45) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (23,364,618. 72) 

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 50,480,386.83 

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net $ 52,360,218.69 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

General Government 

Public Safety 

Public Works 

Culture and Recreation 

Conservation of Natural Resources 

Urban and Economic Development 

Depreciation Unallocated 

Total Depreciation Expense-Governmental Activities 
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s 

s 

$ 

s 

Balance 
Increases Decreases 12/31/2012 

3,795.00 s $ 1.329,194.22 

305.1 23.05 (1 84 979.45) 674,576.25 

308,918.06 (184,979.45) 2,003, 770.47 

199,145.68 7,575,732 10 

1,145,845.54 (1 ,822,015.83) 57,563,271 .13 

958.900.49 (661 ,324. 17) 8,526,554.03 

2,303,891.71 (2.483,340.00) 73,665,557.26 

2 ,612,809.77 s {2.668,319.45) s 75,669,327.73 

(79,824. 12) $ $ (1 ,645, 191.29) 

(1 ,061 '1 35.06) 1 ,810,594.05 (16,916,021 .11) 

(531,078.20) 536,896.51 (4, 127,953.14) 

(1 ,672,037.38) 2,347,490.56 (22,689,165.54) 

631,854.33 (135,849.44) 50,976,391 .72 

940,772.39 $ p20,828.89) s 52,980,162.1 9 

s 40,928.68 

139,066.21 

1,395,172.41 

64,940.17 

13,802.05 

1,166.67 

16,961 .1 9 

s 1,672,037.38 



Balance Balance 
1/1/2012 Increases Decreases 12/31/2012 

Busmess-Type Act1v1ties: 

Cap1tal Asset. not bemg Depreciated: 

Land s 477,878.38 s 200.00 $ s 478,078.38 

Construction Work in Progress 15.486 43 15,486 43 

Total Capital Assets. not being Depreciated 477,878.38 15.686.43 0.00 493,564.81 

Capital Assets, being Depreciated: 

Buildings 950,630.60 950,630.60 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 

Than Buildings) 5,003,553.84 37,668.37 5,041 ,222.21 

Machinery and Equipment 1,913,596.63 530001.75 2.443,598.38 

Total Capital Assets, being Depreciated 7,867, 781.07 567,670.12 0.00 8.435,451.19 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS s 8,345.659.45 s 583.356.55 s 0.00 s 8.929,016.00 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings $ (286, 128.99) s (43,281 .77) s s (329,410.76) 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 

Than Buildings) (1,676, 703.86) (581,587.52) (2,258,291.38) 

Machinery and Equipment (1,502,260.39) (11 1,56917) (1.613.829.56) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,465.093.24) (736.438.46) 0.00 (4.201,531.70) 

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 4,402,687.83 (168,768.34) 0.00 4,233,919.49 

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net $ 4,880,566.21 $ (153,081.91) $ 0.00 $ 4, 727,484.30 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Business-Type Activities: 

Solid Waste $ 736.438.46 
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Construction Work in Progress at December 31 , 2012 is composed of the following: 

Project Name 

Governmental Activities: 
County Road 20.4 
County Road 14W 
County Road 23.2 
County Road 23.1 
Bridge BR238 
Bridge BR 180 
Bridge BR204 
Bridge BR 277 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Radio Tower Building 

Expended 
Thru 

12/31/2012 

$ 202,115.16 
22,136.90 

171,157.89 
26,027.51 

108.722.96 
2,1 77.52 

141 ,313.71 
924.60 

$ 674,576.25 

$ 15,486.43 

With regard to the bridge projects, the projects are handled by the State Department of 
Transportation. 

The State is responsible for 80% of the total cost and the County is responsible for 20%. 

8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities follows: 

Primary Government: 
Governmental Activities: 
Bonds Payable: 

Tax Incremental Revenue 
Bond Series 2011 $ 

Beginning 
Balance 
1/1/2012 

Accrued Compensated Absences 609,173.74 

Total Governmental Activities 609,173.74 

Business-Type Activities: 

Accrued Landfill Closure/Post 

Closure 1,330,332.74 
Accrued Compensated Absences 45,509.34 

Total Business-Type Activities 1,375,842.08 

Total Primary Government S 1,985,015.82 

Additions 

$ 6,950,000.00 
663,931.38 

7.613,931 .38 

397,834.31 

40,089.92 

437,924.23 

s 8,051.855.61 
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Deletions 

(605, 704.1 5) 

(605. 704.15) 

(32,537.68) 
(32,537.68) 

$ (638.241.83) 

Ending 

Balance 
12/31/2012 

$ 6,950.000.00 

667,400.97 

7,617.400.97 

1,728,167.05 

53,061.58 
1,781,228.63 

s 9,398,629.60 

Due Within 
One Year 

$ 214,791 .80 
605,704.15 

820.495.95 

424,750.80 

32,537.68 

457,287.68 

s 1.277,783.63 



9. 

Long-Term Liabilities payable at December 31 , 2012 is comprised of the following: 

Tax Incremental Revenue Bonds- Series 2011: 

Northern Beef Plant Increment Financing- Interest 
Rate of 10 percent- Maturing 4/2027 - Payments 
made out of the Brown County TIF #1 Debt 
Service Fund 

Compensated Absences: 

Annual Leave 

Sick Leave 

Payments to be made by the fund that the payroll expenditures are charged. 

Landfill Closure/Post Closure: 

Paid out of Solid Waste Fund 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 

$ 6,950,000.00 

422,653.50 

297,809.05 

1.728,167.05 

$ 9 398 629 Q_Q 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2012, except for 
compensated absences are as fol lows 

Annual Requirements to Amorti~e Long-Term Debt 
December 31 , 2012 

Year Tax Increment 
Ending Financing 

December 31, Princieal Interest 
2013 $ 214,791.80 s 689,773.61 
2014 236,842.60 667,763.06 
2015 261 ,333.00 643,466.55 
2016 288,285.60 616,679.97 
2017 317,691.45 587,115.97 

2018- 2022 2,147,876.40 2,375,129.11 
2023-2027 6,483,179.15 1,003,308.61 

TOTAL $ 6,950,000.00 $ 6,583,236.88 

OPERATING LEASES 

The County is leasing two Canon Copiers. One lease, dated October 2010 (IR3245), is a 60-month 
lease, with payments of $176.80 per month from the sheriffs department budget of the General 
Fund. Final lease payments are in 2015. The second lease, dated September 2012 (J R4035), is a 
60-month lease, with payments of $254.11 per month from the jail budget of the General Fund. 
Final lease payments are in 2017. 
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The following are the minimum payments on existing operating leases: 

General General 
Year Fund Fund Total 
2013 $ 3,049.32 $ 2,121 .60 $ 5, 170.92 
2014 3,049.32 2,121.60 5.170.92 
2015 3,049.32 1,591.20 4,640.52 
2016 3,049.32 3,049.32 
2017 2,032.88 2,032.88 

TOTAL $ 14,230.16 $ 5,834.40 $ 20,064.56 

10. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS 

The landfill operation is handled as an Enterprise Fund by the County. The plan for the operation of 
the disposal site is based on Administrative Rules of the State of South Dakota (ARSD) 74:27:13. 
Plans for the operation and various contingencies have been prepared for and are available at the 
office of the county auditor. 

Based on the most recent assessment of the landfill, Unit 1 is established on a total capacity of 
766,495 tons with an estimated life expectancy of 21.4 years. The County is required to recognize 
the cost of closure and postclosure care as the landfill is used (landfill capacity used to date). The 
County is also required to take into account the possibilities of higher or lower costs due to inflation, 
changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The estimated liability for landfill closure and 
postclosure care costs for Unit #1 was $1 ,887.615.53 as of December 31, 2011 . However, in 201 2 
it was determined that no more waste would be placed in Unit 1, which lowered the actual life 
expectancy to 19 years. On December 31, 2012, the amount held in the closure/postclosure for 
Unit 1 was $1 ,201,668. 71. Preliminary plans are to close Unit 1 in 2013 at an estimated cost of 
$424,750.00 plus engineering costs. 

The County completed construction on Unit 2 in 2010 and began using in 2011 . The total lifespan 
of Unit 2 is currently estimated at 143 years with an estimated total capacity of 6,963,912 tons. 
When calculating the Unit 2 (Cell 1) Closure/Postclosure costs for 2012, a capacity of 520,344 tons 
with a lifespan of 7 years was used. 

Financial assurances for corrective action are only required at facilities with known releases of 
contaminates. Brown County has not had any known releases of contaminates. The closure and 
postclosure requirements, based on the most recent assessment are: 

Closure 
Postclosure 
Total 

Unit #1 
$ 304,008 

969,693 
$ 1,273,701 

Unit #2 
$ 3,978,398 

14,958,106 
$ 18,936,504 

The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs for Unit #2 (Cell1) was 
$526,498.34 on December 31 , 2012 (Grand total Unit 1 and Unit 2 (Cell1) is $1,728,167.05). The 
County is in compliance with the funding requirements set forth for closure and postclosure. 

In addition, the County is required by State and Federal laws and regulations to make annual 
contributions to finance closure and postclosure care. The Count is in compliance with these 
requirements, and at December 31, 2012, restricted cash and investments of $1 ,728,167.05 are 
presented on the Solid Waste Fund balance sheet as restricted assets for Unit 1 and Unit 2. 

The county commissioners have also earmarked $187,512.73 of unrestricted net position to fund 
future closure and postclosure costs and $240,000.00 to meet any potential remedial costs. 

Use of Unit 1 began October 1993. Refuge deposited at Unit 1 through December 31 , 2012 was 
723,147 tons based on information supplied by Landfill Manager Mike Scott on December 31, 2012. 
The December amount represents usage of approximately 94 percent of total Unit 1 capacity. 
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Refuge deposited in Cell1 of Unit 2 through December 31 , 2012 was 97,966 tons. This amount 
represents usage of approximately 19 percent of total Unit 2 (Cell 1) capacity. 

11 . RESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Restricted Net Position for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows: 

Majo r Funds: 
Road and Bridge Purposes 

Other Purposes: 
Domestic Abuse Purposes 
Teen Court Purposes 
24/7 Sobriety Purposes 
Richmond Youth Camp Purposes 
Modernization and Preservation Purposes 
SDPAA Purposes 
Fire Protection Purposes 

Total Other Purposes 

Total Restricted Net Position 

$ 1,547,178.01 

1,447.00 
31 ,839.40 
26,119.51 
21,916.96 
13,056.00 

205,527.15 
33,153.70 

333,059.72 

$ 1,880,237.73 

These balances are restricted due to federal grant and statutory requirements, or donor restrictions. 

12. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEFICIT UNRESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Within the Governmental Activities on the Statement of Net Position, unrestricted net position is a 
deficit in the amount of $1 ,054,007.10. This is the result of the County incurring debt for the 
$6,950,000.00 in Tax Incremental Series 2011 Revenue Bonds; however, the County will not 
acquire any capital assets. 

13. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

lnterfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2012 were as follows: 

Transfers To: 

Road Other 
General and Bridge Governmental 

Transfers From: Fund Fund Funds Total 

Major Funds: 
General Fund $ $ 4,155,994.40 $ 404,138.52 $4,560,132.92 

Road and Bridge Fund 3,788.86 3,788.86 

Solid Waste Fund 10,284.05 10,284.05 

Brown County TIF #1 Fund 358,421 .74 358,421.74 

Total s 14,072.91 $ 4,155,994.40 $ 762.560.26 $4,932,627.57 
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The County typically budgets transfers to the Road and Bridge Fund and the Other Governmental 
Funds to conduct the indispensable functions of the County. The Coumy also transfers earnings on 
deposits and investments from the Road and Bridge fund and the Solid Waste Fund to the General 
Fund. The Brown County TIF #1 Special Revenue Fund was used to accommodate the issuance 
of the Tax Incremental Revenue Bonds Series 2011 (Northern Beef Plant) Bonds and when all 
bonds were sold the Special Revenue Fund was closed to the Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service 
Fund with a transfer amount of $358,421.74. 

14. RETIREMENT PLAN 

All employees, except for part-time employees, participate in the South Dakota Retirement System 
(SDRS), a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system established to 
provide retirement benefits for employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. 
The SDRS provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits. The right to receive retirement 
benefits vests after three years of credited service. Authority for establishing, administering and 
amending plan provisions are found in South Dakota Codified Law 3-12. The SDRS issues a 
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information. That report may be obtained by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SO 
57501-1098 or by calling (605) 773-3731. 

General employees are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their salary to the plan, 
while public safety and judicial employees contribute at 8 percent and 9 percent, respectively. 
State statute also requires the employer to contribute an amount equal to the employee's 
contribution . State statute also requires the employer to make an additional contribution in the 
amount of 6.2 percent for any compensation exceeding the maximum taxable amount for social 
security for general employees only. The County's share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal 
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 , and 2010 were $390,576.00, $407,232.34, and 
$387,637.36, respectively, equal to the required contributions each year. 

15. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES- LITIGATION 

At December 31, 2012, the County was involved in a lawsuit. No determination can be made at this 
time regarding the potential outcome of the lawsuit. However, as discussed in the Risk 
Management note, the County has liability coverage for itself and its employees with South Dakota 
Public Assurance Alliance. Therefore, no material effects are anticipated to the County as a result 
of the potential outcome of the lawsuit. 

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

As reported in the Aberdeen American News on July 23, 2013 Northern Beef Packers has filed 
Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. Brown County has no legal obligation to pay Tax Increment Financing 
payments. The County Treasurer's records show Northern Beef Plant owes delinquent property 
taxes, penalty, and interest in the total amount of $499,581 .15, as of July 31 , 2013, of which 
approximately $498,581.99 is related to the payment of the Tax Increment obligation. 

17. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the period 
ended December 31 , 2012, the County managed its risks as follows: 
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Employee Health Insurance: 

The County purchases health insurance for its employees from a commercial insurance carrier. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the 11ab1lity coverage during the past 
three years. 

Liability Insurance: 

The County joined the South Dakota Public Assurance Alliance (SDPAA). a public entity risk pool 
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local 
government entities. The objective of the SDPAA is to administer and provide risk management 
services and risk sharing facilities to the members and to defend and protect the members against 
liability, to advise members on loss control guidelines and procedures, and provide them with risk 
management services, loss control and risk reduction information and to obtain lower costs for that 
coverage. The County's responsibility is to promptly report to and cooperate with the SDPAA to 
resolve any incident which could result in a claim being made by or against the County. The 
County pays an annual premium. to provide liability coverage detailed below, under a claims-made 
policy and the premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the 
SDPAA member, based on their exposure or type of coverage . The County pays an annual 
premium to the pool to provide coverage for: 

a. general liability; 
b. automobile liability; 
c. wrongful acts: 
d. law enforcement liability; 
e. automobile physical damage; and 
f. property and building coverage. 

The agreement with the SDPAA provides that the above coverages will be provided to a 
$1,000 ,000.00 limit. Member premiums are used by t11e pool for payment of claims and to pay for 
reinsurance for claims in excess of $250,000 for property coverage and $500,000 for liability 
coverage to the upper limit. A portion of the member premiums are also allocated to a cumulative 
reserve fund. The County would be eligible to receive a refund for a percentage of the amount 
allocated to the cumulative reserve fund on the following basis: 

End of County's First Full Year 50% 
End of County's Second Full Year 60% 
End of County's Third Full Year 70% 
End of County's Fourth Full Year 80% 
End of County's Fifth Full Year 90% 
End of County's Sixth Full Year and Thereafter 100% 

As of December 31 , 2012, the County has vested balance in the cumulative reserve fund of 
$205,527.15. Brown County is fully vested in SDPAA. 

The County carries a $2,500 deductible for wrongful acts by officials; $250 comprehensive and 
$500 collision deductible for the automobile physical damage coverage; $3000 deductible for the 
law enforcement liability coverage; $1000 deductible for the property and building coverage; and no 
deductible for the general and automobile liability coverage. 

The County does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled 
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three 
years. 
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Worker's Comoensation: 

The County joined the South Dakota Municipal League Worker's Compensation Fund {Fund), a 
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 
South Dakota local government entities. The objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and 
administer, on behalf of the member organizations, a program of worker's compensation coverage, 
to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. The 
County's responsibility is to initiate and maintain a safety program to give its employees safe and 
sanitary working conditions and to promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve any 
worker's compensation claims. The County pays an annual premium, to provide worker's 
compensation coverage for its employees, under a self-funded program and the premiums are 
accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the Fund members. Coverage 
limits are set by state statute. The pool pays the first $650,000 of any claim per individual. The 
pool has reinsurance which covers up to statutory limits in addition to a separate combined 
employer liability limit of $2,000,000 per incident. 

The County does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled 
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage over the past three years. 

Unemployment Benefits: 

The County provides coverage for unemployment benefits by paying into the Unemployment 
Compensation Fund established by state law and managed by the State of South Dakota. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE· BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Amounts 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

General Property Taxes--Current $ 11,250, 167.00 $ 11,250,167.00 s 11,159,424.23 

General Property Taxes-Delinquent 59,250.00 59,250.00 11 1,113.40 

Penalties and Interest 19,040.00 19,040.00 30,633.46 

Telephone Tar. (Outside) 13,500.00 13,500.00 3,201.48 

Mobile Home Tax 3,014.00 3,014.00 2,261.31 

Tax Deed Revenue 752.00 752 00 20.00 
Licenses and Permits 57,800.00 57,800.00 72,494.70 

lmergovemmental Revenue: 

Federal Grants 0.00 464,826.14 488,581.07 

Federal Shared Revenue 14,675.00 14,675.00 16,869.88 
Federal Payments 1n L1eu of Taxes 190 00 190.00 198.00 

State Grants 000 000 5,765.69 

State Shared Revenue: 

Bank Franch1se 55,000 00 55,000 00 80,829.27 

Court Appom1ed Attorney/Public Defender 15,000.00 15,000.00 13,527.63 

Abused and Neglected Child Defense 5,000.00 5,000 00 2,487.22 

Telecommunications Gross Receipts Tax 215,000.00 215,000 00 234.424.80 

Motor Vehicle 1/4% 6,500.00 6,50000 8,474.73 

Other Payments in Lieu of Taxes 1,000 00 1,000 00 4,497.22 

Other Intergovernmental Revenue 20,000.00 32,000.00 22,266.79 

Charges for Goods and Services: 

General Government: 

Treasurer's Fees 45,400.00 45,400.00 62,276.08 

Register of Deeds' Fees 295,000.00 295,000.00 515,098.92 

Legal Services 103,200.00 103,200.00 101,431 .39 

Cler1< of Courts Fees 61,000.00 61,000.00 59,162.87 

Assessors Fees 17,700.00 17,700.00 20,000.00 

Geographic Information System Fees 6,000.00 6,000.00 425.54 

Other Fees 3,200.00 3,200.00 1,274.17 

Public Safety: 

Law Enforcement 109,450.00 109,450.00 116,040.67 

Prisoner Care 117,500.00 117,500.00 159,332.00 

Health and Welfare: 

Economic Assistance: 

Poor Lien Recoveries 120,000.00 120,000.00 167,820.46 

Veterans Service Officer 4,375.00 4,375.00 0.00 

Culture and Recreation 650,000.00 650,000.00 885,499.54 

Conservation of Natural Resources 64,000.00 64,000.00 41,944.70 

Other Charges 20,000.00 20,000.00 1,954.20 

Fines and Forfeits: 

Fines 0.00 0.00 559.65 

Costs 30,000.00 30,000.00 28,159.19 . 

Forfeits 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 
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Variance w ith 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

$ (90, 7 42. 77) 

51 ,863.40 

11,593.46 

(1 0 ,298.52) 

(752.69) 

(732.00) 

14,694.70 

23,754.93 

2,194.88 

8 .00 

5,765.69 

25,829.27 

(1,472.37) 

(2,512.78) 

19,424.80 

1,974.73 

3,497.22 

(9,733.21) 

16,876.08 

220,098.92 

(1,768.61) 

(1,837.13) 

2,300.00 

(5,574.46) 

(1,925.83) 

6 ,590.67 

41,832.00 

47,820.46 

(4,375.00) 

235,499.54 

(22,055.30) 

(18,045.80) 

559.65 

(1,840.81) 

(15,000.00) 



Miscellaneous Revenue: 

Investment Earnings 

Rent 

Contributions and Donations 

Refund of Prior Year's Expenditures 

Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 

General Government: 

Legislative: 

Board of County Commisstoners 

Contingency 

Amount Transferred 

Elections 

Judicial System 

Financial Administration: 

Auditor 

Treasurer 

Data Processing 

Legal Services. 

State's Attorney 

Court Appointed Attorney 

Abused and Neglected Child Defense 

Other Administration: 

General Government Building 

Director of Equalization 

Register of Deeds 

Veterans Service Officer 

Predatory Animal 

Geographic Information System 

Public Safety: 

Law Enforcement 

Sheriff 

County Jail 

Coroner 

Juvenile Detention 

Protective and Emergency Services: 

Fire Protection 

Health and Welfare: 

Economic Assistance: 

Support of Poor 

Health Assistance: 

County Nurse 

Ambulance 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE· BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

For tho Year Ended December 31, 2012 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Amounts 

73,000.00 73,000.00 32.229.92 

68,637.50 68,637.50 113,394.43 

0.00 0.00 4,347.46 

18,000.00 18.000.00 5,752.10 

10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 

13,567,350.50 14,044,176.64 14.583,774 17 

225,355.40 225,355.40 183.855.76 
2.50,000.00 250,000.00 

(184,450.00) 

85,354.18 85,354.18 78 349.20 
74,271.00 74,271.00 60,042 87 

347,147.00 347,147.00 330,820.34 
470,335 00 470,335.00 466,516.03 
361,215.11 361,215.11 289,820.53 

530,265.39 614,159.97 576,722.38 
304,320.00 333,846.70 333,846.70 

14,250.00 14,250.00 14,250 00 

641,270.40 641 ,270.40 622,956.45 
462,640.02 472.239.76 472,239.76 
267,149.94 267,149.94 256,290.41 

120,671.97 120,671.97 119,888.64 
10,374.57 10,374.57 10,374.57 
86, 11 2.00 86,1 12.00 73,857.84 

1,289,354.88 1,289,354.88 1,259,333.35 

1,387,150.08 1,396,039.62 1,396,039.62 

18,625.70 29,007.06 29,007.06 
759,161.28 759,161.28 732,222.83 

17,000.00 17,000.00 13,797.44 

680,000.00 688,932.03 688,932.03 

26,780.00 26,780.00 26.780.00 
28,500.00 30,281 .72 30,281 .72 
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Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

(40,770.08) 

44,755.93 

4,347.46 

(12,247.90) 

0.00 

539,597.53 

41,499.64 

65,550.00 

7,004.98 

14,228.13 

16,326.66 

3,818.97 

71,394.58 

37,437.59 

0 .00 

0.00 

18,313.95 

0.00 

859.53 

783.33 

0.00 

12,254.16 

30,021.53 

0.00 

0.00 

26,938.45 

3,202.56 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE· BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Amounts 

Soctal Services: 

Care of Aged 950.00 950.00 950.00 

Mental Health Services: 

Mentally Ill 28,500.00 45,977 62 45.977 62 

Developmentally Disabled 950.00 950.00 950.00 

Drug Abuse 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,000.00 

Mental Health Centers 35,226.00 35,226.00 35,226.00 

Mental Illness Board 71,250.00 111,945.21 111,945.21 

Culture and Recreation: 

Culture: 

Public Ubrary 18,000.00 18,000.00 18.000.00 

Historical Museum 291,975.24 303,975.24 298,809.74 

Historical Sites 950.00 950.00 850.00 

Recreation 

Recreational Programs 4,750 00 4,75000 4 750.00 

Parks 93,740.43 93 740 43 78,041.52 

Exhtbttion Building 286,041.20 321,328 22 321,328.22 

County Fair 756,662.80 815,412.80 794,107 25 

Senior Center 4,275.00 4,275.00 4,275.00 

Conservation of Natural Resources: 

Soil Conservation: 

County Extension 71.996.08 71,996.08 65,253.07 

Weed and Pest Control 219,225.82 219,225.82 142,606.72 

Urban and Economic Development: 

Urban Development: 

Planning and Zoning 94,335.36 94,335.36 84,664.81 

Urban and Rural Development 25,714.1 5 41 5,406.62 415,406.62 

Economic Development: 

Tourism, Industrial or Recreational Development 19,736.25 19,736.25 19,736.25 

Total Expenditures 10,500,582.25 11,023,040.24 10,538,103.56 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 3,066, 768.25 3,021,136 40 4.045,670.61 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers In 44.490.00 44.490.00 14,072.91 

Transfers Out (4,560,132.92) (4,560,132.92) (4,560,132.92) 

Insurance Proceeds 30,000.00 30,000.00 176,139.31 

Sale of County Property 2,000.00 2,000.00 14,350.98 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (4,483,642.92) (4,483.642.92) (4,355.569.72) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,416,874.67) (1,462,506.52) (309,899.11) 

Fund Balance • Beginning 4,781,846.52 4,781,846.52 4,781,846.52 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 3,364,971 .85 $ 3,319.340.00 $ 4,471,947.41 
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Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

5,165.50 

100.00 

0.00 

15,698 91 

0.00 

21,305.55 

0.00 

6,743.01 

76,619.10 

9,670.55 

0.00 

0.00 

484,936.68 

1,024,534.21 

(30,417.09) 

0.00 

146,139.31 

12,350.98 

128,073.20 

1,152,607.41 

0.00 

$ 1,152,607.41 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. BUDGETARY BASIS 

ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

For the Year Ended Decamber 31, 2012 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

Wheel Tax s 740,000.00 s 740.000.00 s 756,279.77 s 16.279.77 
Licenses and Permits 6.000.00 6,000.00 12,630.00 4,630.00 
Intergovernmental Revenue: 

Federal Grants 0.00 0.00 92.984.27 92,964.27 
State Grants 0.00 0.00 364.290.11 364.290.11 
State Shared Revenue: 

Motor Vehicle Licenses 2,230.225.00 2.230.225.00 2,449,136. 75 216,913.75 
Prorate/Port of Entry Fees 125.000.00 125,000.00 157.032.12 32,032.12 
63 3/4% Mobile Home/Manufactured Home 30.000.00 30,000.00 43,1 92.01 13.192.01 
Motor Fuel Tax 0.00 0.00 17.919.42 17,91 9.42 

Other Intergovernmental Revenue 0.00 0.00 18,806.35 18.806.35 
Charges for Goods and Services: 

Public Works: 

Road Maintenance Contract Charges 5.600.00 5.600.00 207.91 {5,392.09) 
Miscellaneous Revenue: 

Investment Earnings 18.000.00 18,000.00 3,786.86 (14.211.14) 
Rent 5,000.00 5.000.00 4,512.50 (487.50) 
Contributions and Donations 0.00 0.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 
Other 1,000.00 1.000.00 1.363.77 363.77 

Total Revenues 3,162.625.00 3,162.825.00 3.931 ,1 45.64 766,320.84 

Expenditures: 

Public Works: 

Highway and Bridges: 

Highways, Roads and Bridges 7,449,192.16 7,528,803.89 7.527,201.03 1.602.86 
Intergovernmental Expenditures 40,000.00 40,000.00 37,814.00 2,186.00 

Total Expenditures 7,469,192.16 7.568,603.69 7.565,015.03 3,766.86 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4.326,367.16) (4,405,978.89) (3.633,869.19) 772,109.70 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers In 4,155,994.40 4,155,994.40 4,155,994.40 0.00 
Transfers Out 0.00 0.00 (3.768.66) (3,768.86) 
Insurance Proceeds 0.00 0.00 46,857.59 46.857.59 
Sale of County Property 16,000.00 16,000.00 93.762.02 77,762.02 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4,171,994.40 4,171,994.40 4.294,825.15 122,830.75 

Net Change in Fund Balance (154,372.76) (233.984.49) 660,955.96 894,940.45 

Fund Balance • Beginning 2,353,976.86 2.353.976.86 2.353,976.66 0.00 

FUND BALANCE • ENDING s 2.199.604.10 s 2.119,992.37 s 3,014,932.82 s 894.940.45 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE • BUDGETARY BASIS 

OROWN COUNTY TIF #1 FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Amounts 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

General Proi=)erty Taxes-Current s 600,000.00 s 600.00000 s 0.00 

M1sce!laneous Revenue: 

Investment Eamings 0.00 000 1.749.93 

Total Revenues 600,000.00 600,00000 1 749.93 

Expenditures: 

Urban and Economic Development: 

Economic Development: 

Tounsm, Industrial or Recreational Development 1,517,638.00 1,517.638.00 6,844.220.39 

Debt Service 0.00 0.00 39,900.00 

Total Expenditures 1,517,638.00 1.51i.S38.00 6,884.120.39 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (91 7,638.00) (917,638 00) {6,882,370.46) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers Out 0.00 0.00 (358.421.74) 

General Long-Term Debt Issued 0.00 0 00 6.950,000.00 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses} 0.00 0.00 6,591,578.26 

Net Change in Fund Balance (917.638.00) (917.638.00) (290,792.20) 

Fund Balance • Beginning 290,792.20 290,792.20 290,792.20 

FUND BALANCE · ENDING $ (626,845.80) $ i626,845.80) $ 0.00 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

$ (600,000 00) 

1,749 93 

(598,250 07) 

(5.326,582 39) •• 

(39.900.00) 

(5.365,482.39) 

(5,964, 732.46) 

(358,421.74) 

6 950 000 00 

6,591 ,578 26 

626,845.80 

0.00 

$ 626,845.80 

·· The County authorized the issuance of the Tax Incremental Revenue Bonds- Series 2011 on August 20, 2011; however, the bonds were not issued 

until April2012. The resolution authorized the expenditure of the proceeds being granted to the Northern Beef Packers, LP; however, formal budgetary 

adjustments were not made. 
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Note 1. 

BROWN COUNTY 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedules of Budgetary Comparisons for the General Fund 
and for each major Special Revenue Fund with a legally required budget. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accountino: 

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. Between the fifteenth and thirtieth days of July in each year the Board of County 
Commissioners prepares and files with the County Auditor a provisional budget for the 
following year. containing a detailed estimate of cash balances, revenues and 
expenditures. 

2. Prior to the first Tuesday in September in each year a notice of budget hearing is 
published once each week for two successive weeks, and the text of the provisional 
budget is published with the first publication. 

3. The Board of County Commissioners holds a meeting for the purpose of considering 
the provisional budget on or prior to the first Tuesday in September in each year. Such 
hearings must be concluded by October first. Changes made to the provisional budget 
are entered at length in the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners. 

4. Before October first of each year the Board of County Commissioners adopts an 
annual budget for the ensuing year. The adopted budget is filed in the office of the 
County Auditor. 

5. After adoption by the Board of County Commissioners. the operating budget is legally 
binding and actual expenditures for each purpose cannot exceed the amounts 
budgeted, except as indicated in number 7. 

6. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item 
may not exceed 5 percent of the total county budget. 

7. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state 
statute allows the adoption of supplemental budgets. 

8. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end unless encumbered by resolution of the 
Board of County Commissioners. 

9. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the 
year for the General Fund and special revenue funds. 

10. Budgets for the General Fund and special revenue funds are adopted on a basis 
consistent with USGAAP. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor 
Program or Cluster Title 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
COBG · State-Admmrstered COBG Cluster 

lndrrect Federal Funding: 
SO Governor's Office of Economic Development. 
Community Development Block GranVState's Program 

and Non-Entitlement Grants rn Hawari (Note 3) 

US Department of Interior: 
Direct Federal Funding: 

Bureau of Land Management, 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (Note 2) 
Distribution of Receipts to State and Local 

Governments (Note 2) 

Total US Department of lntenor 

US Department of Justice: 
Direct Federal Funding: 

Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Program 

Indirect Federal Funding: 
SO Department of Corrections. 
Juvenile Accountability Block Grants 

SO Department of Social Services. 
Stop Violence Against Women Act 

Total US Department of Justrce 

US Department of Transportation: 
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster: 

Indirect Federal Funding: 
SO Department of Transportation, 

Highway Planning and Construction 

Highway Safety Cluster: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Department of Public Safety, 
State and Community Highway Safety 

Total US Department of Transportation 

US General Services Administration: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Federal Property Agency, 
Donation of Federal Surplus 
Personal Property (Note 5) 

US Elections Assistance Commission: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Secretary of State. 
Help America Vote Act Requirements Payments 

US Department of Homeland Security: 
Homeland Security Cluster: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Department of Public Safety, 
Office of Emergency Management. 

Homeland Security Grant Program (Note 4) 
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Federal CFDA 
Number 

14.228 

15.226 

15.227 

16.607 

16.523 

16.588 

20.205 

20.600 

39.003 

90.401 

97.067 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

STOP·P-13·160 
STOP·P-13-160 

s 

s 

Ex pend itu res 
2012 

515.000.00 

198.00 

15.109.07 

15.307.07 

1,700 00 

7,036.60 

19,14002 
18,636.18 

46.512.80 

92,984.27 

28.992. 14 

121 ,976.41 

49,493.63 

29,548.15 

154,592.83 



BROWN COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012 
(Continued) 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor 
Program or Cluster Title 

Other Programs: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Department of Public Safety, 
Office of Emergency Management. 

Emergency Management Performance Grants 

Total US Department of Homeland Security 

GRAND TOTAL 

Federal CFDA 
Number 

97.042 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Number 

Note 1: This accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting unless otherw1se noted. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMS Circular A-133, 
Audits of States. Local Governments and Non-Profit Oroan1zations. Therefore, some amounts presented 
1n thiS schedule may differ from amounts presented in. or used 1n the preparation of, the general purpose 
financial statements. 

Note 2: Federal reimbursements are not based upon speofic expenditures. Therefore, the amounts reported 
here represent cash rece1ved rather than federal expenditures. 

Note 3: This represents a Major Federal Financial Assistance Program. 

No te 4: Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the County provided federal awards to sub­
recipients as follows: 

Program Tille 
Homeland Secunty Grant Program 

Federal 
CFDA Number 

97.067 

Amount 
Provided to 

Subrecipients 
$ 75,088.34 

Note 5: ·The amount reported represents 23 3% of the original acqu1sition cost of the federal surplus property 
received by the County. 
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s 

Expenditures 
201 2 

60.446 92 

215,039.75 

992.877.81 



The Department of Legislative Audit is an equal opportunity employer and does not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, political affiliation, 
age, or disability in employment or in the provision of services, programs and activities. 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, this document may be requested in 
alternate formats by contacting the Department of Legislative Audit at (605) 77J..3595 
(Voice), (605) n~54 (FAX) or by visiting 427 South Chapelle, Pierre, South Dakota 
57501. 
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MARTIN L. GUI NDON, CPA 
AUDITOR GENERAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATIERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

County Commission 
Brown County 
Aberdeen, South Dakota 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
Brown County, South Dakota (County), as of December 31, 2013, and for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated September 23, 2014. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we 
do not express an opinio.n on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the County's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs as items No. 2013-001 and No. 2013-002 to be material weaknesses. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

County's Response to Findings 

The County's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
Schedule of Current Audit Findings and Questioned Costs. The County's response was not subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. As required by South Dakota Codified Law 
4-11-11, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

M~ 
Auditor General 

September 23, 2014 
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AUDITOR GENERAL 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE W ITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

County Commission 
Brown County 
Aberdeen, South Dakota 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Brown County, South Dakota (County), compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the County's major federal programs 
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The County's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of Current Audit Findings and 
Questioned Costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audiis of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
County's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County's compliance. 
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Brown County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the County's intemal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees! in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purposes. As required by South 
Dakota Codified Law 4-11-11 , this report and our report on compliance for each major federal program 
are matters of public record a their distribution is not limited. 

September 23, 2014 
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BROWN COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AND CURRENT AUDIT FINDINGS 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Prior Federal Audit Findings: 

. The prior audit report contained no written federal audit findings. 

Prior Other Audit Finding: 

Finding No. 2012-01: 

Internal accounting controls over financial reporting for the year ended December 31, 2012 were 
inadequate resulting in inaccurate information being presented to users of the report. This finding has not 
been resolved and is restated as current audit finding No. 2013-001. 

SCHEDULE OF CURR.ENT AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results: 

Financial Statements 

a. An unmodified opinion was issued on the financial statements of each opinion unit. 

b. Material weaknesses were disclosed by our audit of the financial statements for a lack of internal 
controls over financial reporting and lack of internal controls over the purchase of technology 
equipment as discussed in current audit findings No. 2013-001 and No. 2013-002. 

c. Our audit did not disclose any noncompliance which was material to the financial statements. 

Federal Awards 

d. An unmodified opinion was issued on compliance with the requirements applicable to major 
programs. 

e. Our audit did not disclose any audit findings that need to be disclosed in accordance with the 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a). 

f . The federal award tested as a major program was: 
'\ 

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 

g. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B federal award programs was 
$300,000. 

h. Brown County did not qualify as a low-risk auditee. 
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Current Audit Findings: 

Internal Control-Related Findings - Material Weaknesses: 

Financial Reporting Errors 

Finding No. 2013-001: 

Internal accounting controls over financial reporting for the year ended December 31, 2013, were 
inadequate resulting in inaccurate information being presented to users of the report. This is the second 
consecutive audit report in which this finding has appeared. 

Analysis: 

We noted the following significant errors in the County's annual financial report for the year ended 
December 31,2013: 

a. The Statement of Net Position - Governmental Activities - Negative Restricted Net Position 
for Debt Service Purposes totaling $7,284,822.57 should have been reported as Unrestricted 
Net Position. 

b. The Statement of Net Position -Governmental Activities- Noncurrent Liabilities Due Within 
One Year was overstated by $342,273.61 and Other Current Liabilities was understated by 
the same amount. 

c. The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities- Governmental Activities - Other 
Deferred Inflows of Resources was overstated by $1,021,832.70 and General Revenue 
Property Taxes was understated by the same amount. Revenue was not accrued on the 
Statement of Activities using the accrual basis of accounting. 

d. The Statement of Net Position- Business-Type Activities- Due Within One Year was 
understated by $178,318.62 and Due in More Than One Year was overstated by the same 
amount. 

e. The Balance Sheet- General Fund- Assigned Fund Balance was understated by 
$400,000.00 and Unassigned Fund Balance was overstated by the same amount. 

f. The Balance Sheet- Other Governmental Funds - Restricted Fund Balance was overstated 
by $207,446.82 and Unassigned Fund Balance was understated by the same amount. 

g. The Balance Sheet- Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service Fund- Negative Restricted Fund 
Balance in the amount of $439,352.37 should have been reported as negative Unassigned 
Fund Balance. 

h. The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position - Proprietary Funds- Depreciation Expense and Accumulated Depreciation was 
understated by $393,946.18, which was the result of using cubic yards instead of cubic tons. 
This error was also noted on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities­
Business-Type Activities. 

i. The Statement of Net Position- Proprietary Funds- Restricted Net Position Landfill Closure 
and Postclosure Costs was overstated by $1,864,301.65 and should have been reported as 
Unrestricted Net Position. 

j. The Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds - Numerous errors in reconciling 
Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities and properly 
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reporting Cash Flows from Investing Activities, Noncapital Financing Activities, and Capital 
and Related Financing Activities totaling $1 ,066,268.80. 

Other less significant errors were also noted in the County's annual financial report. 

We were able to correct the material reporting errors and therefore have issued an unmodified auditor's 
opinion on the financial statements contained in this audit report. However, users of the annual financial 
reports received information of diminished reliability. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

1. We recommend the County strengthen internal accounting controls over financial reporting. 

Management's Response: 

Brown County agrees with Finding No. 2013-001 and will strive to comply with the recommendation. 

Duplicate Payment 

Finding No. 2013-002: 

Internal controls over the purchase of technology equipment from the contractor providing information 
technology management services to the County were inadequate resulting in a duplicate and 
unsupported payment to the contractor. 

Analysis: 

During our testing of a sample of the County's expenditures, we tested Voucher #13232 from Sivertsen 
Technology (contractor), the contractor providing information technology management services to the 
County. The voucher contained an invoice for a new computer system installed in the Sheriffs office 
consisting of a Lenovo Q series mini desktop, wireless keyboard and mouse, hdmi cable, and shipping 
and handling for a total of $465.98. 

The invoice did not contain the serial number for the Lenovo computer that was installed so we obtained 
the serial number by inspecting the computer at the Sheriffs office. We subsequently determined that a 
computer with the same serial number had been purchased and installed at the landfill dumpster sites in 
the previous year. · 

We then requested additional information from the County and the contractor to determine why the 
County had paid for the same computer twice. The following is a summary of the information· we were 
provided and the results of our follow-up on the information provided: 

• The contractor informed us that he had previously installed two Lenovo computers for the County 
Landfill Department; however. it was later determined that these two computer were not adequate 
for the County's needs. The County paid the contractor $907.96 for the two Lenovo computers. 

• The contractor then informed us that he had replaced the two Lenovo computers with two Dell 
computers from the contractor's inventory. We were able to determine that the two Dell 
computers used to replace the Lenovo computers were actually computers that had been 
disposed of at the County landfill. 

• We then asked the contractor to provide us evidence that he had purchased the two Dell 
computers to support his position that the Dell computers had come from his company's 
inventory. The contractor provided a cancelled check from his company to a third party in the 
amount of $650 that contained "2 used Dell" in the memo field of the check to support that he had 
purchased the two Dell computers. 
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• We then questioned the third party identified on the contractor's check. The third party indicated 
that he had never sold Dell computers to the contractor, but had sold the contractor Mac Book 
computers. The third party then provided an image of the check from his deposit records and the 
memo field on that check image contained "Mac Book Pro 17." We then obtained directly from 
the third party's bank a copy of the contractor's check. The memo field of the check image 
provided by the bank also contained "Mac Book Pro 17." 

As a result of our information gathering we conclude: 

• that the two Dell computers installed by the contractor did not come from the contractor's 
inventory; 

• that the County paid the contractor for two l enovo computers in 2012 and one of the Lenovo 
computers was subsequently billed by the contractor to the County again in 2013; and, 

• that the other Lenovo computer paid for by the County is not currently in service at the County. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

2. We recommend the County strengthen internal controls over the purchase of information 
technology equipment from its information technology management services contractor and 
determine whether the contractor should reimburse the County for the initial cost of the two 
Lenovo computers. 

Management's Response: 

As a result of an internal investigation by Brown County concerning the sale of two Lenovo computers to 
Brown County by Sivertsen Technology, the County has reached the following conclusions and taken the 
following actions: 

• After Brown County purchased two Lenovo computers from Sivertsen Technology in 2011 for use 
in a surveillance system for the BC Dumpster site, it was determined the Lenovo units were 
unsuitable for that application. Two Dell computers, with capacity to handle the surveillance 

· system, were substituted by Sivertsen Technology to replace the two Lenovo units. Sivertsen 
Technology took back the Lenovo computers and did not bill Brown County for the Dell 
computers that were substituted. 

• These Dell computers are currently in use by Brown County for its dumpster site surveillance 
system. During this period. installing a surveillance system at the Dumpster Site was a top 
priority. In its haste to install the system, Brown County neglected to declare the two Lenovo 
units surplus property before the substitution was made by Sivertsen Technology. 

• The Brown County Commission is committed to ensuring tax payer dollars are spent wisely and 
tracked appropriately. It views this incident as a serious deviation from that ongoing commitment. 
After Brown County officials were notified of the details surrounding this transaction, changes 
were immediately implemented to prevent similar problems in the future. 

1. Policy for declaring property as surplus was extensively reviewed. Additional steps were 
taken to more closely track and document all inventory in all departments. 

2. Given the contract between Brown County and Sivertsen Technology for Sivertsen 
Technology to provide information technology services and recommendations to the County, 
and given the close working relationship the County has with Sivertsen Technology, it was 
agreed between the parties that Brown County would make no future purchases of products 
or equipment from Sivertsen Technology. 

3. When purchasing any product or item having a serial number, each Department is now 
required to include that serial number on both its purchase invoice and its updated inventory 
list. 
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• Sivertsen Technology has reimbursed Brown County in the amount of $907.96, the total paid by 
the County for the two Lenovo computers. 

Brown County is currently operating under a contract with Sivertsen Technology to provide Information 
Technology services to the County. Sivertsen Technology and Brown Coun.ty agree proper steps were 
not taken and the proper procedure was not followed regarding the above mentioned transactions. 

Based on the recommendation contained in the September 23rd Audit Report, Brown County concludes it 
has taken timely and appropriate action regarding Finding No. 2013-002. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

County Commission 
Brown County 
Aberdeen, South Dakota 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brown County, South Dakota 
(County), as of December 31 , 2013, and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of 
Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The County's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibi lity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the County's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the County's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

10 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brown County as of December 31, 2013, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United St9tes of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary 
Comparison Schedules on pages 46 through 49 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The County has omitted the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by thts missing 
information. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the County's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, 
which as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconcil ing such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 23, 
2014 on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County's internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Martin L. Guindon, CPA 
Auditor General 

September 23, 2014 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2013 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activ ities Activities Total 

ASSETS: 
Cash ancf Cash Equivalents $ 3,621,307.33 $ 3,078,739.90 . $ 6,700,047.23 
Investments 3,950,000.00 1 ,236,503.84 5,186,503.84 
Accounts Receivable, Net 1,908,136.16 135,545.75 2,043,681.91 
Inventories 1 ,552,326.03 62,722.73 1,615,048.76 
Other Assets 205,527.15 205,527.15 
Restricted Assets: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,726.11 13,726.11 
Investments 1 ,850,575.54 1 ,850,575.54 

Capital Assets: 
Land, Improvements and Construction in 

Progress 2,338,150.51 765,547.16 3,103,697.67 
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 51 ,927,863.61 3,860,416.67 55,788,280.28 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 65,503,310.79 $ 11 ,003,777.70 $ 76' 507 '088.49 

LIABILITIES: 
Accounts Payable $ 60,213.09 $ 83,67~.23 $ 143,886.32 
Other Current Liabilities 533,392.90 8,224.59 541 ,617.49 
Unearned Revenue 33,764.45 827.85 34,592.30 
Noncurrent Liabilities: 

Due Within One Year 961 ,250.14 203,826.61 1,165,076.75 
Due in More than One Year 6,598,066. 72 1, 709,020.82 8,307,087.54 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,186,687.30 2,005,573.10 10,192,260.40 

NET POSITION: 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 54,266,014.12 4,625,963.83 58,891,977.95 
Restricted For: (See Note 12) 

Road and Bridge Purposes 1,951,114.13 1,951,114.13 
Other Purposes 400,063.22 400,063.22 

Unrestricted 699,432.02 4,372,240. 77 5, 071 ,672.79 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 57,316,623.49 $ 8,998,204.60 $ 66,314,828.09 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 
Pro11ram Revenues Chan!i!es In Net Position 

Operating Capital Prima!}: Government 
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business· Type 

Functions/Proarams ~enses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activit.les Total 
Primary Government: 

Governmental Activities: 
General Govemment s 4,173,918.81 $ 868,536.72 $ 348,578.99 $ $ (2,956,803.10) $ $ (2,956,803.10) 
Public Safety 4,782,039.59 348,622.07 1,002, 771.26 (3,430,646.26) (3,430,646.26) 
PublicWorl<.s 7,121,881.89 42,367.08 4.689,684.05 321,811.89 (2,068,018.87) (2,068,018.87) 
Health and Welfare 666,960.98 166,624.12 (500,336.86) (500,336.86) 
Culture and Recreation 1,567,492.76 987,680.96 12,000.00 (567,811.80) (567,811.80) 
Conservation of Natural Resources 239,767.19 53,681 .76 6,663.61 (179,421.82) (179,421 .82) 
Urban and Economic Development 344,421.55 (344,421.55) (344,421.55) 
Intergovernmental Expenditures 38,726.85 (38,726.85) (38,726.85) 

··oepreciat•on Expense- Unallocated 16,961.19 (16,961.19) (16,961.19) 
' Interest on Long-tenn Debt 689,773.61 (689,773.61) (689,773.61) 

Total Governmental Activities 19,641,944.42 2,467,512.71 6,059,697.91 321,811 .89 (10,792,921.91) 0.00 (10,792,921.91) .... 
~ Business· Type Activities: 

Solid Waste 2,349,279.96 2,200.580.31 238,000.00 89300.35 89.300.35 

Total Primary Government s 21,9911224.38 $ 4,668.093 02 $ 6,059,697.91 $ 559,811.89 (10,792,921.91) 89,300.35 (1 0, 703,621.56) 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

• The County does not have interest expense Property Taxes 13,047,850.55 13,047,850.55 
related to the functions presented above. This Wheel Tax 774,537.10 774,537.10 
amount includes indirect interest expense State Shared Revenues 428,797.33 428,797.33 
on general long-term debt Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs 13, 176.21 13,176.21 

Unrestricted Investment Eamlngs 21,893.50 16,737.48 38,630.98 
" This amount excludes the depreciation that Miscellaneous Revenue 11,542.80 131,604.42 143,147.22 
•s included •n the d~rect expenses of the Transfers 5,355.09 !5,355.09) 000 
vanous funcuons. (See Note 71. 0.00 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 14,303, 152.58 142,986.81 14,446,139.39 

Change in Net Position 3,510,230.67 232,287.16 3,742,517.83 

Net Position • Beginning 53.806,392.82 8 765 917.44 62,572.310.26 

NET POSITION ·ENDING $ 57,316,623.49 s 8,998,204.60 ~314.828.09 

The notes to the ftnancial statements are an integral part of this statement. 



BROWN COUNTY 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
December 31, 2013 

Brown County 
TIF #1 Other Total 

General Road and Bridge Debt Service Governmental Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents s 1,928,900.26 $ 1,013,099.19 s 13,183.24 s 666,124.64 s 3,621,307.33 
Investments 3,526,756.73 423,243.27 3,950,000.00 
Taxes Receivable--Delinquent 178,919.39 1,021,832.70 1,200, 752.09 
Accounts Receivable, Net 7,549.14 650.00 8,199.14 
Due from Other Governments 141 ,508.40 475,085.48 82,591.05 699,184.93 
Inventory of Supplies 24.455.17 1,527,870.86 1,552,326.03 
Deposits 0 ~ • 205.527.15 205,527.15 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6.013,616.24 s 3,439.948.80 $ 1,035.015.94 $ 748,715.69 $ 11,237.296.67 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 

CJl 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES: 
Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable $ 49,382.60 s 8,149.42 $ s 2,681.07 s 60,213.09 
Accrued Interest Payable 342,273.61 342,273.61 
Accrued Wages Payable 118,168.50 33,451.66 18,018.28 169,638.44 
Payroll Withholding Payable 17.734.37 1,190.90 2,555.58 21 ,480.85 
Unearned Revenue 17,634.62 16,129.83 33,764.45 
Bonds Payable-Current 110,262.00 110,262.00 

Total Liabilities 202.920.09 42,791.98 452,535.61 39,384.76 737.632.44 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable Revenue--Propeny Taxes 178,919.41 1.021.832.70 1,200,752.11 

Fund Balances: (See Note 1. 1.) 
Nonspendable 229,982.32 1,527.870.86 1,757,853.18 
Restricted 49,344.30 423,243.27 145,191.77 617,779.34 
Asstgned 2,612,245.46 1,446,042.69 564,139.16 4,622,427.31 
Unassigned 2.740.204.66 (439.352.37} __ 2_.300.852.29 

Total Fund Balances 5,631,776.74 3,397,156.82 (439,352.37! 709,330.93 9,298,912.12 

TOTAL LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES s 6,013,616.24 s 3,439,948.80 $ 1,035.015.94 $ 748,715.69 s 11 ,237,296.67 = 

The notes to the financial sta tements are an integral part of this statement. 



BROWN COUNTY 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Posi tion 

December 31, 2013 

Total Fund Balances- Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Net Position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Long-term liabiliti.es are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Tax Incremental Revenue Bonds-Series 2011 

Accrued Leave 

$ 

$ 

6,735,208.20 

713,846.66 

Assets, such as taxes receivable (delinquent), are not available to 
pay for current period expenditures and therefore are deferred in 
the funds. 

Property Taxes 
TIF Taxes 

$ 

$ 

178,919.39 

1,021,832.72 

$ 9,298,912.12 

54,266,014.12 

(7,449,054.86) 

1,200,752.11 

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 57,316,623.49 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Revenues: 
Taxes· 
General Property Taxes--Current $ 
General Property Taxes--Delinquent 
Penalties and Interest 
Mobile Home Tax 
Wheel Tax 
Tax Deed Revenue 

Licenses and Permits 
Intergovernmental Revenue: 
Federal Grants 
Federal Shared Revenue 
Federal Payments in Liell of Taxes 
State Grants 
State Shared Revenue: 

Bank Franchise 
Motor Vehicle Licenses 
Court Appointed Attorney/Public Defender 
Prorate/Port of Entry Fees 
Abused and Neglected Child Defense 
63 3/4% Mobile Home/Manufactured Home 
Telecommunications Gross Receipts Tax 
Motor Vehicle 1/4% 
Motor Fuel Tax 
911 Remittances 

Other Payments 1n L1eu of Taxes 
Otner Intergovernmental Revenue 

Charges for Goods and Services: 
General Government: 
Treasurer's Fees 
Register of Deeds' Fees 
Legal Services 
Clerk of Courts Fees 

For the Year Ended December 31 , 2013 

General 
Fund 

11,828,736.27 
95.402.36 
33,356.53 

2,431 .20 

18,061.00 
98,861.14 

306,804.37 
13,176.21 

192.00 
12,109.49 

196,325.20 

13.115.43 

2,831 .05 

227,824.99 
9 ,345.24 

4,647.14 
30,326.66 

65,885.14 
470,440.00 
105,527.43 

51,667.29 

Road and Bridge 
Fund 

$ 

774,537.10 

6,790.00 

608,428.23 

1,048,602.98 

2,820,246.72 

165,280.45 

24,031 .11 

17.926.11 

5,168.45 

$ 

Brown County 
TIF #1 

Debt Service 
Fund 

48,746.07 $ 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

7,770.00 

145,053.38 

17,747.00 

467,657.90 

364,831.34 

29,331.42 
3 ,050.00 

$ 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

11,877,482.34 
95,402.36 
33,356.53 

2,431.20 
774,537.10 

18,061.00 
113,421 .14 

1,060,285.98 
13,176.21 

192.00 
1,078,459.47 

196,325.20 
2,820,246.72 

13,115.43 
165,280.45 

2,831.05 
24,031.11 

227,824.99 
9,345.24 

17,926.11 
467,657.90 

4,647.14 
400,326.45 

65,885.14 
499,771.42 
108,577.43 

51 ,667.29 



Assessors Fees ~1.080.00 21,080.00 
Geographic Information Systems Fees 323.47 323.47 
Other Fees 825.79 825.79 

Public Safety: 
Law Enforcement 120,787.14 120,787.14 
Prisoner Care 97,390.10 97,390.10 
Sobriety Testing 89,648.00 89,648.00 
Other 12,000.00 12,000.00 

Public Works: 
Road Maintenance Contif'act Charges 4,856.83 4,856.83 

Health and Welfare: 
Econom1c Assistance: 

Poor Lien Recoveries 154,479.12 154,479.12 
Veterans Service Officer 4,375.00 4,375.00 

Culture and Recreation 874,385.63 874,385.63 
Conservation of Natural Resources 53,681 .76 53,681 .76 
Other Charges 15,782.88 15,782.88 

Fines and Forfeits: 
Fines 156.00 156.00 -
Costs 25,328.83 25,328.83 

Miscellaneous Revenue: _, 
Investment Earnings 17,294.65 3,352.63 671.79 574.43 21,893.50 <0 
Rent 113,295.33 1,520.25 114,815.58 
Contributions and Donations 9,069.16 29,200.00 5.00 38,274.16 
Other 9,765.10 111.96 1 665.74 11 542.80 

Total Revenues 15.105,086.10 5,510,052.82 49,417.86 1 '139,334.21 21 ,803,890.99 

Expenditures: 
General Government: 

Legislative: 
Board of County Commissioners 277,436.68 277,436.68 

Elections 2€?,280.31 26,280.31 
Judicial System 58,967.50 58,967.50 
Financial Administration: 

Auditor 341,829.03 341,829.03 
Treasurer 496,558.64 496,558.64 
Data Processing 315,296.28 315,296.28 

Legal Services: 
State's Attorney 637,037.22 637,037.22 
Court Appointed Attorney 313,615.82 313,615.82 
Abused and Neglected Child Defense 15,000.00 15,000.00 
Other 19,224.26 19,224.26 

Other Administration: 
General Government Building 808,345.60 808,345.60 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(Continued) 

Brown County 
TIF#1 Other 

General Road and Bridge Debt Service Governmental 

Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Director of Equalization 493,740.34 
Register of Deeds 280,588.23 10,127.33 
Veterans Service Officer 125,627.35 
Predatory Animal 10,374.57 
Geographic Information System 89,910.71 

Public Safety: 
Law Enforcement: 
Sheriff 1,302,518.16 
County Jail 1,376,192.11 77,745.31 
Coroner 32,707.25 
Juvenile Detention 741,616.83 

Protective and Emergency Services: 
Fire Protection 16,964.92 
Emergency and Disaster Services 221 ,902.64 
Communication Center 928,64.5.23 

Public Works: 
Highways and Bridges: 
Highways, Roads and Bridges 8,201,716.94 

Health and Welfare: 
Economic Assistance: 

Support of Poor 384,068.25 
Health Assistance: 
County Nurse 18,540.00 
Ambulance 41 ,990.13 

Social Services: 
Care of Aged 1,000.00 
Domestic Abuse 12,389.00 

Mental Health Services: 
Mentally Ill 65,923.73 
Developmentally Disabled 4,800.00 
Drug Abuse 20,000.00 
Mental Health Centers 37,080.00 
Mental Illness Board 80,500.00 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

493,740.34 
290,715.56 
125,627.35 

10,374.57 
89,910.71 

1,302,518.16 
1,453,937.42 

32,707.25 
741,616.83 

16,964.92 
221,902.64 
928,645.23 

8,201,716.94 

384,068.25 

18,540.00 
41,990.13 

1,000.00 
12,389.00 

65,923.73 
4,800.00 

20,000.00 
37,080.00 
80,500.00 
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Culture and Recreation: 
Culture: 

Public Library 
Historical Museum 
Historical Sites 

Recreation: 
Recreational Programs 
Parks 
Exhibition Building 
County Fair 
Senior Center 

Conservation of Natural Resources: 
Soil Conservation: 
County Extension 
Weed and Pest Control 

Urban and Economic Development: 
Urban Development: 
Planning and Zon1ng 
Urban and Rural Development 

Economic Development: 
Tourism. Industrial or Recreational Development 

Intergovernmental Expenditures 
Debt Service 

Total Expenditures 

Excess or Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers In 
Transfers Out 
Insurance Proceeds 
Sale of County Property 

Total Other Finljlncing Sources (Uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance- Beginning 

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 

18,000.00 
323,139.08 

457.48 

5,000.00 
80,462.12 

286,005.12 
824,244.51 

4,500.00 

68,601 .50 
157,997.33 

62,415.17 
263,392.90 

20,750.00 

10,529,474.87 

4,575,611.23 

8,707.72 
(3,475,850.19) 

38,541 .96 
12,818.61 

(3,415,781 .90) 

1 '159,829.33 

4,471,947.41 

$ 5,631,776.74 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

18,000.00 
323,139.08 

457.48 

- 5,000.00 
80,462.12 

286,005.1 2 
824,244.51 

4,500.00 

68,601.50 
157,997.33 

62,415.17 
263,392.90 

20,750.00 
38,726.85 38,726.85 

904,565.41 904,565.41 
8 240,443.79 904,565.41 1,270,033.77 20,944,517.84 

(2, 730,390. 97} (855, 147.55} (130,699.56) 859,373.15 

3,000,000.00 475,850.19 3,484,557.91 
'(3,352.63} (3,479,202.82) 
5,596.40 2,859.10 46,997.46 

110,371.20 123.189.81 
3,1 12161 4.97 0.00 478,709.29 175,542.36 

382,224.00 (855,147.55) 348,009.73 1,034,915.51 

3,0141932.82 415,795.18 361,321 .20 8,263,996.61 

$ 3,397,156.82 $ (439,352.37) $ 709,330.93 $ 9,298,912.12 



BROWN COUNTY 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Net Change in Fund Balances- Total Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activit ies in the Statement of 
Activities are different because: 

This amount repre.sents capital asset purchases which are 
reported as expenditures on the fund financial statements 
but increase assets on the government-wide statements. 

This amount represents the current year depreciation expense 
reported in the Statement of Activities which is not reported on 
the fund financial statements because it does not require the 
use of current financial resources. 

In the Statement of Activities, gains and losses on disposal of 
capital assets are reported, whereas, in the governmental funds, 
the proceeds from the disposal of capital assets are reflected, 
regardless of whether a gain or loss is realized. 

The receipt of donated capital assets is not reported on the 
fund statements, but is reported as a program revenue on the 
government-wide statements. 

Payment of principal on long-term debt (Tax Incremental Revenue 
Bonds - Series 2011) is an expenditure in the governmental funds 
but the payment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net 
Position. 

Current liability and expenditure recognized in TIF #1 Debt Service 
Fund for principal payment owed in 2013 but not paid. The County 
did not receive enough tax revenue to make all the principal payments. 

The fund financial statement governmental fund property tax 
accruals differ from the government-wide' statement property 
tax accruals in that the fund financial statements require 
the amounts to be "available." 

Governmental funds recognize expenditures for amounts of 
compensated absences actually paid to employees with current 
financial resources during the fiscal year. Amounts of compensated 
absences earned by employees are not recognized in the funds. 
In the Statement of Activities, expenses for these benefits are 
recognized when the employees earn leave credits. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 1,034,915.51 

2,797,707.32 

(1,735,630.66) 

(98,036.62) 

321 ,811 .89 

104,529.80 

110,262.00 

1,021,117.12 

(46,445.69) 

$ 3,510,230.67 



ASSETS; 
Current Assets: 

BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2013 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable, Net 
Inventory of Supplies 

Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Restricted Investments 

Capital Assets: 
Land 
Buildings 
Improvements Other Than Buildings 
Machinery and Equipment 
Construction Work in Progress 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts Payable 
Accrued Wages Payable 
Payroll Withholding Payable 
Unearned Revenue 
Compensated Absences Payable -- Current 
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care 

Costs - Current 
Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Accrued Leave Payable 
Accrued Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
Unrestricted Net Position 

TOTAL NET POSITION 

Enterprise Funds 
Solid Waste 

Fund 

$ 3,078,739.90 
1,236,503.84 

135,545.75 
62,722.73 

4,513,512.22 

13,726.11 
1,850,575.54 

478,078.38 
966,117.03 

5, 041,222.21 
2,829,023.19 

287.466.78 
{4,975.945.76) 
6.490,265.48 

$ 11,003,777.70 

$ 83,673.23 
7,236.77 

987.82 
627.85 

25,507.99 

178,318.62 
296.552.28 

23,037.79 
1,685.983.03 
1, 709,020.82 

2.005,573.10 

4,625,963.83 
4.372,240.77 

$ 8,998,204.60 

The notes to the financial statements are an mtegral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for Goods and Services 
Solid Waste Fee 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses: 
Personal Services 
Other Current Expense 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating lnc.ome (Loss) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 
Investment Earnings 
Rental Revenue 
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Assets 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 

Capital Contributions 
Transfers Out 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning 

NET POSITION- ENDING 

Enterprise Funds 
Solid Waste 

Fund 

$ 1,651,853.89 
497,060.00 

51,666.42 
2,200,580.31 

324,554.81 
1,040,735.90 

983,989.25 
2,349,279.96 

(148,699.65) 

16,737.48 
32,718.00 
98,886.42 

148,341 .90 

(357.75) 

238,000.00 
(5,355.09) 

232,287.16 

8, 765,917.44 

$ 8,998,204.60 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Cash Receipts from Customers 
Cash Payments to Employees for Services 
Cash Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Rental Revenue 
Transfers Out 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 
. Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Capital Grant 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Purchase of lnveslment Securities 
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments 
Cash Received for Interest 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

RECONCIUATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 
Depreciation Expense 

Change in Assets and liabilities: 
Receivables 
Inventories 
Accounts and Other Payables 
Accrued Wages Payable 
Accrued leave Payable 
Deferred Inflow of Resources 
Closure Costs 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Ente~rise Funds 
Solid Waste 

Fund 

$ 2,207,638.62 
(328, 115.62) 
{955,666.74) 

923,856.26 

32,718.00 
(5,355.09) 

27,362.91 

98,886.42 
(882,468.70) 
238,000.00 

(545.582.28) 

(3,087,079.38) 
2,461,785.52 

16,737.48 

{608,556.38) 

(202,919.49) 

3,295,385.50 

$ 3,092,466.01 

$ (148,699.65) 

983,989.25 

6,230.46 
(13,083.04) 
(37,982.40) 

954.99 
{4,515.80) 

827.85 
136,134.60 

$ 923.856.26 



BROWN COUNTY 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
December 31, 2013 

ASSETS: 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES: 
Amounts Held for Others 
Due to Other Governments 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

Agency 
Funds 

$ 1,197,129.19 

$ 1,197,129.19 

$ 451 ,395.44 
745,733.75 

$ 1,197,129.19 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a. Financial Reporting Entity: 

The reporting entity of Brown County (County), consists of the primary government (which 
includes all of the funds, organizations; institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that 
make up the legal entity, plus those funds for which the primary government has a fiduciary 
responsibility); those organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the 
financial reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the 
primary government are financially accountable. The County is financially accountable if its 
County Commission appoints a voting majority of another organization's governing body and 
it has the ability to impose its will on that organization, or there is a potential for that 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, 
the County (primary government). The County may also be financially accountable for 
another organization if that organization is fiscally dependent on the County. 

The County has created a Housing and Redevelopment Commission under the authority of 
South Dakota Codified Law (SDCL) 11-7-7. The County organized the Brown County 
Housing and Redevelopment Commission solely for abdicating its authority over the non-city 
housing projects within the County to the Aberdeen Housing Commission organized by the 
City of Aberdeen. Therefore, this component unit's financial activity was not included on the 
County's annual report. The financial activity of this component unit is to be included as a 
component unit on the City of Aberdeen's annual report. 

b. Basis of Presentation: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the 
reporting entity as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary 
funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, 
and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part 
by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the County and for each function 
of the County's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically 
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular 
function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by recipients of goods and services 
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified 
as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting enti.ty. Each fund is accounted for by providing a 
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separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into three major categories: 
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the 
governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary 
ope~ating fund of the County or it meets the following criteria: 

1. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 1 0 percent of the corresponding total for all 
funds of that category or type, and 

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual 
governmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all 
governmental and enterprise funds combined, or 

3. Management has elected to classify one or more governmental or enterprise funds as 
major for consistency in reporting from year to year, or because of public interest in the 
fund's operations. 

The funds of the County financial reporting entity are described below: 

Governmental Funds: 

General Fund- The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is usei:J to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
The General Fund is always considered to be a major fLind. 

Special Revenue Funds- Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than trusts for individuals, private organizations, or other 
governments or for major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
specified purposes. 

Road and Bridge Fund -to account for funds credited to the road and bridge fund 
pursuant to SOCL 32-11-4.2 to be used by the board of county commissioners for 
grading, constructing, planing, dragging, and maintaining county highways and also for 
dragging, maintaining, and grading secondary roads. Proper equipment for dragging, 
grading, and maintaining highways, such as graders, tractors, drags, maintainers, and 
planers may be purchased from the road and bridge fund. (SDCL 32-11-2 and 32-11 -
4.2) This is a major fund. 

The remaining special revenue funds are not considered major funds: 911 Service, 
Emergency Management, Domestic Abuse, Teen Court, State Grants. Richmond Youth 
Camp, 24/7 Sobriety, and Modernization and Preservation Relief. These funds are 
reported on the fund financial statements as "Other Governmental Funds." 

Debt Service Funds - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of. genera/ long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. 

Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service Fund- to account for tax increment property taxes 
which may be used only for the payment of the debt principal, interest, and related costs 
of the Tax Incremental Bond Series 2011 . This is a major fund. 

Proprietary Funds: 

Enterprise Funds- Enterprise funds may be used to report any activity for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services. Activities are required to be reported as 
enterprise funds if any one of the following criteria is met. Governments should apply each of 
these criteria in the context of the activity's principal revenue sources. 
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a. The activity is financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net 
revenues from fees and charges of the activity. Debt that is secured by a pledge 
of net revenues from fees and charges and the full faith and credit of a related 
primary government or component unit-even if that government is not expected 
to make any payments-is not payable solely from fees and charges of the 
activity. (Some debt may be secured, in part, by a portion of its own proceeds 
but should be considered as payable "solely" from the revenues of the activity.) 

b. Laws or regulations require that the activity's costs of providing services, 
including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered with 
fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues. 

c. The pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover 
its costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service). 

Solid Waste Fund- financed primarily by user charges this fund accounts for the solid 
waste operation of the County as provided by SDCL 34A-6. This is a major fund. 

Fiduciary Funds: 

Fiduciary funds consist of the following sub-category and are never consideFed to be major 
funds: 

Aqencv Funds- Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. Agency funds are used to account for the 
accumulation and distribution of property tax revenues and various pass-through funds. 

c . Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when· revenues and 
expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial 
statements, regardless of the measurement focus. 

Measurement Focus: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus, applied on the accrual basis of accounting. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund finanCial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting are applied to governmental fund types, while the 
"economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting are applied to 
the proprietary and fiduciary fund types. 

Basis of Accounting: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, governmental 
and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the 
accrual basis of accounting , revenues and related assets are recorded when earned (usually 
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when the right to receive cash vests); and, expenses and related liabilities are recorded when 
an obligation is incurred (usually when the obligation to pay cash in the future vests). 

Fund Financial Statements: 

All governmental fund types are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Their revenues, including property taxes, are recognized when they become 
measurable and available. "Available" means resources are collected or to be collected soon 
enough after the end of the fiscal year that they can be used to pay the bills of the current 
period. The accrual period for the County is 30 days, plus any grant receivables where 
expenditures have been incurred. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, receivables may be measurable but not 
available. Reported unearned revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have been 
met but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The revenues which are 
accrued at December 31, 2013 are various grant reimbursements, state shared revenues, 
911 surcharges, and court appointed attorney reimbursements. 

Expenditures are generally recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions 
to this general rule include principal and interest on general long-term debt which are 
recognized when due. 

All proprietary and fiduciary fund types are accounted for using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are earned, and their expenses are 
recognized when they are incurred. 

d. Deposits and Investments: 

For the purpose of financial reporting, "cash and cash equivalents" includes all demand and 
savings accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with a term to maturity 
at date of acquisition of three months or less. Investments in open-end mutual fund shares, 
or similar investments in external investment pools, are also considered to be cash 
equivalents. 

Investments classified in the financial statements consist entirely of certificates of deposit 
whose term to maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months, and/or those types of 
investment authorized by SDCL 4-5-6. 

e. Capital Assets: 

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment. and all other tangible or 
intangible assets that are used in operations and that have initial useful lives extending 
beyond a single reporting period. Infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that 
normally are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for significantly greater 
number of years than most capital assets. 

The accounting treatment over capital assets depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in 
the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Capital assets are recorded at historical cost, or estimated cost, where actual cost could not 
be determined. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date 
donated. Reported cost values include ancillary charges necessary to place the asset into its 
intended location and condition for use. Subsequent to initial capitalization, improvements or 
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betterments that are significant and which extend the useful life of a capital asset are also 
capitalized. 

The total December 31, 2013 balance of governmental activities capi tal assets includes 
approximately 75 percent for which the costs were determined by estimates of the original 
costs. The total December 31,2013 balance of business-type capital assets are all valued at 
original cost. 

For governmental activities Capital Assets, construction-period interest is not capitalized, in 
accordance with USGMP, while·for capital assets used in business-type 
activities/proprietary fund's operations, construction period interest is capitalized in 
accordance with USGAAP. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
government-wide Statement of Activities, except for that portion related to common use 
assets for which allocation would be unduly complex, and which is reported as Unallocated 
Depreciation, with net capital assets reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Accumulated 
depreciation is reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position and on the 
proprietary fund's Statement of Net Position. 

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the 
capital asset accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets 
reported in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds are as follows: 

Capitalization 
Threshold 

Land and Land Rights $ 
Improvements Other Than Buildings $ 
Buildings $ 
Machinery and Equipment $ 
Infrastructure•• $ 

1 
25,000 
25,000 

5,000 
25,000 

Depreciation 
Method 

-----N/A--­
Straight-line 
Straight-line 
Straight-line 
Straight-line 

Estimated 
Useful Life 

---N/A---
15-1 00 years 
13-225 years 

5-60 years 
17-125 years 

.. Bridges are capitalized for structures greater than 20 feet, per SDCL 31-14. The 
composite/group method is used for roads (gravel roads and paved roads). For all roads­
the entire system including base, culverts, and gravel surface. For paved roads - new 
construction - definition of new construction being 2" overlay or greater for distance 
exceeding one mile. 

Land is an inexhaustible capital asset and is not depreciated. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as expenditures of the appropriate governmental fund upon acquisition. 
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for on the accrual basis, the 
same as in the government-wide financial statements. 

f. Long-Term Liabilities: 

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in 
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in 
the government-wide or fund financial statements. 

All long-term liabilities to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are 
reported as liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. The long-term liabilities 
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primarily consist of compensated absences, accrued landfill closure/postclosure, and the Tax 
Incremental Revenue Bond Series 2011 . 

In the fund financial statements, debt proceeds are reported as revenues (other financing 
sources), while payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures when they 
become due. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is on the accrual basis, the 
same in the fund statements as in the government-wide financial statements. 

g. Program Revenues: 

Program revenues derive directly from the program itself or from parties other than the 
County's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three 
categories, as follows: 

1. Charges for services - These arise from charges to customers, applicants, or others 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided, 
or are otherwise directly affected by the services. 

2. Program-specific operating grants and contributions- These arise from mandatory and 
voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or 
individuals that are restricted for use in a particu lar program. 

3. Program-specific capital grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and 
voluntary non-exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or 
individuals that are restricted for the acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular 
program. 

h. Proprietary Funds Revenue and Expense Classifications: 

In the proprietary fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, 
revenues and expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in 
the Statement of Cash Flows. That is, transactions for which related cash flows are reported 
as capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities 
are not reported as components of operating revenues or expenses. 

i. Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

For the purposes of the proprietary funds' Statement of Cash Flows, the County considers all 
highly liquid investments as deposits including restricted assets with a term to maturity of 
three months or less, at date of acquisition, to be cash equivalents. 

j. Equity Classifications: 

Government-wide Financial Statements: 

Equity is classified as Net Position and is displayed in three components: 

1. Net Investment in Capital Assets- Consists of capital assets, including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation (if applicable), and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the· 
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

2. Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use 
either by (a) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and 
regulations of other governments; or (b) law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 
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3. Unrestricted Net Position -All other net position that do not meet the definition of 
"Restricted" or "Net Investment in Capital Assets." 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance, and may distinguish between 
"Nonspendable", "Restricted", "Committed", "Assigned", and "Unassigned" components. 
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements. 

k. Application of Net Position: 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy 
to use restricted resources first and then use the unrestricted resources. as they are needed. 
However, an exception to this policy is that restricted Snow Removal resources in the Road 
and Bridge Fund shall only be for expenses on snow removal when the amount spent in a 
fixed year exceeds the cost for an average year's snow removal. 

I. Fund Balance Classification Policies and Procedures: 

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the County classifies governmental fund 
balances as follows: 

• Nonspendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is 
not in spendable form or because of legal or contractual constraints. 

• Restricted - includes fund balance amounts that ~re constrained for specific purposes 
which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due 
to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes 
that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level 
of decision making authority and does not lapse at year-end. 

• Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Func~ Balance may be 
assigned by the County Commissioners: 

• Unassigned - includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been 
classified within the above mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other 
governmental funds. 

The Nonspendable Fund Balance is comprised of the following: 

• Amount reported in nonspendable form such as inventory. 
• Amount legally or contractually required to be maintained intact such as South Dakota 

Public Assurance Alliance. 

The County uses restricted/committed amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted 
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents/contracts that prohibit doing this, 
such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the Government 
would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund 
balance when expenditures are made. 

The County does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy. 

The purpose of each major special revenue fund and revenue source is listed below: 

Major Special Revenue Fund 
Road and Bridge Fund 
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A schedule of fund balances is provided as follows: 

BROWN COUNTY 
DISCLOSURE OF FUND BALANCES REPORTED ON BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Brown County 
Road TIF#1 Other Total 

General and Bridge Debt Service Governmental Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Inventory $ 24,455.17 $ 1,527,870.86 $ $ $ 1 ,552,326.03 
Deposit - South Dakota Publfc 
Assurance Alliance 205,527.15 205,527.15 

Restricted For: 
Fire Protection Purposes 42,955.33 -42,955.33 

w Donation Purposes 6,388.97 6,388.97 
.s::. Snow Removal Purposes 423,243.27 423,243.27 

Domestic Abuse Purposes 1,054.00 1,054.00 
Richmond Youth Camp Purposes 21,916.96 21,916.96 
24/7 Sobriety Purposes 54,593.20 54,593.20 
Teen Court Purposes 35,367.52 35,367.52 
Modernization and Preservation 

Relief Purposes 32,260.09 32,260.09 
Assigned To: 

Applied to Next Year's Budget 2,212,245.46 2,212,245.46 
Capital Outlay Accumulations 400,000.00 400,000.00 
Road and Bridge Purposes 1,446,042.69 1,446,042.69 
Emergency Management Purposes 101,739.16 101,739.16 
911 Service Purposes 462,400.00 462,400.00 

Unassigned 2, 7 40,204.66 {439,352.37} 2,300,852.29 

Total Fund Balances $ 5,631 ,776.74 $ 3,397,156.82 $ (4~9,352.37) $ 709,330.93 $ 9,298,912.12 

------------------............ ... 



2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS CREDIT RISK, CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND 
INTEREST RATE RISK 

The County follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash 
management efficiency and returns, except for restricted cash assets in the Solid Waste Fund. 
Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by statutes. These restrictions are 
summarized below: 

Deposits - The County's cash deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by 
SDCL 4-6A-1, 7-20-1, 7-20-1.1, and 7-20-1.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits. 
Qualified depositories are required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their 
other assets, eligible collateral having a value equal to at least 100 percent of the public deposit 
accounts which exceed deposit insurance sucM as the FDIC and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible 
securities, a qualified public depository may furnish irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by 
federal home loan banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank's public debt rating which 
may not be less than "AA" or a qualified public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a 
corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota. 

Investments - In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits County funds to be invested only in (a) securities of 
the United States and securities guaranteed by the United States Government either directly or 
indirectly; or (b) repurchase agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) above; or 
in shares of an open-end, no-load fund administered by an investment company whose 
investments are in securities described in (a) above and repurchase agreements described in {b) 
above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9 requires investments to be in the physical custody of the political 
subdivision or may be deposited in a safekeeping account with any bank or trust company 
designated by the political subdivision as its fiscal agent. 

Credit Risk - State law limits eligible investments for the County, as discussed above. The County 
has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The County places no limit on the amount that may be invested in 
any one issuer. 

Interest Rate Risk- The County does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 

Assignment of Investment Income - State law allows income from deposits and investments to 
be credited to either the General Fund or the fund making the investment. The County's policy is to 
credit all income from deposits and investments to the General Fund, except for interest earned on 
specific certificates of deposits and financial assurance savings account of the Solid Waste Fund, 
and interest earned by the 911 Service Fund. USGAAP, on the other hand, requires income from 
deposits and investments to be reported in the fund whose assets generated that income. Where 
the governing board has discretion to credit investment income to a fund other than the fund that 
provided the resources for investment. a transfer to the designated fund is reported. According ly, in 
the fund financial statements, interfund transfers of investment earnings are reported, while in the 
government-wide financial statements, they have been eliminated, except for the net amounts 
transferred between governmental activities and business-type activities. 

3. RESTRICTED CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

Assets restricted to use for a specific purpose through segregation of balances in separate 
accounts are as follows: 

Amount: 
$1,864,301.65 

Purpose: 
DENR required closure/postclosure costs for 'the landfill 

35 



4. RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES 

Receivables and payables are aggregated in these financial statements; however, they are 
reported in detail on the fund financial statements. The County expects all receivables to be 
collected within one year. 

5. INVENTORY 

Inventory in the General Fund and special revenue funds consists of expendable supplies held for 
consumption. Supply inventories are recorded at cost. 

Inventory in the proprietary funds is recorded as an asset when acquired. The consumption of 
inventories is charged to an expense as it is consumed. Inventories are recorded at the lower of 
cost or market, on the first-in, first-out cost flow assumption. 

' 
Government-wide Financial Statements: 

In the government-wide financial statements, inventory is recorded as an asset at the time of 
purchase, and charged to expense as it is consumed. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

In the fund financial statements, inventory is recorded as an asset at the time of purchase, and 
charged to an expense as it is consumed. Material supply inventories are off-set by nonspendable 
fund balance which indicates that they do not constitute "available spendable resources" even 
though they are a component of net current assets. 

6. PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes are levied on or before October 1, of the year preceding the start of the fiscal year. 
They attach as an enforceable lien on property, and become due and payable as of the following 
January 1, the first day of the fiscal year. Taxes are payable in two installments on or before 
April 30 and October 31 of the fiscal year. 

The County is permitted by several state statutes to levy varying amounts of taxes per $1,000 of 
taxable valuation on taxable real property in the County. 
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7. CHANGES IN GENERAL CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
1/1/2013 Increases Decreases 12131/2013 

Governmental Activities: 

Capital Assets not being Depreciated: 

Land s 1,329,194.22 $ 178,617.72 $ (215.52) $ 1,507,596.42 

Construction in Progress 674,576.25 193,073.80 (37,095.96) 830,554.09 

Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 2,003,770.47 371.691 .52 (37.311.48) 2,338.150.51 

Capital Assets being Depreciated: 

Buildings 7,575,732.10 3,213.00 7,578,945.10 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 
Than Buildings) 57,563,271 .13 2,272,219.09 (76,139.09) 59,759,351.13 

Machinery and Equipment 8,526,554.03 513.491.56 (289,471.00) 8,750,574.59 

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 73.665,557.26 2.788,923.65 (365,610.09) 76,088,870.82 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS $ 75,669.327.73 $ 3,160,615.17 s (402.921.57) $ 78,427,021 .33 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings $ (1,645,191.29) $ (79,856.25) $ $ (1,725,047.54) 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 
Than Buildings) (16,916,021 .11) (1,138,015.88) 69,712.97 (17,984.~24.02) 

Machinery and Equipment (4, 127,953.14) (517,758.53) 194,076.02 (4,451,635.65) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (22.689,165.54) (1. 735,630.66) 263,788.99 (24,161,007.21) 

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 50,976,391.72 1.053,292.99 {101.821.10) 51,927.863.61 

Governmental Activity Capital Assets, Net s 52,980,162.19 $ 1.424.984.51 $ (139,132.58) s 54,266,014.12 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

General Government $ 39,763.03 

Public Safety 125,165.63 

Public Works 1,470,668.10 

Culture and Recreation 69,216.75 

Conservation of Natural Resources 12,68g.29 

Urban and Economic Development 1,166.67 

Depreciation Unallocated 16,961.19 

Total Depreciation Expense·Governmental Activities s 1, 735,630.66 

37 



Balance Balance 
1/1/2013 Increases Decreases 12/31/2013 

Business-Type Activities: 

Capital Assets not being Depreciated: 

Land $ 478,078.38 $ $ s 478,078.38 

Construction in Progress 15,486.43 287,468.78 {15,486.43) 287,468.78 

Total Capital Assets not being Depreciated 493,564.81 287,468.78 {15,486.43) 765,547.16 

Capital Assets being Depreciated: 

Buildings 950,630.60 15,486.43 966,117.03 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 
Than Buildings) 5,041,222.21 5,041,222.21 

Machinery and Equipment 2,443,598.38 595,000.00 {209,575.19) 2.829.023.19 

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated 8,435,451.19 610,486.43 (209.575.19) 8,836.362.43 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS $ 8.929,016.00 $ 897.955.21 $ (225,061.62) $ 9,601.909.59 

Less Accumulated Depreciation for: 

Buildings s {329,410.76) s (43, 797.98) s s (373,208.74) 

Infrastructure (Improvements Other 
Than Buildings) (2,258,291.38) {769.807.55) (3.028,098.93) 

Machinery and Equipment (1,613,829.56) {170,383. 72) 209.575.19 {1,574.638.09) 

Total Accumulated Depreciation (4,201.531.70) {983.989.25) 209,575.19 (4,975,945. 76) 

Total Capital Assets being Depreciated, Net 4,233,919.49 {373.502.82) 0.00 3,860,416.67 

Business-Type Activity Capital Assets. Net $ 4,727,484.30 $ (86,034.04) $ {15,486.43) $ 4.625,963.83 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Solid Waste • $ 983.989.25 
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Construction Work in Progress at December 31, 2013 is composed of the following: 

Expended 
Thru 

Project Name 12131/2013 

Governmental Activities: 
County Road 20.4 $ 202,115.16 
County Road 23.2 171,157.89 
County Road 19A 110,162.76 
County Road 9. 7 52,096.21 
County Road 2.5 20,261.55 
County Road 16.5 6,511.34 
County Road 14W1 11,068.45 
Bridge BR238 110,732.66 
Bridge BR 180 2,177.52 
Bridge BR204 142,459.70 
Bridge BR277 924.60 
Bridge BR319 886.25 

Total Governmental Activities $ 830,554.09 

Business-Type Activities: 
Unit 1 $ 272,738.78 
Unit 2 - Cell 2 14,730.00 

Total Business-Type Activities $ 287,468.78 

With regard to the Bridge projects, the projects are handled by the State Department of 
Transportation. The State is responsible for 80% of the total costs and the County is responsible 
for 20%. · 

8. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities follows: 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Balance Due Within 
1/1/2013 Additions Deletions 12/31/2013 One Year 

Primary Government: 

Governmental Activities: 

Bonds Payable: 

Tax Incremental Revenue 

Bond Series 2011 $ 6,950.000.00 $ $ (104,529.80) s 6,845,470.20 $ 347,104.60 
Accrued Compensated Absences 667.400.97 660,591 .23 (614.145.54) 713,846.66 614,145.54 

Total Governmental Activities 7.617.400.97 660,591.23 (718.675.34) 7,559,316.86 961 ,250.14 

Business-Type Activities: 

Accrued Landfill Closure/Postclosure 1.728.167.05 136,134.60 1,864,301.65 178.318.62 
Accrued Compensated Absences 53.061.58 24,801 .13 (24,806.55) 48,545.78 25,507.99 

Total Business-Type Activities 1. 781 .228.63 160,935.73 (24,806.55) 1.912.847.43 203.826.61 

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 9.398.629.60 $ 821 ,526.96 $ (743.481 .89) $ 9.472,164.29 $ 1.165.076.75 
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Long-Term .Liabilities payable at December 31 , 2013 is comprised of the following: 

Tax Incremental Revenue Bonds - Series 2011: 

Northern Beef Plant Increment Financing - Interest Rate 
of 10 percent- Maturing 4/2027- Payments made out 
of the Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service Fund 

Compensated Absences: 

Annual leave 

Sick Leave 

$ 6,845,470.20 

420,025.89 

342,366.55 

Payments to be made by the fund that the payroll expenditures are charged. 

Landfill Closure/Postclosure: 

Paid out of Solid Waste Fund 1.864,301.65 

Total Long-Term Liabilities $9 472.164 29 

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2013, except for 
compensated absences and landfill closure/postclosure, are as follows: 

Year 
Ending 

December 31 , 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019-2023 
2024-2027 

TOTAL 

9. CONDUIT DEBT 

Annual Requirements to Amortize Long-Term Debt 
December 31,2013 

Tax Increment 
Financing 

Princieal Interest 
$ 347,104.60 $ 1,010,036.67 $ 

261,333.00 643,466.55 
288,285.60 616,679.97 
317,691.45 587,115.97 
350,367.25 554,570.87 

2,368,370.45 2,154,952.05 
2,912 317.85 668,914.80 

Total 
1,357,141 .27 
. 904,799.55 

904,965.57 
904,807.42 
904,938.12 

4,523,322.50 
3,581,232.65 

$ 6,845,470.20 $ 61235,736.88 $ 13,081,207.08 

In the past, the County has issued revenue bonds to provide financial assistance to certain private­
sector entities for the acquisition and/or construction of facilities deemed to be in the public 
interest. These bonds are secured by the property being financed and are payable solely from 
payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds. ownership of 
the acquired facilities is retained by the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither 
the County, the State of South Dakota, nor any other political subdivision of the State is obligated 
in any manner for the repayment of these conduit debt issues. Accordingly, these bonds are not 
reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of December 31 , 2013, there 
was one series of conduit bonds outstanding with an aggregate unpaid principal amount of 
$9,980,137.83. 
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10. OPERATING LEASES 

The County is leasing two Canon Copiers. pne lease, dated October 2010 (IR3245), is a 60-month 
lease with payments of $176.80 per month from the sheriffs department budget of the General 
Fund. Final lease payments are in 2015. The second lease, dated September 2012 (IR4035), is a 
60-month lease with payments of $254.11 per month from the jail budget of the General Fund. 
Final lease payments are in 201 7. 

The following are the minimum payments on existing operating leases: 

Year 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

TOTAL 

General Fund 
Total 

$ 5,170.92 
5,170.92 
3,049.32 
2,032.88 

$ 15,424.04 

11. LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS 

The landfill operation is handled as an Enterprise Fund by the County. The plan for the operation of 
the disposal site is based on Administrative Rules of the State of South Dakota (ARSD) 74:27:13. 
Plans for the operation and various contingencies have been prepared for and are available at the 
office of the county auditor. 

The County is required to recognize the cost of closure and postclosure care as the landfill is used 
(landfill capacity used to date). The County is also required to take into account the possibilities of 
higher or lower costs due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations. The 
estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs for Unit 1 was $1,887,615.53 as of 
December 31, 2011. However, in 2012 it was determined that no more waste would be placed in 
Unit 1, which lowered the actual life expectancy to 19 years. Use of Unit 1 began in October 1993. 
Refuge deposited at Unit 1 through December 31, 2012, was 723,147 tons based on information 
supplied by Landfill Manager Mike Scott on December 31, 2012. The December amount 
represents usage of 100 percent of total Unit 1 capacity. On December 31, 2013, the amount held 
in the closure/postclosure for Unit 1 was $1,787,744.00. The Unit 1 closure bid was awarded to 
B&B Contracting in 2013 in the amount of $405,642.25 plus engineering costs. 

The County completed construction on Unit 2 in 2010 and began using it in 2011. The total lifespan 
of Unit 2 is currently estimated at 143 years with an estimated tota.l capacity of 6,963,912 tons. 
When calculating the Unit 2 (Cell1) Closure/Postclosure costs for 2013, a capacity of 362,104 tons 
with a lifespan of 5 years was used. 

The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs for Unit 2 (Cell 1) was 
$76,557.65 on December 31,2013 (grand total Unit 1 and Unit 2 (Cell 1) is $1,864,301 .65). The 
County is in compliance with the funding requirements set forth for closure and postclosure. 

Refuge deposited in Cell 1 of Unit 2 through December 31, 2013, was 120,547 tons. This amount 
represents usage of approximately 33 percent of capaci ty in Cell 1 of Unit 2. 

Financial assurances for corrective action are only required at facilities with known releases of 
contaminates. The County has not had any known releases of contaminates. The closure and 
postclosure requirements based on the most recent assessment are: 

Closure 
Postclosure 
Total 

Unit 1 
$ 604,158 

1,183,586 
$ 1,787,744 
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Unit 2 
$ 1,833,877 

4,1 57,960 
$ 5,991,837 



In addition, the County is required by State and Federal laws and regulations to make annual 
contributions to finance closure and postclosure care. The County is in compliance with these 
requirements, and at December 31, 2013, restricted cash and investments of $1 ,864,301.65 are 
presented on the Solid Waste Fund balance sheet as restricted assets for Unit 1 and Unit 2. 

The County Commissioners have also earmarked $187,512.73 of Unrestricted Net Position to fund 
future closure and postclosure costs and $240,000.00 to meet any potential remedial costs. 

12. RESTRICTED NET POSITION 

Restricted Net Position for the year ended December 31, 2013, was as follows: 

Major Purposes: 
Road and Bridge Purposes 

Other Purposes: 
Domestic Abuse Purposes 
Fire Protection Purposes 
Teen Court Purposes 
24/7 Sobriety Purposes 
Richmond Youth Camp Purposes 
Modernization and Preservation Relief Purposes 
Donation Purposes 
SDPAA Purposes 

Total Other Purposes 

Total Restricted Net Position 

$ 1,951,114.13 

1,054.00 
42,955.33 
35,367.52 
54,593.20 
21,916.96 
32,260.09 
6,388.97 

205,527.15 

400 063.22 

$ 2,351,177.35 

These balances are restricted due to federal grant and statutory requirements, or donor restrictions. 

13. BROWN COUNTY TIF #1 DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service Fund is a major fund. The deficit fund balance for 
$439,352.37 is the result of Northern Beef Packers being delinquent on their property taxes. There 
was not enough property tax revenue in 2013 to make the second half principal and interest 
payment on the Tax Incremental Revenue Bond Series 2011 . Bond principal and interest 
payments due but not paid in 2013 totaled $452,535.61 , and is reported as a current liability in the 
Fund. Also see Note 17 Subsequent Events. 
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14. INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

lnterfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2013, were as follows: 

Transfers From: 

Major Funds: 
General Fund 
Road and Bridge Fund 
Solid Waste Fund 

Total 

$ 

General 
Fund 

3,352.63 
5,355.09 

$ 8,707.72 

Transfers To: 
Road 

and Bridge 
Fund 

$ 3,000,000.00 

$ 3,000,000.00 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 475,850.19 

$ 475,850.19 

Total 

$ 3,475,850.19 
3,352.63 
5,355.09 

$ 3,484,557.91 

The County typically budgets transfers from the General Fund to the Road and Bridge Fund and 
Other Governmental Funds to conduct the indispensable functions of the County. The County also 
transfers earnings on deposits and investments from the Road and Bridge Fund and Solid Waste 
Fund to the General Fund. 

15. RETIREMENT PLAN 

All employees, except for part-time employees, participate in the South Dakota Retirement System 
(SDRS}, a cost-sharing, multiple employer public employee retirement system established to 
provide retirement benefits for employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. 
The SDRS provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits. The right to receive retirement 
benefits vests after three years of credited service. Authority for establishing, administering and 
amending plan provisions are found in SDCL 3-12. The SDRS issues a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may 
be obtained by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SO 57501 -1098 or by calling 
(605)773-3731. 

General employees are required by state statute to contribute 6 percent of their salary to the plan, 
while public safety and judicial employees contribute at 8 percent and 9 percent. respectively. 
State statute also requires the employer to contribute an amount equal to the employee's 
contribution. State statute also requires the employer to make an additional contribution in the 
amount of 6.2 percent for any compensation exceeding the maximum taxable amount for social 
security for general employees only. The County's share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal 
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $403,566.23, $390,576.00, and 
$407,232.34, respectively, equal to the required contributions each year. 

16. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES- LITIGATION 

At December 31, 2013, the County was not involved in any litigation. 

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

1. Brown County was awarded a $346,400.00 Solid Waste Management Program Grant on 
March 28, 2014, to assist the County with the construction of Unit 2 Cell 2. 

2. Northern Beef Packers filed Chapter 11 Bankruptcy in 2013 and the County Treasurer's 
records showed Northern Beef Plant owed delinquent property taxes, penalty and interest on 
December 31, 2013, of which approximately $452,535.61 was related to the payment of the 
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Tax Increment obligation (principal and interest). This Brown County TIF #1 Debt Service 
Fund current liability caused the fund to report a negative ($439,352.37) fund balance. The 
County has no legal obligation to pay Tax Increment Financing payments. On March 31, 
2014, the new owner, White Oak Global Advisors, LLC, renamed the plant New Angus, LLC 
and paid delinquent property taxes, penalty and interest in the amount of $1 ,090,574.25. 
$452,535.61 of this amount was disbursed to the Bond Holders in April2014. 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the period 
ended December 31, 2013, the County managed its risks as follows: 

Employee Health Insurance: 

The County purchases health insurance for its employees from a commercial insurance carrier. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past 
three years. 

Liability Insurance: 

The County joined the South Dakota Public Assurance Alliance (SDPAA), a public entity risk pool 
currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local 
government entities. The objective of the SDPAA is to administer and provide risk management 
services and risk sharing facilities to the members and to defend and protect the members against 
liability, to advise members on loss control guidelines and procedures, and provide them with risk 
management services, loss control and risk reduction information and to obtain lower costs for that 
coverage. The County's responsibility is to promptly report to and cooperate with the SDPAA to 
resolve any incident which could result in a claim being made by or against the County. The 
County pays an annual premium, to provide liability coverage detailed below, under a claims-made 
policy and the premiums are accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the 
SDPAA member, based on their exposure or type of coverage. The County pays an annual 
premium to the pool to provide coverage for: 

a. General Liability, 
b. Automobile liability, 
c. Wrongful Acts, 
d. Law Enforcement Liability, 
e. Automobile Physical Damage, and 
f. Property and Building Coverage 

The agreement with the SDPAA provides that the above coverages will be provided to a 
$1 ,000,000 limit. Member premiums are used by the pool for payment of claims and to pay for 
reinsurance for claims in excess of $250,000 for property coverage and $500,000 for liability 
coverage to the upper limit. A portion of the member premiums are also allocated to a cumulative 
reserve fund. The County would be eligible to receive a refund for a percentage of the amount 
allocated to the cumulative reserve fund on the following basis: 

End of County's First Full Year 50% 
End of County's Second Full Year 60% 
End of County's Third Full Year 70% 
End of County's Fourth Full Year 80% 
End of County's Fifth Full Year 90% 
End of County's Sixth Full Year and Thereafter 100% 
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As of December 31, 2013, the County has vested balance in the cumulative reserve·fund of 
$205,527.15. The County is fully vested in the SDPAA. 

The County carries no deductible for general liability and automobile liability coverage, a $2,500 
deductible for wrongful acts coverage, a $3,000 deductible for law enforcement liability coverage, 
$250 comprehensive and $500 collision deductible for automobile physical damage coverage, and 
a $1,000 deductible for property and building coverage. 

The County does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled 
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three 
years. 

Worker's Compensation: 

The County joined the South Dakota Municipal League Worker's Compensation Fund (Fund), a 
public ent.ity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 
South Dakota local government entities. The objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and 
administer, on behalf of the member organizations, a program of worker's compensation coverage, 
to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. The 
County's responsibility is to initiate and maintain a safety program to give its employees safe and 
sanitary working conditions and to promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve any 
worker's compensation claims. The County pays an annual premium, to provide worker's 
compensation coverage for its employees, under a self-funded program and the premiums are 
accrued based on the ultimate cost of the experience to date of the Fund members. Coverage 
limits are set by state statute. The pool pays the first $650,000 of any claim per individual. The 
pool has reinsurance which covers up to statutory limits in addition to a separate combined 
employer liability limit of $2,000,000 per incident. 

The County does not carry additional insurance to cover claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled 
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage over the past three years. 

Unemployment Benefits: 

The County provides coverage for unemployment benefits by paying into the Unemployment 
Compensation Fund established by state law and managed by the State of South Dakota. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE· BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Amounts 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

General Property Taxes-Current $ 11,847,384.00 $ 11,847,384.00 s 11,828,736.27 

General Property Taxes-Delinquent 65,000.00 65,000.00 95,402.36 

Penalties and Interest 19,000.00 19,000.00 33,356.53 

Telephone Tax (Outside) 11,500.00 11,500.00 0.00 

Mobile Home Tax 2,500.00 2,500.00 2,431.20 

Tax Deed Revenue 180.00 180.00 18,061.00 

Licenses and Penn its 60,300.00 60,300.00 98,661.14 

Intergovernmental Revenue: 

Federal Grants 30,000.00 331,354.09 306,804.37 

Fedaral Shared Revenue 14.250.00 14,250.00 13,176.21 

Federal Payments in Lieu of Taxes 190.00 190.00 192.00 

State Grants 0.00 0.00 12,109.49 

Slate Shared Revenue: 

Bank Franchise 55,000.00 55,000.00 196,325.20 

Court Appointed Attorney/Public Defender 15,500.00 15,500.00 13,115.43 

Abused and Neglected Child Defense 5,000.00 5,000.00 2,831.05 

Telecommunications Gross Receipts Tax 225,000.00 225,000.00 227,824.99 

Motor Vehicle 114% 7,000.00 7,000.00 9,345.24 

Other Payments in Lieu of Taxes 3,500.00 3,500.00 4,647.14 

Other intergovernmental Revenue 18,000.00 25,781.49 30,326.66 

Charges tor Goods and Services: 

General Government: 

Treasure(s Fees 58.800.00 58,800.00 65,885.14 

Reg~erofDeeds'Fees 365,000.00 365,000.00 470.440 00 

Legal Services 108,000.00 108,000.00 105,527.43 

Clerk ot Courts Fees 61,000.00 61,000.00 51,667.29 

Assessors Fees 17.300.00 17,300.00 21 ,080.00 

GIS Fees 5.500.00 5,500.00 323.47 

Other Fees 320.00 320.00 825.79 

Public Safety. 

Law Enforcement 113.450.00 113,450.00 120,787.14 

Prisoner Care 123,600.00 123,600.00 97,390.10 

Health and Welfare.: 

Economic Assistance: 

Poor Llen Recoveries 90.000.00 90.000.00 154,479.12 

Veterans Service Officer 4,375.00 4,375.00 4,375.00 

Culture and Recreation 821,000.00 883,651.00 874,385.63 

Conservation ol Natural Resources 40,000.00 40,000.00 53,681.76 

Other Charges 18.000.00 18,000.00 15,782 88 

Fines and Forte1ts: 

Fines 200.00 200.00 156.00 

Costs 28.000.00 28.000.00 25.328 83 

Forfeits 3 ,000.00 3.000.00 000 

Miscellaneous Revenue. 

Investment Earmngs 60.000.00 60,000.00 17,294 65 

Rent 84.637.50 84,637.50 113,295.33 

Contributions and Oonanons 0.00 0.00 9.06916 
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Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

$ (18,647.73) 

30,402.36 

14,356.53 

(11,500.00) 

(68.80) 

17,881.00 

38,561.14 

(24,549.72) 

(1,073.79) 

2.00 

12,109.49 

141,325.20 

(2,384.57) 

(2.168.95) 

2,824.99 

2,345.24 

1.147.14 

4,545.17 

7,085.14 

105,440.00 

(2,472.57) 

(9.332.71) 

3,780.00 

(5,176.53) 

505.79 

7,337.14 

(26,209.90) 

64.479.12 

000 

(9,265.37) 

13.681 .76 

(2.217.12) 

(44.00) 

(2.671.17) 

(3.000.00) 

(42.705 35) 

28.657.83 

9.069.16 



Refund o f Prior Year's Expenditures 

Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 

General Government 

Legislative: 

Board of County Commissioners 

Contingency 

Amount Transferred 

Elecllons 

Judicial System 

Financial Administration: 

Auditor 

Treasurer 

Data Processing 

Legal Services: 

State's Attorney 

Court APpointed Attorney 

Abused and Neglected Child Defense 

Other Administration: 

General Government Building 

Director or Equalization 

Register of Deeds 

Veterans Service Officer 

Predatory Animal 

Geographic lnfOfmation System 

Public Safety: 

Law Enforcement 

Sheriff 

County Jait 

Coroner 

Juvenile Detention 

Protective and Emergency Services: 

Fire Protection 

Health and Welfare: 

Economic Assistance: 

Support ol Poor 

Health Assistance: 

County Nurse 

Ambulance 

Social Services: 

Care of Aged 

Mental Health Services: 

Mentally tit 

Developmentally Disabled 

DnugAbuse 

Mental Health Centers 

Mental ftlness Board 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE- BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(Continued) 

Budgeted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Am ounts 

18,000.00 

10,000.00 

14,409.486.50 

288,065.64 

250,000.00 

17,199.62 

75.271.00 

363,280.43 

499,741.00 

365,000.00 

599,337.57 

320,000.00 

15,000.00 

765,314.00 

479,749.16 

274.462.96 

125,000.00 

10,374.57 

86.95100 

1,299,504.00 

1.418,754.00 

24,939.75 

794,807.00 

17,000.00 

680,000.00 

26,780.00 

25.000.00 

1.00000 

30.00000 

2.00000 

20.000.00 

37.08000 

80.500.00 
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18,000.00 

10,000.00 

14.781,273.08 

288,065.64 

250,000.00 

(187,190.13) 

26,280.31 

75,271.00 

363,280.43 

499.741.00 

365,000.00 

639,337.57 

320,000.00 

15,000.00 

825,314.00 

493.749.16 

280,662.96 

126,000.00 

10.374.57 

90.151 .00 

1,321,817.74 

1,418.754.00 

32,939.75 

794,807.00 

17,000.00 

680,000.00 

26,780.00 

41 ,990 13 

1,000 00 

67,000.00 

4,800.00 

20,000.00 

37,080.00 

80,500.00 

0.00 
9,765.10 

15,105,086.10 

277,436.68 

26.280.31 

58,967.50 

341,829.03 

496.558.64 

315,296.28 

637.037.22 

313,615.82 

15,000.00 

808,345.60 

493,740.34 

280,58~.23 

125.827.35 

10,374.57 

89,910.71 

1,302,518.16 

1,376,192.11 

32,707.25 

741 ,616.83 

16,964.92 

384,068.25 

18,540.00 

41 ,990.13 

1,000.00 

65,923.73 

4.800.00 

20.000.00 

37,080 00 

80,500.00 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

(18,000.00) 

(234.90) 

323,813.02 

10,628.96 

62,809.87 

0.00 

16,303.50 

21,451.40 

3,182.36 

49.703.72 

2.300.35 

6,384.18 

0.00 

16,968.40 

8.82 

74.73 

372.65 

0.00 

240.29 

19.299.58 

42.561.89 

232.50 

53,190.17 

35.08 

295,931.75 

8,240.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,076.27 

0.00 

0 00 

0.00 

0.00 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE· BUDGETARY BASIS 

GENERAL FUND 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

(Continued) 

Bud!!cted Amounts 

Original Final Actual Amounts 

Cullure and Reaeation: 

Culture: 

Public Library 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 

Historical Museum 328,367.35 326,837.65 323,1 39.08 

Historical Sites 500.00 500.00 457.48 

Recreation: 

Recreational Programs 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

Parks 94,550.49 94,550.49 80,462.12 

Exhibition Buflding 308,145.94 308,145.94 286,005.12 

County Fair 840,800.44 906,451.44 624,244.51 

Senior Center 4,500.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 

Conservallor. of Natural Resources: 

Soil Conservation: · 

Counly Extension 71,467.02 71,487.02 66,601.50 

Weed and Pest Control 199,520.57 199.520.57 157,997.33 

Urban and Economic Development 

Urban Development 

Planning and Zoning 97.166.00 97,166.00 62,415.17 

Urban and Rural Developmenl 24,931 64 263,392.90 263,39290 

Economic Development 

Tourism. Industrial or Recreational Oovclopmenl 20.750.00 20,750.00 20.750.00 

Total Expenditures 11,005,831.15 11,343,608.14 10,529,474.87 

Excess or Revenues Over (Under) EXPendotures 3.403.655 35 3.437.664.94 4,575,611 23 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers In 16,125.00 16,125.00 8,707 72 

Transfers Out (3.979,972.48) (3,979,972.48) (3,475,850.'19) 

Insurance Proceeds 30,000.00 30,000.00 38,541.96 

Sale or County Property 5,000.00 5,000.00 12,818.61 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (3,928,847.48) (3,928,847.48) (3,415,781.90) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (525,192.13) (491,182.54) 1,159,829 33 

Fund Balance • Beginning 4,471,947 41 4,471,947.41 4,471,947.41 

FUND BALANCE· ENDING s 3,946,755.28 $ 3,960,764.87 $ 5,631,776.74 
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Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) 

0.00 

3,498.57 

42.52 

0.00 

14,088.37 

22,140.82 

64,206.93 

0.00 

2,865.52 

41,523.24 

34,750.63 

0.00 

0.00 

814,133.27 

1.137.946.29 

(7.417.28) 

504,122.29 

8,541.95 

7.818.61 

513,065.58 

1,651,011.87 

0.00 

$ 1,651,011.87 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

BROWN COUNTY 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE · BUDGETARY BASIS 

ROAD AND BRIDGE FUND 

For the Year Ended Oocember 31, 2013 

Variance with 

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget 

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive (Negative) 

Revenues: 

Taxes: 

Wheel Tax $ 740,000.00 s 740,000.00 $ 774,537.10 s 34,537.10 

Licenses and Permits 9,500.00 9,500.00 6,790.00 (2,710.00) 

Intergovernmental Revenue: 

Federal Grants 0.00 0.00 606,428.23 608,428.23 

State Grants 350,000.00 350,000.00 1,046.602.98 698,602.98 

State Shared Revenue: 

Motor Vehicle Licenses 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,820,246.72 820,246.72 

Prorate/Port of Entry Fees 150,000.00 150,000.00 165,280.45 15,280.45 

63 3/4% Mob1le Home/Manufactured Home 16,000.00 16,000.00 24.031.11 8,031.11 

Motor Fuel Tax 430,225.00 430,225.00 17,926.11 (412,298.89) 

Other Intergovernmental Revenue 0.00 0.00 5,168.45 5,168.45 

Charges for Goods and Services: 

Public Works: 

Road Maintenance Contract Charges 5,700.00 5,700.00 4,856.83 (843.17) 

Miscellaneous Revenue: 

Investment Earnings 6,000.00 6,000.00 3,352.63 (2 ,647.37) 

Rent 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,520.25 (1,479.75) 

Contributions and Donations 0.00 0.00 29,200.00 29,200.00 

Other 500.00 500.00 111 .96 (388.04) 

Total Revenues 3,710,925.00 3,710.925.00 5,510,052.82 1,799.127.82 

Expenditures: 

Public Works: 

Highways and Bridges: 

Highways, Roads and Bridges 8,641,047.29 8,641,047.29 6.201,716.94 439.330.35 

Intergovernmental Expenditures 40,000.00 40,000.00 38,726.85 1,273.15 

Total Expenditures 8.681,047.29 8,681.Q47.29 8,240,443.79 440,603.50 

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (4,970,122.29) (4,970.122.29) (2. 730.390.97) 2.239.731 .32 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 4.104,122.29 4,104,122.29 3.000,000.00 (1,104,122.29) 

Transfers Out 0.00 0.00 (3.352.63) (3,352.63) 

Insurance Proceeds 0.00 0.00 5,596.40 5,596.40 

Sale of County Property 16,000.00 16,000.00 110.371.20 94,371.20 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 4.120,122.29 4.120.122.29 3.112.614.97 (1.007,507.32) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (850,000.00) (850.000.00) 382.224.00 1.232.224.00 

Fund Balance - Beginning 3,014,932.82 3,014,932.82 3,014,932.82 0.00 

FUND BALANCE • ENDING $ 2,164,932.82 s 2,164,932.82 $ 3,397,156.82 $ 1,232,224.00 
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Note 1. 

BROWN COUNTY 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedules of Budgetary Comparisons for the General Fund 
and for each major Special Revenue Fund with a legally required budget. 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:_ 

The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. Between the fifteenth and thirtieth days of July in each year the Board of County 
Commissioners prepares and files with the County Auditor a provisional budget for the 
following year, containing a detailed estimate of cash balances, revenues and 
expenditures. 

2. Prior to the first Tuesday in September in each year a notice of budget hearing is 
published once each week for two successive weeks, and the text of the provisional 
budget is published with the first publication. · 

3. The Board of County Commissioners holds a meeting for the purpose of considering 
the provisional budget on or prior to the first Tuesday in September in each year. Such 
hearings must be concluded by October first. Changes made to the provisional budget 
are entered at length in the minutes of the Board of County Commissioners. 

4. Before October first of each year the Board of County Commissioners adopts an 
annual budget for the ensuing year. The adopted budget is filed in the office of the 
County Auditor. 

5. After adoption by the Board of County Commissioners, the operating budget is legally 
binding and actual expenditures for each purpose cannot exceed the amounts 
budgeted, except as indicated in number 7. 

6. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item 
may not exceed 5 percent of the total county budget. 

7. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state 
statute allows the adoption of supplemental budgets. 

8. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end unless encumbered by resolution of the 
Board of County Commissioners. 

9. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the 
year for the General Fund and special revenue funds. 

10. Budgets for the General Fund and special revenue funds are adopted on a basis 
consistent with USGAAP. 
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BROWN COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 

Federal Granto r/Pass-Through Grantor 
Program or Cluster Title 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development: 
CDBG • State-Administered CDBG Cluster. 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Governor's Office of Ec:Onomic Development, 
Community Development Block GranVState's Program 
and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 

US Department of Interior: 
Direct Federal Funding: 

Bureau of Land Management, 
Payments in Lieu of T axes (Note 2) 
Distribution of Receipts to State and Local 
Governments (Note 2) 

Total US Department of Interior 

US Department of Justice: 
Direct Federal Funding: 
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Program 

Indirect Federal Funding: 
SO Department of Corrections. 

Juvenile Accountability Block Grants 
SO Department of Social Services. 

Stop Violence Against Women Act 
SO Teen Court Administration, 

Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Program 

Total US Department of Justice 

US Department of Transportation: 
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster: 

Indirect Federal Funding: 
SO Department of Transportation, 

Highway Planning and Construction (Note 3) 

Highway Safety Cluster: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Department of Public Safety, 
State and Community Highway Safety 
Alcohol Impaired Driving Countermeasures Incentive Grants 

Total Highway Safety Cluster 

Total US Department of Transportation 

US General Services Administration: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Federal Property Agency, 
Donation of Federal Surplus 

Personal Property (Note 5) 
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Federal CFDA 
Number 

14.228 

15.226 

15.227 

16.607 

16.523 

16.588 

16.727 

20.205 

20.600 
20.601 

39.003 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying Expenditures 

Number 2013 

$ 137,761.78 

192.00 

13,176.21 

13,368.21 

1,001.80 

6,489.60 

39,278.89 

6,875.00 

53,645.29 

627,353.57 

30,263.78 
569.00 

30.832.78 

658,186.35 

7.673.31 



BROWN COUNTY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013 
(Continued) 

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor 
Program or Cluster Title 

US Eleclions Assistance Commission: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Secretary of State, 
Help America Vote Act Requiremenls Payments 

US Department of Homeland Security: 
Indirect Federal Funding: 

SO Department of Public Safety, 
Office of Emergency Management, 

Emergency Management Performance Grants 
Homeland Security Grant Program (Note 4) 

Total US Department of Homeland Security 

GRAND TOTAL 

Federal CFOA 
Number 

90.401 

97.042 
97.067 

Pass-Through 
Entity Identifying 

Num ber 

Note 1: This accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the County and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting unless otherwise noted. The 
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, 
Audits of States Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore. some amounts presented 
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose 
financial statements. 

Note 2: Federal reimbursements are not based upon specific expenditures. Therefore, the amounts reported 
here represent cash received rather than federal expenditures. 

Note 3: This represents a Major Federal Financial Assistance Program. 

Note 4: Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the County provided federal awards to sub­
reciptents as follows: 

Program Tille 
Homeland Security Grant Program 

Federal 
CFDA Number 

97.067 

Amount 
Provided to 

Subrecipients 
$ 46,595.00 

Note 5: The amount reported represents 23.3% of the original acquisition cost of the federal surplus property 
received by the County. 
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Expenditures 
2013 

62.00 

73,563.24 
67,710.99 

141,274.23 

$ 1,011,971 .17 



CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 



101 201 
Road 

General and Bridge 

Fund Fund 

100 General Government 

t1 0 legislative 

111 Board of County Commissioners 419,455.67 

112 Contingency 250,000.00 

120 Elections 28.700.00 

130 Judicial System 78,505.00 

140 Financial Administration 

141 Auditor 320.305.00 

142 Treasurer 538.418.00 

143 Data Processing 492.772.00 

149 Other 

150 legal Services 

151 States Altomey 678,045.00 

152 Public Defender 

153 Court Appointed Altomey 326.500.00 

154 Abused and Neglected 

Child Defense 15.000.00 

159 Teen Coun 

1600ther 

161 General Government Building 1,061,171.00 

162 Director of Equalization 550.259.00 

163 Register of Deeds 341,188.00 

165 Veterans' Service Officer 159.384.00 

166 Predatory Animal (GFP) 3,915.61 

170 Geographic Information System 95,771.00 

!TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 5.359.389.28 0.00 

ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY. SO 

For Year January 1, 2015 through December 31 . 2015 

Governmental Funds 

207 226 229 
Safe 

E911 EM Harbor 

Fund Fund Fund 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
--

230 
Teen 

Court 

Fund 

25.211.00 

25.211.00 

Proprietary Fun d 

248 251 401 504 
Mod& Debt Servoce Landfill 

24f7 Sobriety Preservation BCT1 Solid waste 

Fund Relief (Northern Beef) Fund 

5.000.00 

0.00 5.000.00 0.00 0.00 



ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY, SO 
For the Year January 1, 2015 through December 31. 2015 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund 

101 201 207 226 229 230 248 251 401 504 
Road Safe Teen Mod& Debt Service Landfill 

General and Bridge E911 EM Harbor Court 2417 Sobriety Preservation BCT1 Solid Waste 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Relief _{Beef Plant} Fund 

200 Public Safety 

210 law Enforcement 

211 Sheriff 1.416.953.00 

212 County Jail 1,537.256.00 83.234.00 

213 Coroner 29,523.00 

215 Juvenile Detention 861,656.00 

220 Protective & Emergency Services 

221 Fire Protection 17,000.00 

222 Emergency & Disaster Services 192.636.00 

225 Communications Center (911) 1,287,103.00 

I TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY 3,662,388.00 0.00 1,287 0 103.00 192.636.00 0.00 0.00 83,234.00 0.00 0 .00 000 

300 Public Worl<s 

310 Highways & Bridges 

311 Highways, Roads. & Bridges 8,771,803.00 

320 San~ation 

322 Solid Wastes 3,150,592.00 

!TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 0 .00 8,171.803.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 3, 150.592 00 
--



ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY. SO 
For the Year January 1, 2015 through December 31 , 2015 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund 

101 201 207 226 229 230 248 251 401 504 
Road Safe Teen Mod& Debt Servace Landfill 

General and Bridge E911 EM Harbor Court 24n Sobriety Preservation BCT1 Solid Waste 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Relief (Northern Beefl Fund 

400 Health & Welfare 

4 tO Economic Assistance 

411 Support of Poor 680,000.00 

420 Health As1<stance 

421 County Nurse 18,540.00 

424 Ambulance 25,000.00 

430 Sodal Services 

431 Day Care Centers 

432 Child Suppor1 Enforcement 

433 Care ol Aged 1,000.00 

434 Domestic Abuse 15,000.00 

439 Other 

440 Mental Health Services 

441 Mentally •• 100,000.00 

442 Aspira/Llve/Dakoatabilltles 13,700.00 

443 Drvg Abuse 25,000.00 

444 Mental Health Centers 37.080.00 

445 MentaiiUness Board 

[ T_OTAL HEALTH& WELFARE 900,320.00_ 0.00 0.00 000 15,000.00 0.00 000 000 000 0 00 



ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY, SO 
For the Year January 1, 2015through December 31 , 2015 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund 

101 201 207 226 229 230 248 251 401 504 
Road Safe Teen Mod& Debt Service Landfill 

General and Bridge E911 EM Harbor Court 24f7 Sobriety Preservation BCT1 Solid Waste 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Relief (Northern Beef) Fund 

500 Culture & Recreation 

510Cunure 

511 Public library 15,000.00 

512 Historical Museum 397,509.00 

514 Historical Sites 500.00 

520 Recreation 

521 Recreation Program 5.000.00 

522 Par1<s 95.260.00 

523 Emibition Building 0 & M 332.882.00 

524 County Fair 942.776.00 

525 Senior Ckizens 2.500.00 

!TOTAL CULTURAL & RECREATION 1,791.427.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

600 Conservation of Natural Resources 

610 Soli Conservation 

611 4-H Coordinator 65,678.00 

615 Weed Control 215,897.00 

liOTAL CONSERVATION OF NATURAL 
RESOURCES 281.575.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 



ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY. SO 
For the Year January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Fund 

101 201 207 226 229 230 248 251 401 504 
Road Safe Teen Mod & Debt Service Landfill 

General and Bridge E911 EM Harbor Court 24n Sobriety Presemation BCT1 Solid Waste 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Relief (Northern Beef) Fund 

700 Urban & Econonuc Development 

710 Urban Development 

711 PlaMing & Zooing 73.549.00 

712 Urban & Rural Development 25,677.99 

720 Economic Development 

721 T oorism, Ind. & Rec. Development 20,750.00 

I TOTAL URBAN & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 119,976.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 000 0.00 000 000 

750 Payments to olher Governments 40000.00 

800 Debt Service 904,799.55 

900 Other Uses 

9 10 Olher Financing Uses 

91 1 Operating Transf8fS Out 5,045,165.12 1,500.00 5.000.00 

!TOTAL OTHER USES 5,045,165.12 41,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 904,799.55 5.000.00 

!TOTAL EXPENDITURE APPROPRIATIONS 17,360,241.39 8,813,303.00 1,287,103.00 192,636.00 15.000.00 25.211 .00 83,234.00 5,000.00 904.799.55 3.155,592.00 

Capital Outlay Accumulations 

(SDCL 7·21-51) 200,000.00 

lTOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 17,560,241 .39 8,813,303.00 1_.287,103.00 192,636.00 15,000.00 25,211 .00 83,234.00 5.000.00 904,799.55 3.155,592.00 



[Cash Balance Applied 

311 Current Property Tax Levy 

Less current uncollected 
Less 25% to Cities 

311 TIF Property Taxes 

3121319- Olher Taxes 

[NETTOTAL TAXES 

320 Licenses & Permits 
330 lntergovemmental Revenue 
340 Charges for Goods & Services 

350 Fines & Forfe"s 
360 Miscellaneous Revenue 
370 Other F..ancing Sources 

[SUBTOTAL 

Less 5% (SDCL 7·21·18) 

[NET MEANS OF FINANCE 

[TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 

Net Position, January 1 
Estimated Revenue 
Less Expenses 
Net Position. December 31 

101 

General 
Fund 

2.666.177.41 
12.936,810.00 

-22.171.00 

135,643.49 

13,050,282.49 

76,981.94 
444,846.48 

1.949.298.49 
27.581.00 

153,876.28 
115,420.55 

18,484.464.64 

924.223.25 

17.560,241 .39 

17,560,241.39 

504 
Landfill 

Solid Waste 

8,998,204.60 
2,345,198.54 
3,1 55.592.00 
8,187,811.14 

201 
Road 

and Bridge 
Fund 

275.000.00 

( ) ( 

760,826.17 

760,826.17 

9,763.33 

3,015,506.94 

1.000.00 

4,746.16 
4.7~6.460.40 

8,813.303.00 

( ) ( 

8,813,303.00 

8.813,303.00 

Proprietary Fund 

ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY, SO 
For the Year January 1. 2015 through December 31, 2015 

Governmental Funds 

207 226 

E911 EM 
Fund Fund 

375.000.00 85.000.00 

) ( ) 

0.00 0.00 

645,344.28 58.000.00 

12.000.00 

550.00 140.00 

254.208.72 49,496.00 

1,287,103.00 192.636.00 

) ( ) 

1.287,103.00 192,636.00 

1,287.103.00 192.636 00 

229 230 248 251 401 
Safe Teen Mod& Debt Service 

Harbor Court 24n Sobriety Preservation BCT1 
Fund Fund Fund Relief (Northern Beef) 

9.280.59 

( ) ( ) ( 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

8,000.00 

3,400.00 15,000.00 

3,600.00 83.234.00 5,000.00 

930.41 

15,000 00 25.211.00 83.234 00 5,000.00 

( _l_ ( ) ( ) ( 

15,000.00 25.211.00 83,234.00 5.000.00 

15.000.00 25.211.00 83.234.00 5.000.00 

ADOPTION OF PROVISIONAL BUDGET FOR 
BROWN COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN: That the Board of County Commissioners of 
Brown County, will meet in the Courthouse at Aberdeen 
South Dakota on Tuesday, September 2. 2014 at 9:00A.M. 
for the purpose of considering the foregoing Provisional Budget for the year 
2015 and the various items, schedules, amounts and appropriations set 
forth therein and as many days thereafter as is deemed necessary until the 
final adoption of the budget on the 30th day of September, 2014. At such 

251,335 22 

653,464.33 

653,464.33 

904,799 55 

904,799.55 

904,799.55 

time any interested person may appear either in person or by a representative 
and will be given an opportunity for a full and complete discussion of all pur­
poses, objectives, items. schedules. appropriations, estimates, amounts and 
matters set forth and contained in the Provisional Budget. 

- - ----------------- County Auditor 
----------- ------- South Dakola 

Proprietary Fund 

504 
Landfill 

Solid Waste 
Fund 

810,393,46 

7.645 84 

7,645 84 

1.729.294.56 

608,258 14 

3,155.592 00 
) ) 

3. 155,592.00 

3, 155,592 00 



Tax Levy in 
COUNTY TAX LEVIES 
WITHIN LIMITED LEVY: 
• General County Purposes 

(10-12-9) 
Library 
Fire 

LIMITED LEVY (10-12-21)-
SUB TOTAL 
OUTSIDE LIMITED LEVY: "-
County Snow Removal Fund 

(34-5-2) 
• Highway and Bridge Reserve 

(10-12-13) 
Courthouse. Jail. etc., Bldg. 

(7-25-1) 
Bond Interest Sinking 

(7-24-18) 
Ag Building 

(7-27-1) 

UNLIMITED LEVY- SUB TOTAL 

LIMITED AND UNLIMITED 
LEVY- SUB-TOTAL 
OTHER SPECIAL LEVIES 
Secondary Road (Unorg. PT-76) 

(31-12-27) 
Fire Protection (34-31-3) 

TOTAL TAXES LEVIED BY COUNTY 

ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY, SO 
For the Year January 1, 2015 to December 31 . 2015 

Dollars $'s/1 000 
' 

12,867,756.00 4.008 
40.929.00 0.023 

28.125.00 0.015 

$12,936,810.00 4.046 

0.00 0.000 

$12,936,810.00 $4.046 

RESOLUTION 
#65-14 

ADOPTION OF ANNUAL BUDGET FOR BROWN COUNTY, SO 

Whereas. (7-21 -5 thru 13) . SDCL provides that the Board of County 
Commissioners shall each year prepare a Provisional Budget of all 
contemplated expenditures and revenues of the County and all its 
institutions and agencies for such fiscal year and, 
Whereas. the Board of County Commissioners did prepare a 
Provisional Budget and cause same to be published by law, and 
Whereas. due and legal notice has been given to the meeting of the 
Board of County Commissioners for the consideration of such 
Provisional Budget and all changes, elimination's and additions 

have been made thereto. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED. That such provisional budget 
as amended and all its purposes, schedules. appropriations. 
amounts, estimates and all matters therein set forth , SHALL BE 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED AS THE ANNUAL BUDGET OF THE 
APPROPRIATION AND EXPENDITURES FOR BROWN COUNTY 
South Dakota and all its institutions and agencies for 
calendar year beginning January 1. 2015 and ending December 31 , 
2015 and the same is hereby approved and adopted by the 
Board of County Commissioners of Brown County 
South Dakota. this 30th day of September, 2014. 
The Annual Budget so adopted is available for public inspection 
during normal business hours at the office of the county auditor 
Brown County. South Dakota. The accompanying 
taxes are levied by Brown County for the year 
January 1, 2015 through December 31 , 2015. 
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• These Amounts include the 25% to be distributed to cities. 

As of __________ 2d_ these levies are( are not) approved by the Department of Revenue 



NORTHEAST COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 

P.O. BOX 1985 ABERDEEN, SD 57402-1985 



WRAP REVIEW SHEET 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

 
 ENGINEERING REVIEW COMPLETED BY: DREW HUISKEN 
 
 
Applicant: City of Pierre 
  
Project Title: Solid Waste Baler Replacement 
  
Funding Requested: $575,000 
  
Other Proposed Funding: $250,000 – Local Cash 
  
Total Project Cost: $825,000 
  
Project Description: The City of Pierre is proposing to replace the baler at the 

regional landfill.  A new baler will be more efficient and 
less likely to malfunction.  The concrete around the baler 
area will also be replaced and minor improvements will 
be made to the conveyor system.  The city is committed 
to baling its municipal solid waste, and the baling of 
waste is also a requirement of the Conditional Use Permit 
issued by Hughes County. 
 

  
Type:  Regional Landfill 
  
Service Population: 39,000 
  
 
Financial & History Information: 

 
In September 2014, Pierre received a $354,400 SWMP 
grant and an $817,600 CWSRF loan for the construction 
of landfill cell #3.  
 
In June 2011, Pierre received a $440,000 SWMP loan for 
the closure of its rubble site and the construction of a 
new rubble site and a scale. 
 
In March 2011, Pierre received a $60,000 SWMP grant for 
the closure of its rubble site and the construction of a 
new rubble site and a scale. 
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